q | —

B

MICROFICHE CONTROL LABEL

*CUR.RENT ADDRES’S

H

**FORMER NAME -

**NEW ADDRESS

FILE No. g2- Oﬂﬁ | FISCAL vEAR -4 go/ﬁ//

®  Complete Jor inidial submissions only e

Pl«m.muauul eddress dum:e:
INDL CATE FORM TY-PE ro BE USED FOR WO

RKLOAD ENTRY :
42G3-28 (INITIAL FILING) AR/S (ANNUAL REPORT) "/
12G32BR  (REINSTATEMENT) STPPL  (OTHER) ]

- L ‘ L_J
DEF 1¢A  (PROXY)
OICF/BY:




Exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b)

N

Gl
pa

.

o

.

e fgff . ;
_ S

s




ADVISORY

in the interest of providing Unitholders and potential investors of
Canadian Oif Sands Trust {the TTrust” or "Canadian Qil-Bands™) with
information regardirg tha Trust, including management’s assessment
of the Trust’s futire pioduction and tost estimates, plans and Syncrude
operations, certain statements throughout this annual report cortain
“forward~iooking statements” under applicable’ secyrities  law.
Forward-looking stataments in this annual report include; but ams not
irited to, statements with respect to: the expectation that crude oil
prices witl strengthen in future and-in particular, will rise by the end of
2009; Syncrude s resource base witl provids a long-life cash generating
asset base, the expectation that we bave the ability to substantially
grow production at Syncrude through controlled expansions; Syncruds
being able to produce oif at 350,000 barrels per day ("bpd”) for decades;
plans with respect to the refinancingof $500 milion of debt in 2009,
the belief that distributions will more closely reflect cash from operating
activities, net of sustaining ard certain growth capital requirements ang
the expectation that accardingly: distributions will mors closely retlect
business conditions, especially crude off prices: plans regarding having
a net debt target of §1.8 billion by 2010; olans to convert toa corporate
structure in 2011 as a result of the federal trust taxation: the Daliet and
plans regarding improved reliability and lower costs as well as overail
improved operations at Syncrude’ lowing. from the Management
Services Agresment betwesn Synorude Canada and Imperial Oil; the
expeciation that using contractors will increase bitumen supply and
ultimately imprave blending feed and volumes to the extraction plants;
the expectation that 1f produation volumes are increased, operating
costs will decrease; 1he belief that with low crude oil prices and less
develogment, natlUral gas costs will decrease as will labour and other
casts with the current economic downturn; the expected levals of
mamntenance capital and growth capital over the next few years: the
expectation to grow proddction to 350,000 bpd and eventualty to
500,000 bpd; the expectation of achisving the prodisction design rates
from Coker 8-3 and Stage 3; the actual recoverable amounts from any
ressrves of resources; the bellef that demand for our synthetic crude ol
product will grow and that it will bepefit both our revenues and cost
structure; the expectedinvestments and costs relating to environmental
legislation and reguiations; the proposed reduction in sulphuy dioxide
arud other emdssions; the sxpectation that Syncrude will continue to
develon batter and more sustainahle praclices; the short-term and
long-term goals for cperations, growth, distributions and the business
envirgnment; the expected improvement in snergy efficlencyy the
productive capacity that can be gehieved i the futurs; the expectation
that production can be increased by 22% from 2008 Ly reaching
design capacity; the quality of Syncrude’s izases; 1w plens to reduce
arissions to less than 80% of current approved ievais through the
Syncruds-Emissions: Redustion project; the belief that Byocrude can
add production more easily and cheaper than a greenfield operations;
the plans for 2009 with regards to tumarounds and maintenance; the
expsctation of chesper and more technologically advanced operations
flowdng from the agreement with Imperial Ol regarding Kearl Lake and
Syncrude’s mine retocations; the expected timing. and associated
production impact of coker and gther unit turnarounds in 2009; the
expactsd revenues, operating costs and cash fror operating activities
for 2009; the anticipated impact that certain factors such as natural gas
and ol prices, foreign exchange, operating costs and Crown rovalties
bapee onn the Trust's cash from coerating sctivities and ret income: and
the expecied capital expenditures in 2009 and beyond. You are
cautoned not (o place undue reliance on forward-lpoking staterments,
as thera can be no assurance that the plans, inteotions or expectations
upon which they are based will ocour By thelr nature; forward fooking
statemerts involve numerous assumplions, known and unknown rigks
and uncertainties, both gerieral and specific, that contribute to the
possibility that the predictions. forecasts, projections and other
formard-icoking statements will noboccur. Although the Trist believes
that the expectations represented by such forward-looking statements
are reastnable, there can be no assurancs that such expectations
Wil prove-to be correct. Some of the rsks and ather factors that
could cause resuits to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-locking statements contained in this armualreportinciude, but

are not Himited 1o the supply and demand metics for oll and
natural gas; general ecoromic, Business and market conditions
and i particular. the impact of the current downturn-in the: -
eoonomy sad the length: of 'such economic recession: risks
imtrerant to the opsration of any large: complex refinery units,
aspecially tre intrgration between mining operations and an
upgrader facility; regulatory. changes which may impact the
penalties on greenhouse gas emitters, labour shortagss and the
productivity achiaved from labowr In the Fort MoMuray ares; the
impact of technology on operations and processes and how new
complex technology may not perform as expacted: currendy and
interegt rate fluctuations; the availability of pipeling capacity;
changes in business strategy; the availability and price of energy
sommaodities; requiatory decisions; the effects of competitionand
pricing pressures; shifts in market demands; changes in lawsand
reguiations inchuding environmental and regulatory laws; potential
increases incosts; tming of con pletion of capital ot mainterance
projects: the avalability of adequate levels of insurarcsivarious
events which could aisrupt operations noluding severe weather
conditions; technological changes and management retention and
development; such other risks and uncartaintiss descrbed from
time to tme i the reports and fings made with senunties.
reglatory authorities by the Trust, including those cutlined in the
Managernent’s Discussion and Analysis in this annual report and
the assumptions: outlined In the guidance for 2008 actually
ooouring. You are cautioned that the foregoing list of important
factors is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking
statements contained in this annugl report are made as of the
date of this annual report and unless required by law the Trust
does not undertake any abligation fo update publicly or to revise
any of the included forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of pew infonmation, future ‘sventsior otherwise, The
forward-togking statements cortained in this annual repart are
axprassly qualified by this cautionary statement. In any reference
o resources in this annual report; there is no certalnty that any.
partion of the resources will be thscoversel. I discovered, there i
o certainty: that itwill be commergially-viable 10 producs any
potdon of the resources. Unless otherwise specifisd. all dollar
amourts are expreszad: in Canadian dollarg, all references to
“dollars” or “$" are to Canadian dollars and all references 10 “Li8:8°
are o United States dellars. g

NON-GAAR FINANGIAL MEASURES

in this MDEA we refer to finarcialneasures that do nothave aoy
standardized meaning 4 presorbed by Canadian  generally
sncepted accounting principles ("GAAP™. These norni-GAAP
financial measures inchude cash fram operating activities ona per
Unit' basiz, net debt, total capitalizatan, refrn . on average’
Unitholder squity, return on avarage productive capital employed,
and cértain per barret measures. Cash from operating activities
per Unit is calculated as vash from operating activities reported on
the Trust’s Consolidated Statement of Cashi Flows divided by the -
welghted-average number of Urits outstanding in'the period. This
measure isan indicator of the Trust's capacity 19 fund capital
expendibues, distributions, and otherinvesting activities without
incremental financing. In addition, the Trust refers to vanous per
barret figures, such as nat realized seliing prices, operating costs
and Crown royalties: which also are considersd non-GAAP
measwres, but provide meaningful infarmation on'the performance
of the Trust. We derive per barrel figures by dividing the relevant
revenue or cast figurs by our sales net of purchasedierude ol
volumes i a pericd,

Neon-GAAR Hinancial measures provide additional information
that we believe 15 maaningful regarding the Trust's operational
performance, itg Hguidity and its capacity to fund distributions,
capital sipenditures and other mvesting activities,, Users ars
cautionad that nan-GAAP financal measuss presented by the Trugt
may not be comparable with msasures providec by othar entities,




Front cover photo We possess a valuable
resource. Syncrude’s oil sands deposit should
enable us to grow production to more than
500,000 barrels per day and produce at that
rate, with virtually no decline, for decades.’

In total, Canada’s oil sands hold 173 billion
barrels of crude oil, ranking second only to
Saudi Arabia in global oil reserves.

! See the “Reserves Data and Other Information”
section of Canadian Oil Sands’ Annual information
Form (AIF) dated March 13, 2009.

Corporate Profile

Canadian Oil Sands Trust is the
definitive investment in the ol
sands. With a 36.74% interest in
the Syncrude Project, we are the
only pure play on an asset that
epitomizes the best attributes of an
oil sands investment: high-quality
leases, a track record of successful
operations, a sustainable approach
to the development of our

long-life resource and a product -
nigh-quality, light, sweet crude

oil - that is essential to the global
economy. As an open-ended
investment trust, Canadian Oil
Sands has been generating income
from its Syncrude interest for our
nvestors since 1995, We are listed
on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol COS.UN.
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SUPERIOR QUALITY  With large, bitumen-rich
leases located in the sweet spot of the Athabasca
olf sands deposit and a fully integrated upgrading
facility that produces 100% light, sweet crude oil,
the quality of our Syncrude asset is exceptional,

THACK RECORD  Syncrude is an experienced oil
sands operator, producing a high-quality crude oil
for the past 30 years. Its track record is bolstered
by the expertise of Imperial Oil and ExxonMobil to
support improving operational performance and
project expansion into the future.

DISTRIBUTIONS PER QUARTER
(% per Trust Unit)

TOTAL UNITHOLDER RETURNS
(Capital appraciation + reinvestment
of all distributions/dividends)

Value of $100 invested on December 31, 2003

Q

% Annual
Return

Canadian Oif Sands Trust
W S&P TSX Energy Trust
N S&P TSX Composite Trust

SNDABLE  Syncrude's high-quality crude ol
resource provides a solid, fong-life cash generating
asset base. Capadian Oll Sands strives to protect
the long-term value of our asset through efficient
capital management and a strong balance sheet.

SUSTAINABLE Syncrude employs practices

to support the sustainable development of its
resource. [t invests in new ways 1o reduce its
impact an the environment and build relationships
with the communities in which it lives and operates.

ERSENTIAL  Crude oil is a major source of
energy for the world and Canada's oil sands are a
significant, growing and secure source of supply.
Ag an owner of one of the largest producers in
the oil sands, Canadian Ol Sands offers upside
axposure to rising crude oil prices.

CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
VS GAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(& miflions)

W Cash from Qperating Activities
Capital Expenditures

1 Based on January 28, 2009 Qutiook




2008 Highlights
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FINANCIAL {8 millions, w;mm par Trust Unit ammmm}

ases and transporta

Net incorme 743 105
Per Trust Unit, basic 1.55

1.54 105

Per Trust Unit, diluted )
Cash from oper;‘a%‘.émg activities 1,377 88
Per Trust Unit 2.87 62
Linithole 7

Per Trust Unit
RATIOS
Net debt to cash from opers
Net debt to total capl
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President’s Message

DEAR UNITHOLDER: The pe
turbulent for Canadian Ot Sands, a
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market overall. During the first nine months of 2008, crude
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production & 1009% upgraded light,
none of it is currently hedged, Our Syhisrudes Prolectis an
Hon, with a cos xthat reflec
orical investment and operating experience
ands. Syncrude hag capacity designed to
produce 350,000 barrels per day for decades, based on
an independant reserve evaluators 2008 estimate of
resarves . Furthermors, we have the ability to
substantially grow production.
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A PRUDENT FINANCIAL PLAN Canadian Oil Sands
entered 2009 in a solid financial position. Benefitting from
strong crude oil prices during most of 2008, we reported
cash from operating activities of $2.2 billion ($4.66 per
Trust unit) and net income of $1.5 billion ($3.17 per Trust
unit), increases of 63% and 105%, respectively, over
2007. We returned $3.75 per Unit to our investors, or
92% of our cash from operating activities less capital
expenditures. We achieved this while maintaining a strong
balance sheet with net debt of just under $1 billion at the
end of 2008 and a net debt to total capitalization ratio of
20%, largely unchanged from the prior year end.

Our task now, as we navigate through the economic
downturn is to maintain cur balance sheet strength
with an immediate objective of enhancing our liquidity
position and financial flexibility in light of tight credit
market conditions and low oil prices. We have about
$500 million of debt maturing in 2009, which we plan to
refinance through draws on our $840 million of credit
facilities, or by issuing new long-term debt. Distributions
during this period will likely more closely reflect our
expected cash from operating activities, net of capital
requirements; as such, the payout must reflect business
conditions, particularly crude oil prices.

We believe a net debt target of $1.6 billion by the end of
2010 is an appropriate capitalization level in anticipation
of converting to a corporate structure. This target should
allow tax pools to rise to an estimated $2 billion, which
would help defer the payment of cash taxes when trust
taxation takes effect in 2011; however, this net debt target
must be achieved without significantly increasing business
and liquidity risk. The $1.8 billion net debt level amounts
to approximately two times our estimated cash from
operating activities in a crude oil price environment of
about U.8.$50 per barrel.

SYNCRUDE FOCUSED ON RELIABILITY With

a prudent financial plan in place, our success should
reflect the performance of Syncrude’s operations. The
Management Services Agreement (MSA} with 25% owner,
Imperial Oll, which in turn is associated with ExxonMobil,
is directed at improving operational reliability. The goal

s vohuane geins, lower opsrating costs and more
afficient snargy use.

Unfortunately, our operational performance in 2008 was
below expectations. Syncrude produced 105.8 million
barrels, averaging 289,000 barrels per day, at a cost of
$35.26 per barrel. In 2007, Syncrude produced 5.5 million
barrels more, at roughly $10 less per barrel. Production
and costs during 2008 were affected by two planned
coker turnarounds, constrained bitumen production and

an operational upset during the first quarter. We believe
the upset was caused by an instrumentation failure, which
was exacerbated by very cold temperatures, leading to a
disruption of several operating units.

The M8A is a comprehensive, long-tarm approach
whose benefits should be realized over the coming
years, as new systems and processes are integrated
into the exdsting Synorude pperation. The objective is
to reach design capacity of 350,000 barrels per day by
the end of 2010. We continue fo be constrained in our
capacity to produce bitumen so we must improve the
reliability of our mining and extraction processes. In
addition to a targeted maintenance program, we are
expanding our mining equipment fleet and employing
contractor services to accelerate overburden removal
and expose more oil sands ore; this should optimize
blending and increase feed volumes to our extraction
plants. In upgrading, we plan to make modifications to
Coker 8-3 as part of its scheduled turnaround in the first
half of 2009. Coker 8-3 came into operation as part of our
Stage 3 expansion, and these modifications should help
increase the time it takes for coke residue to accumulate
within the vessel, thereby resulting in an improvement to
yield and expectations for run length.

Reducing per barrel operating costs is primarily a function
of increasing production volumes. Most of our operating
costs are fixed so the higher the volume we can process,
the lower our operating cost per barrel should be. Over
the past few years, we have experienced significant

cost inflation as a result of the increase in crude oil prices
and the rapid escalation of activity in the oil sands sector.
We helieve cosis will begin to moderate with the
decling in commodity prices and the resuiting
stowdown in development. The cost of energy-sensitive
consumables, such as natural gas, has already declined,
concurrent with the decrease in crude oil prices. Our
largest cost component, however, is labour and we
expect these costs to moderate more slowly.

Syncrude is in the design and front-end engineering
phase of its next two expansions; fortuitous timing as
we gan progress with our growth plans without having
1o incur the large capital costs associated with the later
construction phases. The cost to sustain our existing
operations. however, is expected to ramp up over the
next few years as we construct several large infrastructure
and environmental projects. In addition to the Syncrude
Emissions Reduction (SER) project to reduce sulphur
dioxide emissions, Syncrude will relocate four mining
trains. As mining progresses across a lease, the mining
and extraction facilities must be relocated to maintain



efficient haul distances. Synorude’s owners and bnperial
{4 have agreed to cooperats on the sngineering and
wrolect execution for these mine Waln designs and
moves. This should allow Synorudes 1o bensefit from
Imperial OiF's experience on the Kear! Lake project, and
1o incorporate now technology into our mine traln
retacations, As well, the same team will be executing this
work at both Syncrude and Kearl Lake. The resuit should
be better, larger capacity systems and a potential cost
savings from efficient execution.

In 2008 Syncrude’s owners reached an agreement with
the Alberta government on amended Crown royaity terms
for the Syncrude Project. In addition to the benefit of
having clear terms, we believe there is value in Syncrude
moving to a bitumen-based royaity rather than one based
on synthetic crude oil. This change became effective
January 1, 2009.

IS THIS DIRTY OIL? An organized, well-funded
campaign against the oil sands is underway to brand

us as “dirty oil”. Like all energy businesses, oil sands
development does have environmental impacts, but our
mitigation efforts are not well understood by the public
and the industry may not have communicated effectively
about the issues. Several oil sands producers, led by their
CEQOs ~ myself included ~ are working to change that.

We believe we need to foster a more balanced discussion
about the development of Canada’s oil sands. | would
encourage you to voice your opinion and hear what others
are saying by visiting www.canadasocilsands.ca.

O sands devslopment is condrolied by sivict,
government-approved environmental standards that
are among the most comprebensive in the world In
fact, the environmental and social responsibility record of
Canada’s oil sands producers compares very favourably
with other sources of crude oil for the U.S.

 would personally like to address some of the
misconceptions that we hear frequently concerning
our impacts on the land, water and the air.

it is often reported that oil sands development is destroying
huge swaths of Canada’s boreal forest, affecting an area
the size of Florida, In fact, oil sands mining is expected

to disturb 0.1% of Canada’s total boreal forest — about
one-third the size of the city of Edmonton — and the
Alberta government requires that industry reclaim and
return that land to a productive state.

A second misconception is that the oil sands are damaging
the Athabasca River; however, there are strict limits on
the amount of water that can be withdrawn and these
limits consider the seasonal flow of the river. Furthermore,

e

regular monitoring by the Alberta government shows no
impact on either ground or river water quality. Interestingly,
bitumen has been seeping naturally from the banks of the
Athabasca River for thousands of years.

Perhaps the most damaging misconception is the oil
sands’ impact on global warming. The oil sands account for
only 0.1% of global emissions. And while the oil sands are
criticized for emitting three times more carbon dioxide (COg)
than conventional crude oit from Saudi Arabia, when the full-
life cycle of emissions is taken into account, oil sands crude
oil is only 15% more intensive than Saudi light. We also
compare favourably with other sources of U.S. crude oil,
including: Venezuela, Mexico, iraq and even heavy thermal
it from California. That
is because oil sands
crude oil, although
emitting more during the
production phase, has
lower refining and
transport emissions.
The most significant
contribution to
grmnissions ~ arpund
BEY - s from the
actual conswmplion of
the orpde il by the
et user, largely for
ransporiation. An
effective climate change
policy must look at the
full picture.

CO, Emission Life Cycle Analysis
(kg CO2E tonnes per barrel)

Canadian Synthetic Crude Oil Blend

Source: Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers,
study by Tom McCann, 2001

Oil sands operators recognize we must try to do more
to improve environmental performance. The industry is
investing in the development of new technologies, such
as carbon capture and sequestration, to reduce the net
release of CO,. The industry has already significantly
reduced CO; emissions on an intensity basis, reporting
an impressive 27% decline since 1990 leveis.

The Alberta government requires large emitters to reduce
their CO, emissions intensity. Syncrude’s CO, emissions
intensity in 2007 was 11% lower compared to Alberta’s
CO, benchmark of 2003 to 2005 (data for 2008 is not

yet avatlable), Our aim is to continue making progress in
this area by improving energy efficiency throughout the
facility. We also are investing $1.8 billion for the
Syncrude Emissions Beduction (BER) project that is
designed 1o reduce sulphur compountd emigsions by
approximately 60% from cuent approved lovels when
sumpleted in about 2011, ExxonMobil is providing the
project management expertise for this undertaking.



in the area of land reclamation, we are collaborating with
other oil sands producers to explore new technologies for
tailings management. Tailings ponds are settling basins
that contain water from the exiraction process. They also
are an active part of the operation, enabling Syncrude

to recycle the water for use in its operation. Syncrude
recycles 80% of its water usage. The ponds contain
water, sand, clay and residual hydrocarbons, all naturally
occurring in oil sands deposits, though at higher
concentration due to the high water recycle ratio. The
clays in the water take a very long time to settle, making
reclamation of the ponds a decades-long process. The
technology Syncrude and others are developing is
directed at speeding up this process.

Syncrude’s environmental performance in 2008 was
marked by a high and a low point. Early in the year

we became the first oll sands operator 1o recaive
ceriification from the Alberta government for
raciaimsd land. About 104 hectares of land disturbed

by our operations was reclaimed and returned to the
province in its productive state. Then a few months

later, we experienced a major disappointment when

a flock of waterfow! landed on one of our tailings ponds
and drowned. The Province of Alberta and the federal
government have charged Syncrude with offences related
to this incident. In an effort to prevent such an occurrence
from happening again, Syncrude has improved its
deterrent mechanisms. The incident is unacceptable

and we are deeply sorry that it occurred.

Demonstrating to the world that the oil sands is a
sustainable, responsible business is crucial because of the
resource’s potential. Canada’s off sands offer the world
a secure, long-ife and growing supply of cruds oil.
Currently, the ol sands represent 45% of Canada’ total
orude ol supply. Much of that supply is exporied to the
UU.S., with Canadian oil representing 17% of U.S. imports.

STRONG FUNDAMENTALS FOR CRUDE OIL

Crude oil is an essential commodity. The U.S. Energy
information Agency acknowledged that crude oif will
remain the world’s main source of energy for many years
to come, even under the most optimistic expectaticns for
new technology development; however, the crude oil
business is becoming increasingly challenging. Adding
new supply is a relentless struggle against reservoir
decline rates and surging costs. The cost to find and
develop a conventional barrel of crude oil between

2000 and 2007 more than quadrupled to $18 per barrel
from $4 per barrel. It is a business that requires
substantial investment, which the current economic crisis
will only exacerbate. While the market is focused on

short-term demand weakness, the real problem — and our
opportunity - is long-term declining supply. Crude oil
prices will continue to be volatile, but | believe the trend is
toward rising prices over the longer term.

The value Canadian Oil Sands offers is upside leverage 1o
increasing crude oil prices. As the definitive investment in
the oil sands we offer:

» Current design capacity for Syncrude to produce
350,000 barrels per day of fully upgraded, light, sweet
crude oil for decades with virtually no decline.

» No large capital commitments for growth projects
on the immediate horizon. Our next expansion is a
debottleneck of the existing facilities, which shouid
enable us to bring on incremental production more
easily and at a lower cost than a greenfield expansion.

* A strong balance sheet, which enables us to execute
our long-term development strategy.

* Potential for an improved operation and cost
structure through a coordinated, managed strategy
o increase reliability.

* The capability to increase production by 22% from
2008 levels by achieving the current design capacity
of our Syncrude facility, the revenue from which largely
flows to our bottom line.

| believe the merits of investing in our Trust and the
outlock for our industry are very compelling. The
challenges we must manage over the near to mid-term
are the weak credit market, depressed crude oil prices
and the need to improve public perception of our
business. Gaining the public’s rust will come Hwough
cur commitment 1o responsible development and
demonstrated improvement in environmerdal
parformance. | am confident that new technology

and improving practices can lead {o better performance,
both in terms of the environment and operations.

in closing, | would like to thank our team, which includes
the dedicated professionals who support me at Canadian
Qil Sands and our Board of Directors for their guidance.

| also deeply appreciate the efforts of the people at
Syncrude Canada. Building on 30 years of operating
history, it is their dedication, perseverance and innovation
that will extend our established track record of improving
operations and environmental performance.

{signed) “Marcel R. Coutu”
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 26, 2009



Performance and Plan

Missed guidance
s Disruption in operations during Gt 2008
e Constrained bitumen supply

- $26.83 $35.26 x | Perbarrel operating costs up

. = Higher volumes of overburden removed and

increased use of contractors to support this

i activity

e Unbudgeted bitumen purchases

e Additional costs associated with the
operational upset in Q1 2008

e Higher natural gas prices and consumption

o | ower than anticipated production
{as aggregate operating costs are largely fixed,
per barrel operating costs are affected by
variances in production)

$3.24 $4.66 ¢ Exceeded original guidance

e Higher revenues reflecting higher than expected |
realized selling prices for our crude ofl, netof
increases in operating expenses, Crown royalties
and changes in non-cash working capital :

$279 %281 ¢ Essentially on budget

= Expenditures primarily related {o sustaining
capital and the Syncrude Emissions
Feduction (BER) project

$99.75

-$2.50 $1.94

$7.00 | $7.66

- $1.00 $0.94

| *2008 Cash from Operating Activities Sensitivities & & millions Snit
Syncrude operating cost decrease {Cdn $1.00/bb) $ 38 $ 0.07
Synerude operating cost decrease {Cdn $50 § 15 $ 0.03
W crude oif price increase (U.S. $1.00/bbh g 41 $ 008
Synerude prodguction increase (2 milion vols) $ 33 $ 007
Canadian doliar weakening (1.5, $0.01/Cdnd) & 24 $ 0.05
/ % 16 $ 003

) natural gas price decrease (Gdn $0.50/G.0)




40-44 ¢ Planned turnarounds of Coker 8-3, the LC-Finer and the Vacuum Distillation Unit
» Reliability challenges in the mining and extraction process
Mid-point
of 42.3
$30.76 * Higher estimated production
s | ower anticipated natural gas prices
s Use of contractor services to improve bitumen supply
$1.55 s | ower crude oil prices expected in 2009
» {ower Crown royalty
$440 ¢ Primarily relates to expenditures to sustain the existing operations, such as replacing equipmernt
* New spending on several large environmental and infrastructure projects, which include the
Syncrude Emissions Reduction (SER) project ($150 million budgeted in 2009)
$50.00
-$4.00
$6.00
$0.825

1 2008 Qutiook as at January 30, 2008, based on the Trust's 36.74% Syncrude interest.

2 2009 Qutlook as at January 28, 2009, based on the Trust's 36.74% Syncrude interest.

3 The Trust's sales volumes may differ from iis production volumes due to changes in inventory, which are primarily in-transit pipeline volumes, and
are net of purchased crude oil volumes.

4 Non-GAAP measure.

5 An opposite change in each of these variables will result in the opposite cash from operating activities impacts. Canadian Oif Sands may become
subject to minimum Crown royalties at a rate of 1% of gross bitumen revenue. The sensitivities presented herein assume royalties are paid at
25% of net bitumen revenue.
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Maintained net debt level under $1 billion with year-end
net debt to total capitalization of 20% and $840 million of
available liguidity from bank credit facilities

Reported net income of $1.5 billion {$3.17 per Trust Unit)
Reached cash from operating activities of $2.2 billion
{$4.66 per Trust Unit)

Achieved return on average productive capital employed
of 34%

Paid out $1.8 billion, or $3.75 per Trust Unit, in
distributions ~ an increase of 127% over 2007

Reduced fourth quarter 2008 distribution in response to
declining crude oil prices and credit market conditions

*

Cornpleted a maintenance program that included two
coker turnarounds and hydrogen plant modifications
Production of 289,000 barrels per day was below plan
of 315,000 barrels per day, largely due to challenges in
the reliability of the mining and upgrading operation and
the disruption in operations in Q1 2008

Syncrude's owners reached an agreement with the
Alberta government on new Crown royalty transition
terms, and elected to convert to a bitumen-based royalty
A fatality occurred at the Syncrude site. Syncrude’s
total recordable injury rate in 2008 was 0.58 for every
200,000 hours worked, compared with a rate of 0.70
recorded in 2007

L

*®

Syncrude’s owners approved procesding with scoping
engineering work for the Stage 3 debottieneck and
subsequent expansion stages

Continued to better define the resource estimates on
Syncrude’s leases, particularly the Aurora South leases
Evaluated opportunities to acquire additional oif sands
interasts, but did not identify an opportunity worth pursuing

®

&

Syncrude received the first reclamation certificate awarded
in the oil sands industry by the Alberta govarnment

A delay in deploying Syncrude's waterfow! deterrent
system foilowing a late winter storm resulted in the death
of waterfow! at the Aurora settling basin

Joined other ol sands developers 1o begin a dialogue with
the public on the development of Canada’s oil sands; for
more information, visit www.canadasoilsands.ca
Syncrude made a total sconomic contribution to Canada
of $6.4 billion {reflects operating and capital investment,
Crown royalties and other charges, and taxes)




Preserve liquidity and financial flexibility under current
difficult economic conditions

Maintain prudent financial leverage in the context of cash
from operating activities, capital requirements and
quarterly distributions

Refinance $500 million of maturing bonds in the debt capital
markets or through our $840 million of credit facilities
Achieve a return on average productive capital employed
of 6%

Reinstate Premium Distribution, Distribution Re-Investment
and Optional Unit Purchase Plan (DRIP) to preserve
balanice sheet equity and provide investors with options
to manage their distributions

* Increase net debt to $1.6 billion to set an efficient
capital structure beyond 2011, if prudent in light of
market conditions

* Establish the best structure for Canadian Oil Sands’
investors post 2010, which at this time appears to
be conversion to a corporation

®

Complete a turnaround of Coker 8-3, including
implementing modifications to reduce coke build-up
within the vessel

Complete turnarounds on the LC-Finer and Vacuum
Distillation Unit

Increase bitumen supply by accelerating overburden
removal and improving reliability of the mining and
extraction processes

Continue to focus on worker safety with more emphasis
on hazard recognition

* Establish sustained design capacity rates of 350,000
barrels per day

* Relocate mining trains

» Examine if there is a solution to recover ammonia produced
on-site in the operation of our flue gas desulphurizer

Proceed with the design and scoping engineering
work for Syncrude’s future expansion phases
Evaluate opportunities that may arise to purchase
additional interests in the Syncrude Project or other
oil sands assels

s Expand bitumen production capacity through
construction of more robust mining train systems as
part of mining train relocations

¢ Establish timing and cost estimates for the Stage 3
debottleneck and subsequent expansion phases to
proceed to project sanctioning by Syncrude owners

-

-

Respond to provincial and federal charges resulting from
the death of waterfowl at the Aurora settling basin in 2008,
and improve waterfow! deterrent mechanisms

Continue to foster a more balanced discussion with the
public on Canada’s oil sands and identify ways to
improve performance towards sustainabile development
Continue to invest at the Syncrude level to support
projects and organizations focused on enhancing the
quality of life in local communities

Spend $409 million ($150 million net to the Trust) on the
Syncrude Emissions Reduction project

Explore the viability of developing a large scale carbon
capture and storage system through participation in the
Integrated CO, Network {ICON)

+ Collaborate with other oil sands producers to develop
new technologies to improve the effectiveness of
tailings systems

Construct a pilot project for new tailings management
technology

Complete the Syncrude Emissions Reduction (SER)
project, which should lead to a 80% reduction in sulphur
dioxide emissions from 2008 approved levels

Implement further measures to reduce energy intensity,
thereby reducing operating costs and carbon dioxide
emissions

Explore new technologies and better practices to reduce
our impact on the environment




The Syncrude Project
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Reserves and Resources Table |
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SIGNIFICANT GROWTH POTENTIAL Svyncrude’s
reserve base could support production of rmore than
500,000 barrels per day for decades. The design of
the next two stages of expansion has already begun
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construction is dependent on strict

capital and operating cost criteria, as well

aConomic,

as environmental g‘){-}rf@m‘aanca and the approval of
all Synorude owners, The sconomics of the next

n project, the Stage 3 debottieneck,
s.upp@;ft@d by existing o
50.000 barrels per day of

P

come onstream without ha

oking capacity, enaﬂiéng about
additional production o

ing to construct primary
upgrading capability. Under the Management Services
Agreement, bxxonMobil will provide the project

management sarvices for Syncrude’s future expansions.

HIGH-GUALITY LEABES Syne

bast rasource positions in the
in the Athabasca Ol Sands deposit spanning over

industry with leases

foy

100,000 hectares. Its leases are in the “sweet spot”

men degﬁgitss‘ These

of some of the richest bitu
5 are near the

surface, aliowing © pit
anded, modernized

ity produces 100%

5

we's newly exp

B

high~quiality, swee

ic crude oil.

e
«/J

e rore fully described
on of Canadie
farch 13, 2009,

SOLSes have {i¢k$ and uncert

%

CONTRIBUTIONS TO CANADA'S ECONOMY

5,277 Syncrude @mp%ovces 89% ratention rate
2008

$10 billion paid in government royalties and taxes
since start-up in 1978, $1.6 hillion In 2008 alons

327 bittion spent on goods and services in 2008,
38% was sourced inCanada

$1.2 billion spent with companies owned by First
Nations, Metis or other Abatiginal communities
over the past 15 years, Syncride is one of the
iargest employers of Aboriginal people in Canada
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Environmental Sustainability

Sustainable development is critical to the long-term success of the Syncrude Project. Throughout its 30-year
history, Syncrude’s commitment to sustainability is evident in its investment of time and resources o minimize
environmental impacts. Operating under some of the most stringent environmental laws in the world, Syncrude
devotes more than $40 million annually towards the development of new technologies and more efficient
processes. Syncrude is continuing to explore new ways to reduce impacts on land, water and air. More details
about Syncrude’s activities can be found in its Sustainability Report, available at www.syncrude.com. For more
information on the oil sands industry, visit www.canadasoilsands.ca.

LAND

The total land available for mining bitumen covers about
3,400 square kilometers, or 0.1% of Canada’s boreal
forest. To date, about 500 square kilometers have been
disturbed during more than 40 years of oil sands mining.
Alberta laws require that disturbed land be reclaimed to
a sustainable landscape with productivity that is equal
or greater than which existed prior to development.
Development projects are not approved by regulators
without a comprehensive closure and reclamation plan
that details the final land use, much of which will include
a self-sustaining boreal forest capable of supporting
native vegetation and wildlife. Producers must set aside
funds to pay for this redevelopment.

The laws also include the reclamation of tailings ponds.
Tailings are a mixture of water, clay, sand and residual
biturmen produced through the oil sands extraction
process. Tailings are stored in large settling basins (or
ponds}. The ponds enable the recycle of water back into
plant processes and are an active part of the operation.

In 2009, Alberta introduced new reguirements that
will challenge the oil sands mining industry to reduce
tailings and accelerate their reclamation. The indusiry
is exploring methods to improve the effectiveness

of tailings systems in order to comply with these

new requirements.

PARTNERS IN SUSTAINABILITY

Syncrude is a platinum level participant in
the Stewardship initiative of the Canadian
ssociation of Petroleum Producers; this
designation certifies that our SHE
management systems and performance
are audited by independent third parties.

Syncrude is a participant in the Towards
Sustainabie Mining (TSM) initiative of the
Mining Association of Canada, which is a
strategy for improving the sustainability
performance of Canada’s mining industry.

SYNCRUDE - INDUSTRY LEADER IN RECLAMATION
A eritical component of Syncrude’s operation is the
reclamation of areas disturbed by mining. To date, about
22% of disturbed land has been reclaimed and five million
frees and shrubs planted. Syncrude leads the industry with
miore than 4,500 hectares reclaimed. In 2008, Syncrude’s
Gateway Hill was the first reclaimed area in the oil sands to
recejve official certification from the £ berta government.

Syncrude is actively researching new :echnologies to
incorporate tallings materials into reciaimed landscapes,
with the implementation of two methods currently
underway. The first'is water capping of mature fine

tails to form a fresh-water lake; 20-years of research
indicates that this method is conducive 16 establishing
and supporting a healthy aquatic ecosystem Tailings
materials are now being deposited and the fresh water
layer will be added in 2012, The second involves creating
a dry landscape by depositing alayer of capping.sand .

- over a foundation of composite tailings. Soil capping and
planting is'expected to occur from 2010 to 2015, Itis

. envisioned: that thlS area will evolve into one similar to its
pre—dlsturbance state = a mixture of mdugenous aspen,
and white spruce forests; grassland and marshy wetlands.

Syncrude is a member of Canadian
Business for Social Responsibility
{CBSR), a business-led, non-profit
Corporate Social Responsibility
consultancy and peer-to-peer
learning organization, CBSR provides
its members with candid counsel and
customized advisory services 1o
improve their social, environmental
and financial performance.

. CANADIAN
BUSINESS

FOR 30818%
RESPOASIMUTY

Syncrude is accredited at the Gold

Level in the Progressive Aboriginal
Relations (PAR) Program of the Canadian
Counci for Aboriginal Business. PAR
measures corporate performance in
Aboriginal employment, business
development, capacity development

and community relations.

Syncrude is a participant i

Integrated CO; Network, or iICON,
which is exploring the viability of large
scale carbon capture, transportation
and storage for a cross-section of
-Canadian industry.




WATER

Major strides have been made by the oil sands
industry to reduce fresh water consumption and the
research is continuing. Alberta Environment regulates
the amount of water that industries can use.

Total Water Allocation in Alberta
{includes surface and groundwater}

Combined Agriculture Municipal 11.2%

45.5%

Oil & Gas Industry
7.2%

Other 5.2%

Commercial 31.0%

Source: Alberta Environment, 200:

New technologies for managing water use are being
pursued by the Centre of Oil Sands Innovation (COSI),
founded by Imperial Oil in parinership with the
University of Alberta and Alberta Ingenuity, with
funding from public and private groups. One area
being investigated is an extraction process for oil
sands mining that would significantly reduce fresh
water use and could result in the production of dry or
“stackable” tailings, which potentially could eliminate
the need for large tailings ponds.

The oif and gas industry’s allocation of licensed water, including the oil
sands, is just over 7% of the Alberta t¢ yoically, only one-third of
that allocation is used by the ol and gas industry.

The Athabasca River is the largest river flowing through
the oil sands region and is the primary source of fresh
water for operations. Strict limits for water withdrawals
are set by the Alberta government based on fluctuating
levels of the river. During low flow winter months,
federal and provincial government authorities
impilement restrictions that are revisited weekly.

Less than 3% of the average annual flow of the
Athabasca River can be withdrawn by existing and
approved oil sands projects; the industry typically
uses less than 1% of the river’s average annual flow,
if all mining projects currently planned go forward,
that figure is projected to grow 10 2%. Even with the
anticipated growth in oil sands activity, the Athabasca
River basin is expected to remain one of the least
used in Alberta.

WATER MONITORING & RESEARCH The Regicnal
Aguatics Monitoring Program is a multi-stakeholder
group that assesses and responds to potential effects
of oil sands development on rivers and lakes in the
region, It is one of the largest programs in the world in
terms of chemical, biclogical and geographic scope.
Monitoring by this group of the upstream and
downstream water quality, as well as fish species and
habitat, has not detected any significant changes in
the Athabasca River or other water bodies.
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intensity by 10%
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Greenhouse gas {GHG) emissions are a global issue and
reducing the emissions associated with hydrocarbon
production and consumption is crucial. Carben dioxide
{COy) is a major greenhouse gas. Efforts are focused on
improving energy efficiency to reduce these emissions
on a per barrel of production basis. This is known as
reducing emissions “intensity”. CO, intensity for the oil
sands industry has fallen by 27% since 1990.

The industry also is exploring the potential for carbon
capture and storage (CCS) technology. If successiul, a
portion of the captured CO, will be used for enhanced
oil recovery in the conventional oil industry and the
remainder will be sequestered indefinitely in secure
geological formations. The CO, capture is envisaged
as removing the equivalent of about four million cars
from the road. The province of Alberta has committed
$2 billion for the development of CCS technology, the
largest investment in‘the world.

Continuous monitoring in the Fort McMurray region
indicates that air quality arocund the oil sands operations
is better than-all North American cities reviewed by the
Alberta Clean Air Strategic Alliance. Alberta’s air quality
standards are the most stringent in Canada. Exiensive
modsling indicates that the Fort McMurray region’s air
quality will remain within these strict standards, even
after all projected oil $ands development has occurred.

Global Energy Related Emissions by Country

Europe 17% China 20%

H O/
Eurasia 9% USA 22%

Japan 4%
India 4%
Canada 2%

Australia 1% Other 21%

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration, 2005

jlobal scale. Canada accounts for ab
; a's oil sands industry contributes rou
GHG emissions.

t 2% of global emissions.
0.1% of the world's

Canada’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Sector

Transportation 25% Other Industry 14%

1 O
Agriculture 9% R

Electricity & Heat
Generation 16%

Buildings 10%

Qil & Gas, Excluding

Solvent & Waste 4% Oil Sands 18%

Source: Environment Canada

The oll sands industry accounts for 5% of Canada’s total greenhouse
gas emissions,
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Management’s
Discussion & Analysis

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (*MD&A”) was prepared as of February 26, 2009 and should be read in conjunction
with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (“Canadian Qil Sands” or the “Trust”) for
the years ending December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The Trust's financial results have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and are reported in Canadian dollars, unless stated otherwise.

ADVISORY ~ In the interest of providing the Trust's Unitholders
and potential investors with information regarding the Trust,
including Management's assessment of the Trust’s future production
and cost estimates, plans and operations. certain statements
throughout this MD&A and the related press release contain
“forward-looking statements” under applicable securities law.
Forward-looking statements in this MD&A include, but are not
limited to, statements with respect to: expectations regarding crude
off prices ard the global credit market and its anticipated impact on
Canadian Oil Sands in 2009; the estimate of recoverable reserves
and resources; intentions with respect to future distributions;
expectations regarding future Crown royalty payments and the
royalty regime to be in place past 2015; the plan to convert to a
corporate structure around 2011, the expected increase in the
Trust's depreciation and depletion rate; the expected impact on the
Trust and distributions and the expected structure to be assumed
given the federal government’s tax changes effective in 2011, the
impact that continued credit market turmoil and low crude prices
may have on distributions; the belief that debt covenants will not
influence the Trust’s liquidity in the foreseeable future or fimit the
Trust's ability to pay distributions; expectations regarding the
sustainability of operations at certain levels of WTI prices; future
distributions and any increase or decrease from current payment
amounts; plans regarding refinancing of the 2009 debt maturities
and views on future credit markets, accessibility of capital markets,
and availability of financing and the impact on distributions; the befief
that operational reliabiity will improve over time and with that
improvement that operating costs will be reduced; the expected
level of sustaining capital for the next few years and longer term; the
expectations regarding bitumen purchases, capital expenditures and
operating costs; the cost estimate for the Syncrude Emissions
Reduction (“SER") project and the expectation that the SER project
will significantly reduce total sulphur dioxide and other emissions;
the completion date for the SER project: the expected impact of
any current and future environmental legisiation, including without
fimitation, requilations relating to tailings; the expectation that there
wilf not be any material funding increases relative to Syncrude’s
future reclamation costs or pension funding for the next year; the
belief that the Trust will not be restricted by its net debt to total
caprtalization financial covenant; the expected realized selfing price,
which includes the anticipated differential to WTI, to be received in
2008 for Canadian Qi Sands’ product: the expectation that no crude
oif hedges will be entered into in the future: the potential amount
payable in respect of any future income tax liability; the plans
regarding future expansions of the Syncrude Froject and in
particular all plans regarding Stage 4 development; the level of
energy consurnption in 2009 and beyond; capital expenditures for
2009, the level of natural gas consumption in 2009 and beyond, the
expected price for crude oif and natural gas in 2008, the expected
production, revenues and operating costs for 2009; and the
anticipated impact that certain factors such as natural gas and oif
prices, foreign exchange and operating costs have on the Trust's
cash from operating activities and net incarne. You are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statemerits, as there
can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon
which they are based will occur, By their nature. forward-locking
statements involve numerous assumptions, known and unknown

risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, that contribute to
the possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other
forward-fooking statements will not occur. Aithough the Trust
believes that the expectations represented by such forward-looking
statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such
expectations will prove to be correct. Some of the risks and other
factors which could cause results to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward-looking staterments contained in this
MD&A include, but are not limited to: the impacts of regulatory
changes especially as such relate to royatties, taxation, and
environmental charges, the impact of technology on operations and
processes and how new complex technology may not perform as
expected; skilled labour shortages and the productivity achieved
from labour in the Fort McMurray area; the supply and demand
metrics for ofl and natural gas; the impact that pipeline capacity and
refinery demand have on prices for our products; the unanimous
joint venture owner approval for major expansions; the variances of
stock market activities generaily, global economic environment;
market volatility; normal risks associated with litigation, general
economic, business and market conditions; regulatory change, and
such other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in the
reports and filings made with securities regulatory authorities by the
Trust. You are cautioned that the foregoing list of impontant factors
is not exhaustive. No assurance can be given that the final legislation
implementing the federal tax changes regarding income trusts wifl
0t be further changed in a manner that adversely affects the Trust
and fts Unitholders. Furthermore, the forward-looking statements
coritained in this MD&A are made as of the date of this MD&A, and
unless required by law. the Trust does not unidertake any obligation
to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. The forward-fooking statements contained in this MDSA
are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.
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BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Canadian Oil Sands is an open-ended investment trust
that has been generating income from its oil sands
investment in the Syncrude Joint Venture (“Syncrude”)
for over 13 years. The Trust's 36.74 percent working
interest is the largest of seven owners and represents
the only pure-play public investment opportunity in the
project. Canadian Oil Sands increased its Syncrude
ownership early in 2007 with the acquisition of an
additional 1.25 percent working interest. In 2006 the
Trust owned a 35.49 percent interest in Syncrude.

Syncrude is located near Fort McMurray, Alberta and
currently operates oil sands mines, utilities plants,
bitumen extraction plants and an upgrading complex
that processes bitumen into a high-quality, low sulphur,
light synthetic crude oil (“SCGO”). The bitumen is
open-pit mined from oil sands leases located in the
Athabasca oil sands deposit. Syncrude is operated by
Syncrude Canada Ltd. (*Syncrude Canada”) on behalf
of the Syncrude owners. Each joint venture owner has
an undivided interest in the assets of the Syncrude
Project, takes its oil production in kind and funds its
proportionate share of Syncrude’s operating and
capital expenditures on a daily basis. While Syncrude
Canada is responsible for the daily operations, a
Management Committee of the joint venture owners,
as well as other various Management sub-committees,
and Syncrude Canada’s Board of Directors, staffed by
the Syncrude owners, oversee and approve significant
Syncrude expenditures and long-term strategies.

Syncrude’s facilities have the design capability to
produce approximately 375,000 barrels per day (“bpd”)
when operating at full capacity under optimal
conditions and with no downtime for maintenance or
turnarounds. This daily production capacity is referred
to as “barrels per stream day”. Under normal operating
conditions, scheduled downtime is required for
maintenance and turnaround  activities and
unscheduled downtime will occur as a result of
mechanical problems, unanticipated repairs and other
slowdowns. When allowances for such downtime
are included, the daily productive capacity of
Syncrude’s facilities is approximately 350,000 bpd on

average and is referred to as “barrels per calendar day”.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to Syncrude’s
productive capacity in the following discussions refer to
barrels per calendar day.

Canadian Oil Sands has proved plus probable reserves
of approximately 1.8 hillion barrels of SCO, representing
its share of Syncrude’s North, Aurora North and Aurora
South leases. Based on current productive capacity of
approximately 129 million barrels annually, or 47 million
barrels net to the Trust, Syncrude’s estimated proved
plus probable reserve life is approximately 38 years.

Based on evaluations performed by our independent
petroleum reserve evaluators effective December 31,
2008, Canadian Oil Sands estimates Syncrude’s
proved plus probable reserves of 4.9 billion barrels
(1.8 billion barrels net to the Trust), its best estimate
contingent resources of 5.4 billion barrels (2.0 billion
barrels net to the Trust) and its best estimate
prospective resources of 2.2 billion barrels (0.8 billion
barrels net to the Trust). More information regarding
Canadian Qil Sands’ reserves and resources can be
found in the “Reserves Data and Other Information”
section in our 2008 Annual Information Form (“AlF”)
dated March 13, 2009 at www.sedar.com or on our
website at www.cos-trust.com.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Canadian Oil Sands funds its share of Syncrude’s
operations and capital expenditures, along with our
own administrative and financing costs, acquisitions
and distributions, through cash generated from the sale
of Syncrude preduction and debt and equity financing.

Cash from operating activities and the distributions
paid to Unitholders are highly dependent on the net
selling price received for SCO, production and sales
volumes, operating costs and other expenses,
including Crown royalties. The price we receive for our
product, net of crude oil purchases and transportation
expense, reflects the realized selling price at the
Syncrude plant gate for our sales of SCO production.
Historically. our realized selling price has correlated
closely to the Canadian dollar denominated West Texas
Intermediate (“WT1") benchmark oil price, and has been
impacted by movements in United States (“U.S.”)/
Canadian foreign exchange rates. World events and



supply and demand fundamentals create volatility in
crude ol prices, in addition to impacting the weighted-
average price differential of our SCO product relative to
Canadian dollar WT! prices {the “price differential™). This
price differential can quickly move from a premium to a
discount depending on the supply/demand dynamics in
the market.

Production volumes reflect the capacity of the
Syncrude facility and the reliability of its operations,
The process of mining, extracting and upgrading
bitumenis a technical and complex operation requiring
regular maintenance of operating units, thereby
affecting production volumes, and consequently,
revenues and operating costs. An oll sands operation
such as Syncrude’s is essentially a manufacturing
business, whereby reliability is a critical success factor
as costs are largely fixed. If the facility can process
more barrels, per barrel costs are reduced and the
economics. of the project are enhanced. Furthermors,
reduced reliability may increase repair or maintenance
costs, .compounding the impact of lower volumes
on per barrel operating costs. Syncrude’s operations

ENTERPRISE VALUE AT DECEMBER 31
Market Capitalization + Net Debt ($ billions)

are subject to a number of risks that are discussed
in further detail in the Risk Management section of
this MD&A.

The Trust’s production veolumes differ from its sales
volumes due to changes in inveniory, which reflects
in-transit pipeline volumes and varies according to
production rates. The growth in production from the
completion of Stage 3 facilities late in 2008 required
Canadian Ofl Sands to access more distant markets on
additional pipelines, which generally increases pipeline
inventory volumes.

The Trust strives to maintain a strong balance sheet and
investment grade credit ratings to facilitate access to
capital markets if required to finance its business. The
Trust also currently intends to pay distributions o our
Unitholders with cash generated from the operations
thatis not required for financing Syncrude’s operations
or capital investment and growth opportunities.

More information regarding Canadian Ol Sands,
including our AlF, is available at www.sedancom or on
our website at www.cos-trust.com,

MARKET CAPITALIZATION AT DECEMBER 31
($ bitlions}




REVIEW OF SYNCRUDE OPERATIONS

Syncrude’s annual in 2008 totalled
105.8 million barrels, or 289,000 barrels per day, a
decrease of 5.5 million barrels from the prior year.
Production net to the Trust totalled 38.9 million barrels
in 2008 compared with 40.9 million barrels in 2007.

production

In addition to planned coker turnarounds during the
second and fourth quarters, production in 2008 was
impacted by constrained bitumen production and by a
disruption in- operations during the first quarter which
was compounded by extremely cold weather. By
comparison, annual 2007 production was impacted by
unplanned maintenance on Coker 8-3 and Coker 8-2,
and planned maintenance on other units.

Operating costs during 2008 averaged $35.26 per
barrel, up $10.03 per barrel from 2007, The increase
primarily reflects: higher volumes of overburden
removed in 2008 than 2007 with increased use of
contractors to support this activity; cost. inflation;
un-budgeted bitumen purchasss during the first half of
2008; additional costs associated with an operational
upset in the first quarter 2008; and higher natural gas
consumption and prices in 2008. Lower production
volumes in 2008 compared with 2007 also contributed
to higher per barrel operating costs. Operating cosis

CANADIAN OIL SANDS’ AVERAGE DAILY SALES
(mbbis per day)
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are discussed more fully in the “Operating Costs”
section of this MD&A.

Canadian Oil Sands markets its'own share of Syncrude
production, which is transported by various pipelines to
refineries throughout Canada and the U.S. During the
third quarter of 2007, Syncrude fransitioned ils
production volumes from its historical Syncrude™
Sweet Blend (“SSB”) quality level to a higher quality
Syncrude™ Sweet Premium (“SSP”} blend; which we
expected would increase the amount of Syncrude
production our customers could process. While we
cannot confirm if the switch to the SSP blend has
increased demand for Syncrude products, several of
our customers have increased the amount of Syncrude
production that they purchase. As we cannot produce
$SB at the same time as SSKE we cannot determine if
the move to SSP has resulted.in thefinancial benefits
we originally expected-to achieve. Commencing in
2007, we began using the term “synthetic crude oil”,
or “SCO7, in lieu of the terms 5SB and 88F, to refer to
Syncrude’s production of synthetic crude oll and our
sales volumes thereof.

In November 2008, Syncrude Canada entered into
a Management Services Agreement {“MSA"} with
imperial Oll Resources Lid. {("lmperial OI1"} with an

CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(8 per Trust Unit) 1

04 05 06 07 08
1 Non-GAAP measure



initial term of 10 years. The goal of the MSA is to
improve Syncrude’s operating reliability and reduce
energy intensity, as well as identify capital and operating
cost efficiencies through the utilization of Imperial Qil
and ExxonMobil's global expertise in the areas of
operational, technical and business management
services. The MSA also provides Syncrude Canada
with access to additional skilled labour resources from
Imperial Oil and ExxonMobil to somewhat mitigate the
shortage in the Fort McMurray area.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In the first nine months of 2008, the Trust reported
record results, primarily as a result of high crude oll
prices. However, in the last quarter of 2008 an economic
slowdown in the United States and Canada impacted
access to credit markets, commodity pricing and
foreign exchange rates. During this time, U.S. dollar
WTI prices decreased from approximately $101 per
barrel at September 30, 2008 to approximately $45 per
barrel at December 31, 2008, and the U.S. to Canadian
dollar exchange rate went from $0.94 to $0.82.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

For the first two months of 2009 oil prices have
averaged approximately $41 U.S. per barrel and the
U.S. to Canadian dollar exchange rate has averaged
$0.81. The Trust prepared its 2009 budget based on
$50 U.S. WTl per barrel and a U.S. to Canadian dollar
exchange rate of $0.825. As at February 26, 2009 some
entities have been able to access credit markets to
obtain financing; however, new financing is at a
significantly higher cost than in prior years. The Trust
continues to monitor the business environment in
preparing guidance, setting distribution levels and
managing its capital structure.

Syncrude continued to experience inflationary
pressures in 2008 as a result of significant activity in
the oil sands. While the annual results demonstrate
the strong business environment that existed for most
of 2008, they do not entirely reflect the significant
deterioration in market conditions that occurred in the
last quarter and into 2009. Financial statement users
should be alert to these changes as they review the

information contained within this MD&A.

(& mutiions, except per Trust Unit amounts) 2008 2007 2006
Revenues, after crude oil purchases and transportation expense $ 4,169 $ 3.250 $ 2432
Net income 1,523 743 834

Per Trust Unit, basic 3.17 1.55 1.79

Per Trust Unit, diluted 3.16 1.54 1.78
Cash from operating activities 2,241 1.377 1,142

Per Trust Unit 4.66 2.87 2.45
Total assets 6,933 7.271 6,532
Net debt® 979 950 1,291
Total other fong-term liabilities 2 334 354 273
Unitholder distributions per Trust Unit 3.75 1.65 1.10

! Long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents. Non-GAAP measure.
2 This balance includes employee future benefits and other liabilities as well as the Trust’s asset retirement obligation.

Average net realized SCd"s'ei'!ih'é' price before
currency hedging ($/bbi) 1

Average West Texas Intermediate U.S.8/bbj)

Premium (Discount) price differential (Can$/bbi} !

Average foreign exchange rates (U.5.$/Cdn$)

2008 2007 2006

$ 106.81 $ 79.02 $ 71.96
99.75 72.36 66.25
1.94 1.63 (2.57)
0.94 0.93 0.88

1 Based on a volume weighted-average calculation.



Net income per Barrel

(S perbb) 2008 2007 2006
Revenues after crude oif purchases and transportation expense $ 107.47 $ 79.28 $ 7256
Operating costs {35.26) (25.23) {27.07)
Crown royalties {15.44) {11.83) {(8.93)
Netback $ 56.77 $ 42.23 $ 38.56
Non-production costs {2.00) {1.54} (2.08)
Administration and insurance {0.61) {0.69) {0.65)
interest, net {1.75) {2.08) {2.93)
Depreciation, depletion and accretion {11.46) {8.56) (7.61)
Foreign exchange gain {(loss) {4.09) 2.86 0.18
Earnings before taxes 36.36 32.22 25.45
Future income tax recovery (expense) and other 2.39 {14.12) {0.53)
Net income per barrel $ 30.25 $ 18.10 $ 24.92
Sales volumes (mnibbls) 2 388 41.0 33.5

1 Unless otherwise specified, netincome and other per barref measures in this MD&A have heen derived by dividing the refevant

revenue or cost ftem by the sales volumes in the period.
2 Sales volumes, net of purchased crude off volumes.

The increase in revenues for 2008 relative to 2007 was
primarily due to higher realized annual SCO selling
prices partially offset by lower 2008 sales volumes. The
increase in revenuss for 2007 relative to 2006 was
dus to: increased SCO selling prices, additional
sales volumes from the acqguisition of an additional
1.25 percent Syncrude interest in January 2007, and a

NETBACK AFTER HEDGING
($ per bbi)

=

full year of Stage 3 expansion volumes in 2007 versus
only four months of Stage 3 expansion volumesfor 2006;

The higher 2008 realized SCO selling price versus .
2007, and 2007 compared with 2006, was primarily due
to increased U.S. dollar WT prices for crude oil. During
2008 and 2007, Canadian Oi Sands also received a
premium for ifs crude relative 1o Canadian dollar WTH,
which was in contrast to'a discount received in 2008.

Net income increased in 2008 over 2007 primarily as a
result of increased revenues and lower income taxes
offset by higher operating costs, Crown rovalty charges,
and depreciation, depletion and accretion ("DD&A™)
expenses. In 2007, nat incoma was reduced by a one
time $701 million future income tax charge following
the substantive enactment of trust taxation. Net income
decreased in 2007 relative to 2008 as a result of
increased revenues that wera more than offset by the
impacts of the one time future income tax charge,;
higher Crown royalties and higher operating expenses
associated with the increase in production volumaes.

Total operating costs increased in 2008 to $1,368
million versus $1,034 million and $807 million in 2007
and 20086, respectively. Costs have increased during
the 2006 to 2008 time period mainly as a result of



additional equipment and a larger workforce 10 operate
expanded facilities at Syncrude following the
completion of the Stage 3 project, rising costs for
materials and labour in the Fort McMurray area, a larger
Syncrude working interest and additional costs for
contract equipment and operators to move more
overburden and oil sands. Further information regarding
the increase in operating costs for 2008 relative to
2007 is provided in the “Operating Costs” section of
this MD&A,

In 2008 Canadian Oil Sands incurred $599 million in
Crown royalties versus $485 million in 2007 and
$232 million in 2008. The increase in Crown royalty
axpense was primarily due io increased revenues,
offset
expenditures. In addition, the increase in 2008 and 2007
Crown royalties relative to 2006 was impacted by the

by higher operating costs and capital

shift to a higher 25 percent royalty rate which occurred
in the second guarter of 2006 when the major capital
expenditure related to Stage 3 was completed.

Foreign exchange gains and losses during the years
are primarily attributable to the impact of foreign
exchange rate changes on U.S. dollar denominated
debt, Unrealized foreign exchange losses on long-term

debt totalled $204 million in 2008 versus unrealized
foreign exchange gains of $153 million and $1 million in
2007 and 2006, respectively.

DD&A expense in 2008 totalled $444 million versus
$351 million for 2007 and $255 million for 20086. Total
DD&A was impacted by changes in production
volumes and changes in the per barrel depreciation
and depletion (“D&D") rate. On a per barrel of
production basis the D&D rate was $11.07, $8.31 and
$7.34 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Per barrel
D&D rates have increased mainly as a result of
increased future development cost estimates and the
acquisition of an additional Syncrude working interest
in 2007, Discussion of the Trust’s future D&D rates is
provided in the "Depreciation, Depletion and Accretion
Expense” saection of this MD&A.

Cash from operating activities totalled $2,241 million,
or $4.66 per Unit; compared with $1,377 million, or
$2.87 per Unit in 2007, and $1,142 million, or $2.45
per Unit in 2008. Changes. in revenues, operating
expenses and Crown rovalties impacted cash from
operating activities. Changes in non-cash working
capital impacted cash from operating activities as
provided in the following table:

Years ended Decamber 31 (8 milfions) 2008 2007 2006
Cash from {used in) changes im
Accounts receivable $ 185 $. (135) $  @n

Inventories 9 {18y 3
Prepaid expenses 1 1 {4
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {5) (15} 23
Less: A/P reclassed to investing and other 2 2 47
Change in operating non-cash working capital $ 202 § (165 $ 22

25 |



Working capital changes and the resulting impact on
our cash from operating activities are difficult to predict
due to the many variables that influence the changes.
Non-cash working capital and changes therein vary on
a period-by-period basis as a result of the timing and
settlements of accounts receivable and accounts
payable balances, and are impacted by a number of
factors including changes in revenue, operating
expenses, Crown royalties, the timing of capital
expenditures, and changes in inventory balances.

Net debt comprised of long-term debt less cash and
cash equivalents, increased to $979 million at
December 31, 2008 from $950 million at December 31,
2007, mainly as a result of cash from operating activities
less capital expenditures, debt repayments, Unitholder
distributions, plus unrealized foreign exchange losses
in 2008 on the revaluation of U.S. dollar denominated
debt: Relative to December 31, 20086, net debt
decreased $312 million at December 31, 2008; mainly
as a result of cash from operating activities less
Unitholder distributions and debt repayments.

Canadian Off Sands’ Asset Retirement Obligation
{“ARQ”} liability, which represents the present value of
our share of the estimated environmental reclamation
costs of the Syncrude Project, totalled $235 million at
the end of 2008, $226 million in 2007 and $173 million
in 2006. Canadian Oil Sands’ 2008 ARO rose over 2007
as g result of cost inflation adjustments, while the
increase in 2007 over 2006 was the result of increased
cost estimates to comply with new material handling
requirements in accordance with provincial regulations.

The Trust paid distributions totalling $3.75 per Unit
in 2008 compared with $1.65 per Unit in 2007 and
$1.10 per Unit in 2008. The rise in distributions mainly
reflected strang crude oll prices and lower capital costs
over the three year period.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In this MD&A we refer to financial measures that do not
have any standardized meaning as prescribed by
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP"). These non-GAAR financial measures include
cash from operating activities on a per Unit basis, net
debt, total capitalization, net debt to total capitalization,
return on average Unitholder squity, return on average
productive capital employed, and certain per barrel
measures. Cash from operating activities per Unit'is
calculated as cash from operating activities reported
on the Trust's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
divided by the weighted-average number of Units
outstanding in the period. This measure Is an indicator
of the Trust’s capacityto fund capital expenditures;
distributions, and other investing activities without
incremental financing. In addition, tha Trust refers to
various per barrel figures; such as net realized selling
prices, operating costs and:Crown rovalties, which also
are considered non-GAAP measures, but provide
meaningful information on the performance of the Trust.
We derive per barrel figures by dividing the relevant
ravenue or cost figure by our sales volumes, which are
net of purchased crude ofl volumes in a period;

Non-GAAR financial measures provide additional
information that we believe is meaningful regarding the
Trust's operational performance; its lquidity and its
capacity to fund distributions, capital expenditures and
other investing activities. Users are cautioned that
non-GAAP financial measures presented by the Trust
may not be comparable with measures provided by
other entities:



SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

(% mittions, except per Trust Unit 2008
and volume amounts) a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual
Revenues ! $ 907 $ 1,177 $ 1,381 $ 704 $ 4,189
Net income {loss) 298 497 804 124 1,523
Per Trust Unit, Basic 0.62 1.04 1.25 0.26 3.7
Per Trust Unit, Diluted 0.62 1.04 1.25 0.26 3.16
Cash from operating activities 441 4138 921 466 2,241
Per Trust Unit2 0.92 0.86 1.81 0.97 4.66
Unitholder distributions 360 481 602 361 1,804
Per Trust Unit 0.75 1.00 1.25 0.75 3.75
Daily average sales volumes pois/d) 2 99,181 97,744 116,656 110,197 105,986
Net realized selling price %/ 4 100.41 131.32 127.55 69.40 106.91
Operating costs $/bb) 5 3593 41.82 32.15 32.10 35.26
Purchased natural gas price (/G 7.30 9.38 7.86 6.41 7.66
West Texas Intermediate (avg U.S.8/bb) 6 97.82 123.80 118.22 59.08 99.75
Foraign exchange rates (.3.$/Cdn$):
Average 1.00 0.89 0.96 0.83 0.94
Quarter-end D.97 0.8 0.94 0.82 0.82
2007
Q1 a2 a3 [e2} Annual
Revenues 1 $ 874 $. 690 $ 936 % . .950 $ 3,250
Net income {loss) 262 {395} 361 518 743
Per Trust Unit, Basic 0.55 {0.82) 0.75 1.07 1.55
Per Trust Unit, Diluted 0.54 £.82) 0.75 1.07 1.54
Cash from operating aclivities 202 324 484 367 1,377
Per Trust Unit2 0.42 0.68 1.01 0.77 2.87
Unitholder distributions 144 191 192 264 791
Per Trust Unit 0.30 0.40 0.40 (.55 1.65
Daily average sales volumes (bais/d) 3 108,981 98,720 124,804 116,368 112,298
Net realized selling price @bl 4 68.69 76.81 81.48 88.73 79.29
Operating costs @05 23.56 30.13 20.84 27.38 25.23
Purchased natural gas price @&/GJ 6.99 8.78 4.99 5.84 8.14
West Texas Intermediate @avg U.5.8/bb) © 58.23 65.02 75.15 80.50 72.36
Foreign exchange rates U.8.$/Cdn$)
Average 0.85 0.1 0.96 1.02 0.83
Quarter-end 0.87 0.94 1.00 1.01 1.01

1 Revenues affer crude ofl purchases and transportation expense.

2 Cash from operating activities per Trust Unit is a non-GAARP measure that is derived from cash from operating activities reported
on the Trust’'s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows divided by the weighted-average number of Trust Units outstanding in
the period; as used in the Trust’s net income per Unit calculations.

3 Daily average sales volumes after crude oif purchases.

4 Net realized SCO selling price after foreign currency hadging.

5 Derived from operating costs as reported on the Trust's Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income,

divided by the sales volumes during the period.

8 Pricing obtained from Bloomberg.



During the last eight quarters, the following items have
had a significant impact on the Trust’s financial results:

» Fluctuations in U.S. dollar WTI oil prices significantly
impacted the Trust’s revenues, Crown royalties and
net income;

» The substantive enactment of income tax legislation in
June 2007 resulted in an additional future income tax
expense of $701 million in the second quarter of 2007.

2008 QUARTERLY DAILY AVERAGE SALES VOLUMES
(mbblis per day)
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Other corporate tax rate reductions substantively
enacted in the fourth and second quarters of 2007
rasulted in future income tax recoveries of $153 million
and $38 million in each quarter, respectively;

» 1.8, to Canadian dollar exchange rate fluctuations
have resulted in significant unrealized . foreign
exchange gains and losses. on the revaluation of
U.8. dollar denominated debt and have impacted
commodity pricing; and

+ Planned and unplanned maintenance activities
have impacted quarterly production voiumes, sales
revenues, Crown royalties and operating costs.

Quarterly variances in revenuss, net income, and cash
frorn operating activities are  caused mainly by
fluctuations'in crude oil prices; production and sales
volumes, operating costs and natural gas prices. Net
income is also impactad by non-cash foreign exchange
gains and losses caused by fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates on our U.S. dollar denominated debt,
and by future incomse tax changes. A large proportion
of operating costs are fixed and, as such, unit operating
costs are highly variable to production volurnes. While
the supply/demand balance for crude ol affects selling
prices, the impact of this equation is difficult to predict
and quantify and has not displayed significant seasonality.

2008 QUARTERLY NET REALIZED SELLING PRICE
(% per bbl)
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Maintenance and turnaround activities are typically
scheduled to avold the winter months; however, the
exact timing of unit shutdowns cannot be precisely
scheduled, and unplanned outages may occur
Accordingly, production levels may not display reliable
seasonality patterns or trends. Maintenance and
turnaround costs are expensed in the period incurred
and can lead to significant increases in operating
costs and reductions in production in those periods.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

Natural gas prices are typically higher i winter months
as heating demand rises, but this seasonality is
significantly influenced by weather conditions and
North American natural gas inventory levels,

Canadian Oil Sands’ unaudited fourth quarter 2008
resuits were discussed and analyzed in our MD&A
released on January 28, 2009 and filed with the Trust’s
January 28, 2009 pressreleass, which is available on our
website at www.cos-trust.com or at www.sedar.com.

Fevenues, after Crude Oil Purchases and Transportation Expense

& millions) 2008 2007 $ Change % Change
Sales revenue $ 4,543 $ 3,633 §.. 910 25
Crude oil purchases {337} (348} 11 3
Transportation expense {37 (35) @) 8
$ 4,169 $ 3.250 $ 919 28
Sales volumes fmmbhbis) * 338 41.0 2.2) 5
(% per barrel}
Realized selling price before hedging @ $ 106.81 $ 79.02 % 2779 35
Currency hedging gains 0.10 0.27 $ ©A7 63
Net realized selling price $ 108.91 $ 79.29 & 27.82 35

1 8ales volumaes, net of purchased crude oif volumes.

2 Bales revenue, after crude off purchases and transportation expense divided by sales volumas; net of crude oif volumes purchased.

Calculation does not include sulphur sales.

REVENUES AFTER CRUDE OIL PURCHASES,
TRANSPORTATION AND MARKETING EXPENSE
AND HEDGING :

(% millions}
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The increase in sales revenue on an annual basis in
2008 versus 2007 was due {o higher realized selling
prices for SCO offset by a decline in sales volumes.
WTI prices averaged $99.75 U.S. per barret in 2008
versus $72.36 U.S. per barrel in 2007. Fluctuations in
U.8. to Canadian dollar exchange rates did not
significantly impact Canadian dollar equivalent WTI
prices for 2008 relative to 2007 as average U.S, to
Canadian dollar exchange rates were roughly the same
in both years.

Our net realized SCO selling price after currency
hedging gains averaged $106.91 per barrel in 2008, an
increase of $27.62 per barrel compared with 2007, The
35 percent increase in average realized selling price
vear-over-year reflected higher WTI prices, as well as

NET INCOME
($ miflions)
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1,200
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400

improved price differentials. We realized a premium to
average Canadian dollar WTE of $1.84 per barrel in
2008 relative to a premium of $1.63 per barrel in 2007.
The differential is dependent upon the supply and
demand for SCQ, and accordingly, can change quickly
depending upon the short-term supply and demand
dynamics in the market and pipeline availability for
transporting crude oil.

Year-to-date sales volumes averaged 106,000 barrels
per day in 2008 versus an average of 112,000 barrels
per day for 2007. Sales volumes for 2008 were
impacted by the scheduled turnarounds of Cokers 8-2
and 8-1, operational difficulties during the first quarter
and bitumen production constraints. Sales volumes in
2007 were impacted by maintenance on Coker 8-3,
Coker 8-2 and other units.

NET INCOME PER TRUST UNIT - BASIC
(% per Trust Unit)




Operating Costs

The following table breaks down unit operating costs
into its major components and shows bitumen costs
on both a per barrel of bitumen and a per barrel of SCO
produced basis. The Trust has prepared this infformation

to enable users 1o compare operating costs at Syncrude
with other oll sands producers. Users are cautioned
that the following results may not be fully comparable
with other entities due to differing treatments for
operating and capital costs among producers.

2008 2007
(8 per bbi) Bitumen 8CO Biturmen SCO
Bitumen Costs !
Biturnen production 2 $ 15.76 $ 10.64
Purchased energy 4 2.83 2.19
Purchased bitumen 0.80 -
$ 10.49 $ 22.82 $ 12.83 $ 15.26
Upgrading Cosis 2
Bitumen processing and upgrading $ 583 $ 435
Turnaround and catalysts 1.81 1.05
Purchased energy 4 3.94 2.55
$ 11.58 $ 7.95
Other and research 1.04 1.43
Change in treated and untreated inventory 0.06 {0.02)
Total Syncrude operating ¢costs $ 35.50 $ 2462
Canadian Ol Sands adjustments {0.24) 0.61
Total operating costs $ 35.26 $ 2523
{thousands of barrels per dayj Bitumen 8CO Bituman SCO
Syncrude production volumes @hbis/a) 6 338 289 363 305

t Bitumen costs relate fo the removal of overburden, oil sands mining, bitumen extraction and ltajlings dyke
construction and disposal costs. The costs are expressed on a per barrel of bitumen production basis and
converted to a per barrel of SCC basad on the effective yield of SCO from the processing and upgrading of
bitumen,

2 Prior year information has been restated for comparative purpases to.conform to a revised presentation of costs.

3Upgrading costs include the production and ongoing maintenance costs associated with processing and
upgrading of biturmen to SCQO. Jt also includes the costs of major upgrading equipment turnarounds and catalyst
replacement, all of which are expensed as incurred.

4 Natural gas prices averaged $7.66 per GJ and $6.14 per GJ in 2008 and 2007, respectively:

5 Canadian Oif Sands™ adjustments mainly pertain to Synciude-related pension cosis, as well as the inventory
impact of moving from production to sales as Syncrude reports per barrel costs based on production volumes
and the Trust reports based on sales volumes.

6 Syncrude production volumes include the impact of processed purchased bitumen volumes.

(% per bbi of SCO) 2008 2007 Change % Change
Production costs $ 28.01 $ 20.08 $ . 7.93 39
Purchased energy . 7.25 5,18 210 41
Total operating costs $ 35.26 $ 2523 $.10.03 40
{3s per bbi of SCO} 2008 2007 Change Y% Change
Purchased energy consumption 0.85 0.84 0.11 13
31|



OPERATING COSTS

PURCHASED ENERGY COSTS (BEFORE HEDGING)
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performance of several Syncrude owners’ shares
and Units, of which performance was weaker in 2008
relative to 2007,

Mon-Production Costs

Non-production costs consist primarily of development
expenditures refating to capital programs, which are
axpensed, such as: commissioning costs; pre-feasibility
engineering, technical and support services; research
and development (“R&D7); and regulatory and
stakeholder consultation expenditures. Accardingly,
non-production costs can vary depending on the
number of projects underway and the stage of
development of the projects. Non-production: costs
totalled $78 milion in 2008, an increase of $15 million
compared with 2007, primarily as a result of additional
R&D activities at Syncrude.

Crown Rovyalties

Crown royalties increased to $5989 million, or $15.44
per barrel, in 2008 from $485 million, or $11.83 per
barrel in 2007. The change in Crown royalties in 2008
versus 2007 was due to increased revenues net of
allowed operating costs, non-production costs and
capital expenditures.

Under the Ganeric Oil Sands Royalty regime that was
in place in Alberta during 2008 and 2007, the Crown
rovalty was calculated as the greater of one percent of
gross plant gate revenue before hedging, or25 percent
of net ravenugs, calculated as gross plant gate revenus
before hedging, less allowed Syncrude operating,
non-production and capital costs. in 2009, key changes
will be implemented in the calculation of Syncrude’s
Crown royalties.

In 2008, Canadian Oif Sands and the other Syncrude
owners exercised their pre-existing option 1o convert
to a bitumen-based Crown royalty. Effective January 1,
2009, Syncrude will calculate Crown rayalties based on
deemed bitumen revenues iess allowed bitumen
operating, non-production and capital costs, rather
than paying Crown royalties based on the production of
SCO. As part of the conversion to a bitumen-based
royalty, only costs related o producing bitumen rather
than the fully upgraded SCO can be deducted. In
addition, deductible costs in calculating Crown royalties
will be reduced in fulure vears by approximately
$5 billion ($1.8 billion. net to the Trust) resulting in
additional future Crown royalties of approximately
$1.25 billion plus interest (3459 million plus interest net
10 the Trust) over a 25-year period. The cost reductions
relate to capital expenditures that were deducted in
computing Crown royalties on SCO in prior vears and
are no longer associated with the royalty base.

I 2008, Canadian Oll Sands and the other Syncrude
owners also reached an agreement with the Alberta
government on terms 1o transition the Syncrude Project
to Alberta’s New Royalty Framework. Under the
agreement, the Syncrude owners will pay the greater
of 25 percent of net desmed bitumen revenues, or
one percent of gross deemed Dbitumen-based
revenuss, plus an additional royalty of up to $975 million
{$358 million net to the Trust) for the period January 1,
2010 to December 31, 2015, The additional royalty of
$975 million is reduced proportionally i bitumen
production is-less than 345,000 barrels per day over
the period and is payable in six annual instaliments in
respect of the following pericds:

% mitlions} 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
Syncrude $ 75 4 75 $ 100 $ 150 $ 225 $ 350 $ 975
Canadian Oil Sands’ Share s 27 $ 27 $ 37 $ 55 $ B3 $ 129 $ 358

&
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Asset Retivement Obligation

Canadian Oil Sands® ARO liability, which represents
the present value of our share of the estimated
environmental reclamation costs of the Syncrude

Foreign Exchange Gains

project, increased to $235 million at Decernber 31, 2008
versus $226 million at December 31, 2007. The change
was due to increased cost estimates and accretion
axpense less reclamation costs incurrad during the year.

& mitfions) 2008 2007
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain} $ . 204 $  (153)
Realized foreign exchange loss {(gain) {45} 36
Total foreign exchange loss {gain) $ - 159 $ 17

Unrealized forsign exchange (“FX”) losses and gains
are primarily the result of revaluations of cur U.8. dollar
denominated long-term debt caused by fluctuations in
11.8. and Canadian dollar exchange rates. During 2008,
the unrealized FX loss resulted from the weakening of
the Canadian doliar relative to the U.S. dollar to $0.82
U.8./Cdn at December 31, 2008 from $1.01 U.8./Cdn
at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2008 the Trust
had $874 million in U.8. dollar debt outstanding. The
unrealized FX gains in 2007 were due to the
strengthening of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S.
dollar to $1.01 U.8./Cdn at December 31, 2007 from
$0.86 U.8./Cdn at December 31, 2006.

Realized FX{ losses and gains are primarily the result of
the repayment of U.S. dollar denominated debt, the
settlement of U.S. dollar denominated receivables and
the revaluation of U.S. dollar cash balances. During
2008, the Trust recognized FX gains primarily on the
settlement of U.S. dollar denominated accounts
receivable. During 2007, the Trust realized an FX gain of
$18 million on the settlement of long-term debt and
realized FX losses of $54 million on the settlement of
U.8. dollar denominated accounts receivable and
cash balances.

Future Income Tax and Other

Canadian Oil Sands’ future income taxes on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet represent the net
difference between tax values and accounting values,
referred to as temporary differences, tax-effected at

substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply when
the differences reverse. Canadian Oil Sands recorded
a future income tax recovery of $83 million in 2008 on
the reduction of temporary differences compared with
a future income tax expense of $579 million in 2007.
The 2007 future tax expense was primarily the result of
a one-time $701 million future income tax expense
recorded on the enactment of federal legislation 10 tax
income trusts, offset by a tax recovery of $193 million
associated with reductions in corporate tax rales
enacted during 2007.

During 2008, legislation 1o adjust the deemed provincial
component of the tax on distributions from income-and
royaity trusts commencing in 2011 was passed in the
House of Commaens. Under this legislation, we expect
the provincial component of the tax applicable to
Canadian Ol Sands will be reduced from 13 percent o
10 percent, as substantially all of Canadian Ol Sands’
activities are in Alberta. For accounting purposes, the
adjustment is not considered substantively enacted
because the related income tax regulations have not
been finalized. If the proposal becomes enacted, we
expect 1o record a future income tax recovery based
on the temporary differences at that time.

On July 14, 2008, the Department of Finance released
draft legislation for
conversions. The draft legislation is designed to permit

income and royalty trust

income and royalty trusts to convert into public
corporations without triggering adverse Canadian tax



consequences to the income or royalty trust and its
Unitholders. fthe *SIFT conversion rules”. On
November 28, 2008, the Minister of Finance introduced
changes in the House. of Commons to the SIFT
conversion rules and on December 4, 2008 issued
explanatory notes on these changes. For Canadian
taxpayers, the effect of this proposed legislation is to
allow a tax-free rollover of holdings in a trust as it
converts to g corporate structure. It also accelerated
the safe haven guidelines to. immediately allow
cumulative new equity issues of up to 100 percent of
an entity’s October 31, 2006 market capitalization. As
of December 31, 2008, this legislation was not enacted:

With the taxation of income trusis commencing
January 1, 2011, Canadian Oil Sands has evaluated
alterngtives as to the best structure for its Unitholders
in the future, Based on current information, and
pending the enactment of the SIFT conversion rules,
as amended, we will likely-convert to a corporation.
We plan to retain the flow-through advantages of a
trust structure until 2011 unless circumstances arise
that favour a faster transition: Canadian Oil. Sands
continues 1o be a long-term value investment in the
oil sands and does not rely on the tax efficiency of a
flow-through frust model to sustain its business. Our
long-life reserves and virtually non-declining production
profile provide a solid foundation to generate future
cash from operating activities.

in 2007 Canadian Oil Sands recorded an additicnal
future income tax liability on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet totalling $327 million, with a corresponding
increase to property, plant and equipment, as a result
of the 1.25 percent Syncrude working interest
acquisition and the subsequent dissolution of the
partnershipin which the working interest was held. The
future income tax liabillity represents the temporary
differences between the book values of the net assels
and the related tax pools acquired.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

A critical accounting estimate is considered to be one
that requires assumptions be made about matters that
are uncertain at the time the accounting estimate is
made and would have a material impact on the financial
results if different assumptions were used. Ganadian Oil
Sands makes numerous estimates in its financial results
in order to provide timely information to users, The
following estimates are, however, considered critical:

a) Canadian Qi Sands must estimate the reserves it
expects torecover in the future and the related net
revenues expected to be generated from those
reserves. Our reserves and future net revenues are
evaluated andreported in a reserve report prepared
by independent petroleum reserve evaluators who
determine thelr evaluations using various factors and
assumptions, such as: forecasts -of mining and
extraction recovery and upgrading vield based on
geological and engineering data, projected future
rates of production, projecied operating - costs,
rovalties and taxes, projected crude oil prices and oil
price differentials and timing and amounts of future
development costs; all-of which are estimates. We
believe that the factors and assumptions used inthe
estimates are reasonable based on the information
avallable at the time that the estimates are prepared.
Estimates of reserves and-future net revenues are
critical to assel impairment tests and D&D
calculations, The reserve report is reviewed by
Management, the Reserves, Marketing Operations
and Environmental, Health and Safety Committee as
well as the Beard of Directors.

As clrcumstances change and new information
becomes available, the reserve report data could
change. Future actual results could vary greatly from
our estimates, which could cause material changes
in our unit-of-production D&D rates and asset
impairment tasts, all of which use the reserves and/or
future net revenues in the respective calculations.



b} in 2008 Canadian Oif Sands recorded its ARO lability
and corresponding asset based on the estimated
discounted fair value of its share of Syncrude’s fuiure
expenditures that will be required for reclamation of
egach of Syncrude’s mine sites that have been
disturbed. In determining the fair value, Canadian Gl
Sands must estimate the amount of the future cash
payments, the timing of when those payments will
be required, and then apply an appropriate credit-
adjusted risk-free rate. Given the long reserve life of
Syncrude’s leases, the reclamation expenditures will
be made over approximately the nexi 60 years, and
therefore it is difficult to estimate the timing and
amount of the reclamation payments that will be
required as they will occur far into the future.

Any changes in the anticipated timing or the amount
of the payments subsequent 1o the initial obligation
being recorded results in a change to our ARO
liabitity and corresponding asset. Such changes will
impact the accretion of the obligation and the
depreciation of the asset and will correspondingly
impact net income.

In addition, dus to the indeterminate ussful life of
Synerude’s upgrader facilities and the uncertainty in
gstimating the timing and amount of the reclamation
expenditures, if any, related to Syncrude’s suiphur
blocks; no amounts have been recognized in the
Trust’s ARQ lability for those components. Actual
future recltamation costs related to the upgrading
facilities and the suiphur blocks may materially
impact future ARC estimates and the Trust’s cash
from operating activities in the vyears these
reclamation costs are incurred.

ciCanadian Ol Sands accrues its obligations for
Syncrude Canada’s post-employment benefits
utilizing actuarial and other assumptions to estimate
the projected benefit obligation, the return on plan
assets and the expense accrual related to the current
period. The basic assumptions utilized are outlined

in Note 8{a) to the audited Consclidated Financial
Statements. A 0.25 change in the discount rate
related to Syncrude Canada’s defined benefit
pension plan would result In an approximate
increase/decrease of $25 million in our employee
future benefit liability.

In addition, actuarial gains and losses are deferred
and amortized into income over the expected
average remaining service lives of employees, which
was estimated to be 12 years. Actual costs related to
Syncrude Canada’s employee benefit plans could
vary greatly from the amounts accrued for the
pension obligation and the plan assets. If Canadian
Cil Sands had recognized the actuarial: losses
immediatsly in income, pension and other post-
employment expense would have decreased from
$33 million to approximately $32 million in 2008.
In addition, the accrued benefit liability on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet would have increased
from $110 million to $258 million. Canadian Qil Sands
does not have a pension glan for its own employees.
Therefore; all of the employee future benefit liabilities
and expenditures relate to its working interest share
of Syncrude Canada’s pension benefit plan and
post-employment plan obligations;

d)Canadian Ol Sands must estimate its future tax

liability at the end of each reporting period based on
estimates of temporary differences, when those
temporary differences are expected 1o reverse and
the tax rates at which they will reverse. Actual tax
rates at which the temporary differences will reverse
and the amount and timing of reversal of the
tamporary differences may, however, differ from our
estimates and may result in material changes inour
future income tax liability and future income tax
expense or recovery.

K



CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

in its audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2007 ("Audited 2007 Financial
Canadian® Qil Sands - adopted” the
requirements of the Canadian institute of Chartered
Accountants (“CICA™) Section 3862 Financial Instrurments
- Disclosures, Section 3863 Financial Instruments —
Presentation, and Section 15635 — Capital Disclosuras.
These standards were effective January 1, 2008,
however, early adoption was encouraged by the CICA.

Statements”),

In June 2007, the CICA issued a new accounting
standard Section 3031 Inventories,; which replaces the
existing standard for inventories, Section 3030; The
main features of the new section are as follows:

* measurement of inventories at the lower of cost and
net realizable valus;

» consistent use of elther first-in, first-out or a weighted=
average cost formula to measure cost; and

e reversal of previous write-downs to the lower of cost
and the revised net realizable value when therais g
subseguent increase to the value of inventories,

The new inventory standard was effective for the Trust
beginning January 1, 2008. Application of the new
standard did not impact the Trust’s financial statements.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

in February 2008, the CICA issued a new accounting
standard, Section 3064 - Goodwill and Intangible
Assets, which replaces Section 3082 - Goodwill and
Other intangible Assets, and Section 3450 - Research
and Development costs. The new section establishes
standards - for the- recognition, measurement and
disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. The section
is effective for the Trust beginning January 1, 2008,
Application of the new section is.not expected to have
a material impaci on the Trust's financial statements.

(&

international Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the CICA Accounting Standards
Board announced that Canadian. public’ reporting
issuers will be required to report Under International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) starting in 2011.
IFRS will effectively replace Canadian GAAP for these
issuers and comparative IFRS informationfor the 2010
fiscal year will be required. Canadian Qil Sands is
assessing the impact on our business ¢f adopting IFRS
in2011. ’

As part of its assessment, the Trust is identifying
potential differences between Canadian GAAP and
existing IFRS at December 31, 2008, as well as
proposed. IFRS which may be in effect in 2011,
Management is reviewing the impact that these
differences will have on-accounting policies, information
fechnology and data systems, internal control over
financial reporting, disclosure controls and procedures,
financial reporting and business activities. Management
has not fully determined the impact of adopting IFRS
on its financial statements; however, it should be ricted
that the current financial . statements 'may be
significantly different when presented in accordance
with IFRS. The potential impacts on the consolidated
financial statements from the adoption of IFRS will
depend on the particular circumstances prevailing on
January 1, 2011, as well as the accounting policy
choices adopted by Canadian Ol Sands.

The adoption of IFRS will also impact Syncrude’s
financial reporting and reporting of results to the Trust.
Syncrude has established an implementation project
to manage fis transition to IFRS. Canadian Oil Sands
and the other Syncrude owners are responsible for
approving Syncrude’s implementation plans and
ensuring that information to be provided by Syncrude
meets the owners’ needs. Areas of impact that have
been identified for Syncrude include the accounting
and reporting of property, plant and equipment held on
behalf of the joint venture participants, pensions and
stock-based compensation. The impact of adopting
IFRS on Syncrude has not been quantified at this time.



LIGUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

As at December 31 (8 millions) 2008 2007
Long-term debt $ 1,258 $ 1,218
Cash and cash equivalents 279 (268)

Net debt & . 979 $ 950
Unitholders’ equity $ 3,910 $ 4,172
Total capitalization $ 4,889 $ 5,122
Net debt to total capitalization percent) 20 19

1 Net debt plus Unitholders’ equity. Net debt, total capitalization, as well as net debt to total capitalization are non-GAAP measures.

During 2008, the Trust’s long-term debt increased by
$40 million as a result of unrealized foreign exchange
fosses on U.8. dollar denominated debt more than
offsetting debt repayments of $150 million and the
repayment of $186 million in credit facility borrowings.

As at December 31, 2008, the Trust had $840 million
of unutilized credit facilities, and $67 million in letters
of credit issued against a separate line of credit.
On June 29 and August 10, 2009, Canadian Oif
Sands has $200 million of medium term notes and
U.8.$250 million senior notes maturing, respectively.

NET DEBT AT DECEMBER 31
(% billions)

The Trust currently anticipates refinancing these notes
using its available credit facilities, or by accessing the
debt capital markets.

Canadian Qi Sands has set a long-term net debt target
of approximately $1.6 billion by the end of 2010. The
Trust’s. actual net debt will' fluctuaie, however, as
factors such as crude oil prices, Syncrude’s operational
performancs, distributions, FX rates, and the ability to
access capitalmarkets in a prudent and cost-effective
manner vary from our assumptions, as cutlined in the
“Unitholder Distributions” section of this MD&A.

NET DEBT TO TOTAL CAPITALIZATION
AT DECEMBER 31
(percent)




Performance Management Ratios

2008 2007
Return on average Unitholders’ equity (percent) 1 38 18
ROCE (percent) 2 34 25

1 Calculated as comprehensive income divided by average Unitholders’ equity.

2 Return on average productive capital employed is calculated as net income before net interest expense, future income taxes
and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses, divided by average net debt plus Unitholders’ equity, excluding major
expansion projects not yet in use. In 2008 and 2007, no such major expansion projects were excluded.

A key non-GAAP benchmark used to evaluate the
Trust’s performance is return on average productive
capital employed (“ROCE"), which is a measure of the
returns the Trust realizes on its assets that are in
productive use. In calculating ROCE, we exclude major
expansion projects that are not yet used in production.

UNITHOLDER DISTRIBUTIONS

In 2008 and 2007 there were no such major expansion
projects excluded. The Trust’s ROCE and return on
average Unitholders’ equity were higher in 2008
compared with 2007 due primarily to the increase in
comprehensive income before net interest, unrealized
foreign exchange and future income taxes, respectively.

(8 millions) 2008 2007
Cash from operating activities $ 2,241 $ 1,377
Net income $ 1,523 $ 743
Unitholder distributions $ 1,804 $ 791

Excess of cash from operating activities over Unitholder distributions ! $ 437 $ 586
Shortfall of net income over Unitholder distributions 2 $ (281) $ (48)

1 Cash from operating activities less Unitholder distributions.
2 Net income less Unitholder distributions.

ROCE
(percent)

RETURN ON AVERAGE UNITHOLDERS' EQUITY
(percent)




In 2008, cash from operating activities exceeded
Unitholder distributions by $437 million and along with
opening cash balances, funded the Trust’s distributions,
capital expenditures, reclamation trust fund contributions
and debt repayments,

Unitholder distributions in 2008 exceeded net income
primarily as a result of DD&A and unrealized foreign
exchange losses, which are non-cash items that do not
affect the Trust’s cash from operating activities or ability
to pay distributions over the near term.

The Trust uses debt and equity financing to the extent
that cash from operating activities and existing cash
balances are insufficient to fund capital expenditures,
reclamation trust contributions, debt repayments,
acquisitions, distributions, and working capital changes
from financing and investing activities.

On January 28, 2008, the Trust declared a quarterly
distribution of $0.15 per Unit in respect of the first
quarter of 2009 for a total distribution of approximately
$72 million. Quarterly distributions are approved by our
Board of Directors after considering the current and
expected economic conditions, ensuring financing
capagcity for Canadian Oil Sands’ capital requirements
and with the objective of maintaining an investment
grade credit rating.

in establishing the distribution amount for the first
quarter of 2008, the Trust considered the recent
decreases in crude oil prices and the turmoil in
worldwide credit markets. if oil prices continue to
decrease, cash from operating activities and our ability
to internally fund distributions and capital expenditures
will decline. In addition, as a result of ongoing credit
market turmoll, there is risk around the ability of the
Trust to access the capital markets in a prudent and
cost effective manner. During this pericd of risk, we
believe that it is prudent to reduce distributions in order
to maintain liquidity and financial flexibility. The Trust
also has approximately $500 million in debt maturities
in 2009 that it plans to refinance through existing credit
facilities or in the debt capital markets. Despite average

WTI market prices of approximately $38 U.3. per barrel
in February 2009, the Trust continues io generate
cash from operating activities, is largely undrawn on its
$840 million of credit facilities and is positioned to
execute its financial and operating strategies.

The February distribution also reflects the Trust’s plan
of managing its capital structure in anticipation of trust
taxation in 2011, The Trust has been distributing a fuller
amount of its cash from operating activities, and had
been targeting a long-term net debt of about $1.8 billion
by the end of 2010. While we believe this net debt
target reflects efficient capital management and will
help. conserve tax pbais prior to trust taxation,
achievement of that target must also consider a
prudent liquidity position and capital market access.
The target is based on Syncrude’s existing productive
capacity and will be reconsidered in light of Canadian
Ot Sands’ future capital requirement plans and any
growth opportunities.

In determining the Trust's distributions; Canadian Oil
Sands also considers funding for its significant operating
obligations, which are included in cash from operating
activities. Such obligations include the Trust's share of
Syncrude’s pension and reclamation funding, which
amounted to $55 million and $38 million in 2008 and 2007,
respectively. We do not anticipate significant increases
in funding for pension or reclamation tems in 2008.

Debt covenants do not specifically limit the Trust’s
ability to pay distributions and are not expected to
influence the Trust’s liquidity in the foreseeabls future.
Aside from covenanis relaling to restrictions on
Canadian Oil Sands’ ability to sell all or substantially
all of its assets or to change the nature of its business,
the most restrictive financial covenant limits total
debt-to-total capitalization at an amount less than
55 percent. With a current net debt-to-total capitalization
of approximately 20 percent, a significant increase in
debt or decrease in equity would be required to restrict
the Trust’s financial flexibility.



Cash from operating activities and net income can
fluctuate from petiod to period reflecting, among other
things, variability in operational performance, WTI
prices, SCQ differentials to WTi prices and FX rates.
The Trust strives to smooth out the impacts of these
fluctuations on. distributions by taking a longer term
view of the operating and business environment, our
net debt level relative to our target, and our capital
expenditure and other commitments. In that regard,
the Trust may distribute more or less in & period than
is generated in cash from operating activities or net
income. The variable nature of cash from operating
activities introduces risk in the ability to sustain or
provide stability in distributions. Expectations regarding
the stability or sustainability of distributions are
unwarranted and should not be implied. Further, the
taxation of income trusts commencing January 1, 2011
likely will reduce future cash from operating activities,
which may alter distribution levels.

Premium Distribution, Distribution Re-Investment
and Optional Unit Purchase Plan (DRIP}

in January 2009, Canadian Qil Sands reinstated its
Premium Distribution, Distribution Re-Investment and
Optional Unit Purchase Plan (*DRIP”™). The DRIP allows
eligible Unitholders 1o direct their distributions to the

purchase of additional Units at 95 percent of the
average market price, as defined. in the DRIP
Alternatively, eligible Unitholders may elect under the
premium - distribution - component to have their
distributions invested in new Units and exchanged
through the DRIP broker for a premium distribution.
equal to 102 percent of the amount that the Unitholder
would otherwise have received on the distribution date
{subject to proration and withholding tax reductions
in certain circumstancés); The DRIP also allows
those Unitholders who participate in either the regular
distribution re-investment or premium distribution
component of the DRIP to purchase additional Units
from treasury at the average market price in minimum
amounts: of $1,000 per remittance and maximum
amounts of $100,000, in a given quarter, all subject to
an overall annual limit of two percent of the cutstanding
Trust Units being offered for purchase in this manner.

The Trust reinstated its DRIP to help preserve balance
sheet equity during this period of lower crude oil prices
and credit market risk. As well, the DRIP supports
distributions while providing Unitholders with several
options to manage their distribution payments in a
cost-affective;, convenient manner. Only Canadian
resident Unitholders are eligible to participate in the
DRIP at this time.



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

With the completion of Syncrude’s Stage 3 project
in 2006, Canadian Qil Sands’ expansion capital
expenditures have declined and capital costs for 2008
and 2007 were primarily related to sustaining capital.
The Trust defines expansion capital expenditures as the
costs incurred to grow the productive capaeity of the
operation, such as the Stage 3 project, while sustaining
capital is effectively all other capital. Sustaining capital
expenditures may  fluctuate considerably year-to-
year due to the timing of equipment replacement and
other factors. The productive capacity of Syncrude’s
operations is described in the “Review of Syncrude
Operations” section of this MD&A,

In 2008, capital expenditures totalled $281 million
versus $183 million in 2007. The Syncrude Emissions
Reduction (“SER™ project accounted for §73 million
and $69 million of the capital spent in 2008 and 2007,
respectively, with the remaining expenditures relating
to other sustaining capital activities including the
replacement of trucks and shovels and infrastructure
activities. Sustaining capital expenditures on a per
barrel basis were approximately $7.23 and $4.46 in
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Syncrude is undertaking the SER project to retrofit
technelogy into the operation of Syncrude’s original
two cokers 1o reduce total sulphur dioxide and other
emissions. After the completion of the SER project,
stack emissions of sulphur compounds are anficipated
to be about 60 percent lower than 2008 approved
levels. In 2008, Syncrude compileted its review of the
SER project and revised its cost estimates for the
project to $1.6 hillion (3590 million net to the Trust)
from $772 million ($284 million net to the Trust). This
significant cost increase reflects several causes
including estimation errors, delays in the expected
completion date and inflationary pressures. The Trust’s
share of the SER project expenditures incurred to date
is approximately $181 million, with the majority of the
remaining costs expected to be incurred over the
next three years as construction is coordinated with
equipment turnaround schedules.

Sustaining capital expenditures, including the SER
project, are estimated to average approximately $10 per
barrel for 2009 and over the next few years are expected
to average $10 to $15 per barrel. The additional
expenditures are a result of large environmental and
infrastructure projects, Over the longer term, sustaining
capital - expenditures are expected fo average
approximately $6 per barrel excluding inflation. The
per barrel estimates are based on annual Syncrude
production increasing from 106 million barrels in 2008
to 129 million barrels at design capacity.

Syncrude’s next significant growth stage is anticipated
1o be the Stage 3 debottleneck; which is estimated
1o increase Syncrude’s productive capacity by about
50,000 barrels per day. Following the debottieneck,
the Stage 4 expansion is expected {0 grow Syncrude
capacity by a further 100,000 barrels per day, post-
2018. However, Syncrude is re-evaluating its plans to
increase production well beyond the 500,000 barrels
per day estimated foliowing the Stage 4 expansion.
The objective is to develop an expansion plan that
maintains an approgriate resource life of about 50 years
based on an independent sstimate of Syncrude’s
reserves and resources as of December 31, 2008. The

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
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scoping engineering work on the Stage 3 debottieneck
and subsequent expansion stages have been approved
by the Syncrude owners and are being pursued.
Spending: will ramp up as the engineering work
progresses. The timing of the expansions will depend
on-the engineering and construction execution plans.
it is probable that the debottleneck will be delayed
beyond our previously disclosed 2012 projected
startup, as could other expansion timing. We plan to
provide more information on timing over the next year
or two as the scoping work progresses: No cost
estimates have been provided for these projects nor
have they been approved by the Syncrude owners, as

The amount and timing of future capital expenditures is
dependent upon the business environment and future
projects may be delayed or cancelled in times of low
commodity prices.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

The following table outlines the significant financial
obligations and commitments that are assumed in the
normal course of operations and were known as of
February 28, 2009. These obligations and commitments
represent future cash payments that the Trust is required
to make under existing contractual agreements that it
has entered. into either directly, or as a 36.74 percent

they are still in the early planning stages: owner in Syncrude:

Payments due by period 8

After

(S miflions) Total < 1year 1 -3 years 4 -5 years § years
Long-term debt ! $ 1,861 $ 575 $ 165 $ 447 $. 674
Capital expenditure commitments 2 456 202 254 - -
Pension plan solvency deficiency payments3 107 14 36 17 40
Management services agreement 4 142 17 51 34 40
Pipeline commitments 5 589 21 62 41 465
Asset retirernent cbligations € 774 12 43 25 694
Other obligations? 238 152 42 12 32
$ 4,167 $ 993 $ 653 $ 578 $ 1,945

1 Actual payments differ from the carrying value, as the amounts are stated at amortized cost plus interest payehent commitrments
on the long-term debt, While there is approximately $800 million of debt.maturing in 2008, Canadian Oif Sands’ intention is o
refinance such desbi.

2 Capital expenditure cormmitments are primarily comprised of our share of Syncrude’s Emissions Reduction project.

3 We are responsibie for funding our share of Syncrude Canada’s registered pension plan solvency deficiency, whick was
confirmed in the December 31, 2006 actuarial valuation that was completed in 2007, -

4 Reflects our share of Syncrude Canada’s annual fixed service fees under the agreement.

5 Reflects our share of the AOSPL pipeline commitment as a Syncrude Joint Venture owner,

8 Reflects our share of the undiscounted estimated cash flows required to settle Syncrude’s environmental obligations upon
recfamation of the Syncrude Joint Venture properties.

7 These obligations primarily include our share of the minimum payments required under Syncrude’s commitroents for natural
gas purchases. Other ftems include, but are not limited to, annual disposal fess for the flue gas desulphurization unit and tire
supply agreements.

8 Amounts due In U.S. dolfars are translated at the December 31, 2008 exchange rates.



The Trust's commitments and obligations have
increased relative to the prior year end, primarily as g
result of increased cost estimates for the SER project,
new natural gas purchase commitments by Syncrude,
changes in the value of the Trust's long-term debt,
and fewer payments on 2008 commitments.

Canadian Qil Sands accrues its obligations for
Syncrude Canada’s post-employment benefits utilizing
actuarial and other assumptions to estimate the
projected benefit obligation, the return on plan assets
and the expense accrual related to the current period.
As a result of market performance, during the last
quarter of 2008 there was a significant decline in the
actual return of Syncrude's defined benefit pension
plan assets compared with the expected return. There
was also an offsetting decline in the value of Syncrude’s
accrued benefit obligation due to changes in corporate
interest rates ussd 1o discount those obligations.
Syncrude Canada’s last actuarial valuation of its
pension plan was completed during 2007, which
astablished funding requirements until December 31,
2009. Syncrude’s next required valuation for funding
purpesas will be as of December 31, 2009, howsever,
Syncrude will assess the requirement for an earlier
valuation when it files its 2008 pension results.

UNITHOLDERS’ CAPITAL AND TRADING ACTIVITY

Canadian Oil Sands issues Unit options {"options”) as
part of its long-term incentive plan for employees.
There were 421,250 options granied in 2008 with an
average exercise price of $39.97 per option and a
fair valug of approximately $2 million, which will be
amortized into income over a three-year vesting period.
On February 3, 2009, another 441,872 options were

granted with a fair value of approximately $2 mitlion.
There were 1.3 million options outstanding at
February 26, 2009, representing less than one percent
of Units outstanding. Each option represents the right
of the optionholder to purchase a Unit at the exercise
price determined at the date of grant. All option
exercise prices are reduced by distributions over a
threshold amount. The options vest by one-third
following the date of grant in each of the first three
years and expire seven years from the date of grant.

As at December 31, 2008, there were 117,726
performance Unit rights (“PUPs") outstanding with
an accrued value. of approximately $3 million. On
February 3, 2009 an additional 111,127 PUPs were
granted with a fair value of approximately $2 million. The
PUPs are earned based on total Unitholder return at the
end of three years comparad to a peer group, with the
actual Unit equivalents earned ranging from zero to
double the target award. More detail on the Trust's
stock-based compensation plans can be found in Note
15(a} to the audited Consoclidated Financial Statements,
as well as the Trust’s Management Proxy Circular dated
March 13, 2009 which is available on our website at
www,cos-trust.com or at www.sedar.com.

Canadian Oil Sands Units frade on the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol COS.UN. The Trust had
a market caplialization of approximately 510 billion
with 482 million Units cutstanding and a closing
price of $21.10 per Unit on December 31, 2008. A
table summarizing the Unifs issued in 2008 is
included in Note 14{a} of the audited Consglidated
Financial Statements.



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Waterfowl Incident at Syncrude’s Aurora Mine
Tailings Pond

in April 2008, a flock of ducks landed and drowned
on cne of Syncrude’s tailings ponds. As a resuit,
Environment Canada, along with Alberta Environment
and Alberta Sustainable Resource Department; initiated
an investigation into the incident. On February 9, 2009,
Syncrude Canada was charged under subsection
5.1(1) of the Migratory Birds Conventiory Act, 1994
(MBCA) and section 155 of the Alberta Environmental
Protection and Enhancement Act (EPEA). Syncrude
Canada takes the matter seriously and is working
diligently to ensure measures are in place to prevent
this tragic event from recccurring.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction
Requirements

In 2007, through the Specified Gas Emitters Regulation,
Alberta hecame the first province in Canada to regulate
greenhouse gases (*GHG") by establishing intensity
targets for Large Final Emitters of carbon dioxide
(*CO,Y). Effectively; the regulation requires Syncruds,
beginning in the second half of 2007, to reduce per
barrel emissions of GHG by 12 percent from the
average of its annual per barrel emissions: between
2003 and 2005. i Syncrude is unable ¢ meet this
target directly, it must purchase offset credits or pay
into a government fund dedicated to the development
of emissions reduction technology.
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For 2007, Syncrude met 90 percent of its reduction
target under the new regulation and offset the remainder
through the payment of approximately $1 million to the
Alberta government's technology fund. Syncrude’s
emissions calculation method and its data. were
externally verified.

For 2008, Syncrude accrued approximately $0.10 per
barrel for compliance with the Specified Gas Emitters
Regulation, which is reflected in the Trust’s operating
costs: The cost estimate remains preliminary pending
Syncrude’s actual CO, emission intensity level and
clarification from ths Alberta government regarding
details of implementation.

On March 10, 2008, Canada’s federal government
provided further detail on iis regulatory framework to
reduce GHG and air pollutant emissions originally
announced on April 26, 2007, The draft regulations are
currently expected to be finalized in 2009 and take
effect on January 1, 2010. The draft regulations for oil
sands projects require existing projects. to reduce
emissions intensity by 18 percent:in 2010 from the
20086 level and two percent thereafter New oil sands
facilities coming on-stream over the period 2004 to
2011 also will be required to.meet clean fuel standards
and will be encouraged to implement mechanisms o
capture GO, emissions. In addition to the reduction of
existing GHG emissions, the capture and storage of
CQ, emissions (“CCS”} will be a requirement for all
oil sands projects coming on-stream post 2012.. The
draft reguiations are expected to impact both current
Syncrude operations and its future expansion projects,
however, the full impact of the regulations cannoct be
quantified until they are finalized.



Syncrude continues 1o explore and implement measures
to reduce energy intensity in its operations, which
reduces both CO, emissions and operating costs,
Syricrude also is exploring the viability of developing
a large scale CO, capture, transportation and storage
network through participation in the Integrated CO,
Network {"ICON"},

Reclamation

In March 2008, the Alberta government certified a
parcel of reclaimed land north of Fort McMurray. The
104 hectares, known as Gateway Hill, was submitted
by Syncrude to the Alberta government in 2003 for
certification. Alberta’s Environmental Protection and
Enhancement Act requires operators to conserve
and reclaim specified land and obtain a reclamation
certificate. These certificates are issued to operators
whern their site has been successfully reclaimed.

Syncrude is the firstin the oil sands industry to recsive
certification for land that has been reclaimed. Syncrude
has reclaimed more than 4,500 hectares, representing
the largest share inthe oll sands industry.

Tailings Management

Syncrude’s reclamation efforts also include tailings
systems management. Tailings systems are designed
to separate water from sand and clay to enable
incorporation of solids into reclamation landscapes and
recycling of water back into the operations. Syncrude
and most other oil sands producers use a method
called consolidated tails technology; however, additional
tailings management technologies may be required in
order to meet the approved closure and reclamation
plan. Syncrude is exploring methods to improve and
supplement the effectiveness of its tailings systems.

On February 5, 2009, the Alberta Energy Resources
Conservation Board {*ERCB?) released Directive 074:
Tailings Performance Criteria and Requirements for Ol
Sands Mining Schemes. This directive provides new
industry-wide criteria to supplement existing regulations
by requiring operators to.

» Reduce fluid fine tallings by capturing a minimum
amount of fines in Dedicated Disposal Areas (“DDA”);

* Form and manage DDAs to ensure the formation of
trafficable deposits that are ready for reclamation five
years after active deposition has ceased; and

o Submit to the ERCB annual compliance reports for
DDAs, annual tailing plans and pond status reports
starting Septermber 30, 2011, DDA plans must also
be submitted two years prior to construction.

Syncrude is assessing the impact of this directive on its
current and future operations,

Syncrude filed an amendment to its regulatory approval
to medify the design of the existing Southwest Sand
Storage (*SWSS”) facility, permitting interim storage of
increased volumes of mature fine tailings and to
incorporate supplemental technologies to reduce
tailings inventories. Changes to the design of the
SWSS facility will be required 1o increase its fluid
storage capacity. The change in design would not
increase the footprint of the structure but rather elevate
the fluid level within it. Pending regulatory approval,
Syncrude intends to make use of this increase in
capacity in 2009.



RISK MANAGEMENT

Canadian Oil Sands approaches the management of
risk systematically through a process designed to
identify, categorize and assess risks. Syncrude Ganada,
as operator of the joint venture, identifies and assesses
the cperational and environmental, health and safety
("EH&S "y risks that may impact its operations. The Trust
then ‘augments Syncrude Canada’s analysis with
further consideration of risks specific to Canadian Qil
Sands: Risks are categorized based on their probability
of occurrence and their potential impact on Canadian
Oil Sands’ future Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (“Cash Flows"), corporate reputation and EH&S
performance.: Syncrude and Canadian Oil Sands take
a number of actions once the risks have been identified
and categorized, including aveidance, mitigation, risk
transfer and acceptance. The Board of Directors of
Canadian Oil Sands Limited is presented annually
with a. summary of Management's assessment of the
risks and strategies with respect to such risks.. The
Board of Directors reviews such asséssment and
recommendations and. provides oversight of this risk
management process. '

There are a number of risks impacting Canadian Ol
Sands that affect Cash Flows and therefore the
distributions ultimately paid 1o Unitholders. Cash Flows
are highly sensitive to a number of factors including:
Synerude production; sales volumes; oil and natural gas
prices; price differentials; foreign currency exchange
rates; operating, administrative, and financing expenses;
non-preduction costs; Crown royalties; and regulatory
and environmental risks. They are also impacted by
sustaining and growth capital expenditures and
Canadian Oil Sands’ financing requirements thereof.
Sensitivities to the most significant items affecting cash
from operating activities are provided in the “2008
Cutlook” section of this MD&A.

The following. discusses the significant risks that
impact Canadian Ol Sands’ cash from operating
activities; corporate reputation and EH&S performance:
More infarmation regarding Canadian Ol Sands’ risks
is avaitable in its AlF dated March 13, 2009 which'is
available on our website at www.cos-trust.com-or at
www.sedar.com.

Commodity Price Risk

Crude Oif Price Risk _

Our cash flows are impacted by changes in both the
U.8. dollar denominated crude oil prices and U.8./
Canadian FX rates. Over the last two years, daily
WTH prices. have. experienced significant volatility,
ranging from $145.U.8. per barrel in"July 2008 to
$34 U.S. per barrel in December 2008. Prior to 2007,
Management had hedged oil prices and exchange
rates to reduce revenue and cash flow volatility tothe
Trust during periods of significant caplital spending and
financing requirements:

Subsequent to 2006, Canadian Oil Sands’ financing
requirements declined along with nat debt levels and
expansion capital expenditures and” Canadian Gil
Sands chose to remain un-hedged and exposed to
crude oil price fluctuations. Canadian Ol Sands did not
have any crude oil price hedges in place for 2008 or
2007, Instead, a strong halance sheet has been used
to mitigate the risk arcund crude ol price movements.
As at February 26, 2008, and based on current
expectations, the Trust remains un-hedged on its crude
oll price exposure; however, it may hedge this exposure
in the future depending on the business environment
and its growth opportunities.

in the past few years, various oil sands projects have
come on stream, are under development, or are being
contemplated. This activity will affect the supply of
synthetic crude ol in the market. While some oif sands
projects have recently been postponed or cancelled,
there is no guarantee that sufficient demand or pipeline
capacity will exist to absorb the increased supply
without eroding the selling price. This could resultin a
deterioration of the price differential that Canadian Oil
Sands realizes compared with benchmark prices such
as WTI. Based on the expected supply of, and demand



for, light synthetic crude cil in 2009, we are estimating
a price discount for our product of $4.00 per barrel
relative to Canadian dollar WTI prices.

In response {o this growing volume of synthetic crude
oif, including Syncrude’s own increasing volumes, we
have expanded the markets for our product and
introduced an improvement to product gquality as part
of our last expansion completed in 2006.

Natural Gas Price Risk

Purchased natural gas is a significant component of
the bitumen production and upgrading processes.
Increases in natural gas prices, therefore, introduce the
risk of higher operating costs. Similar to crude ol
prices, monthly average AECO natural gas prices have
experienced significant movements over the last two
vears, ranging from a high of $11,15 per GJ during July
2008 1o alow of $4.11 per &GJ during August 2007. To
the extent crude oll and natural gas prices move
together, the risk of natural gas price increases is
mitigated as the Trust is significantly more levered to
oil price increases. The main risk involves a de-linking
of crude oil and natural gas price movements. The Trust
has previously used hedge posiiions to mitigate natural
gas price risk and will continue to assess the strategy
as a means to manage short-term operating costs.
No natural gas hedges were utilized in 2008 or 2007
and as at February 26, 2009, there were no natural gas
hedges in place.

While natural gas assets acguired in 2006 through the
acquisition of Canada Southern Petroleum are not
currently in production and there are no devslopment
plans af this time, the acquisition of these natural gas
interests may provide Canadian Cil Sands with a partial
long-term hedge against significant future natural gas
price increases.

Operational Risk

Currently, our investment in Syncrude represents our
only producing asset. The resulls of the Trust, therefore,
depend exclusively on the Syncrude cperations, The
Syncrude Project is a 24-hour per day, 365-day per year
operation which includes cornplex, inter-dependent

facilities. The shutdown of any part of Syncrude’s
operation could significantly impact the production
of SCO. Causes of production shortfalls and/or
interruptions may include, but are not limited to:
design errors, equipment failures, biturnen constraints,
operator errors, weather related shutdowns or
catastrophic events such as fire, earthquake; storms,
explosions or dam failures. There is also the risk that
the Syncrude plant will not achieve its design capacity
on a sustained basis and/or will not be able to produce
SCO with the expected quality specifications, which
would impact the Trust’s financial returns.

At times productivity of the mining operations may be
reduced due to maintenance, weather conditions or
unplanned outages such that internally produced
bitumen may not be sufficient to supply encugh feed
for the upgrading facility to mest its production capacity.
While Syncrude has the ability to import purchased
bitumen, there are physical restrictions on the amount
of bitumen that can be transported into Syncrude’s
facilities and there is a rigk that sufficient quantities of
bitumen rmay not be available or economic. Further, the
cost of purchased bitumen may be higher than
Syncrude’s own production costs: Partially offselting
this risk is the opportunity at periods in time, such as
during coker turnarounds, for the mining operations to
produce maore bitumen than is required by the
upgrading facility, which results in Syncrude building
bitumen inventory for-later use. Syncrude’s bitumen
inventory capabilities, however, are limited.

Extreme cold weather can affect both ongoing
operations and capital projects by reducing worker
productivity, producing mechanical failure, and
potentially increasing natural gas consumption, Major
incidents or unscheduled ocutages during winter
months may curtail production and result in significant
increases to operating costs.



The Syncrude Project benefits from its operational risk
management programs as well as support from
tmperial Oil Resources/ExxonMobil through the MSA.
These organizations apply robust engineering and
design - -standards  and utilize maintenance and
inspection procedures to mitigate operational risk.
Sustained, safe and reliable operations are critical to
achieving targets for production and operating costs:

in addition, we are exposed to the risks associated with
major construction projects. These risks include the
possibility that projects will not be completed on time
and/or will not achieve their design obijectives.
Complications could arise when new systems arg
integrated with existing systems and facilities.

Canadian Oil Sands. reduces exposure 10 some
operational risks by maintaining appropriate levels of
insurance, primarily business interruption {(“BI”) and
property insurance. We have purchased total coverage
of U.S. $1.0 billion of Bl and property insurancein case
Syncrude experiences an event causing a loss or
interruption of production, such as a fire or explosion at
the operating facilities. The Blinsurance is subject to g
680-day self-retention period and the property insurance
containg a $50 million deductible at the Syncrude level.
While such insurance assists in mitigating some
operational Upsets, insurance is unlikely to fully protect
against catastrophic events or prolonged shutdowns.

We also face risks associated with compstition
amongst other. oil - sands. producers for limited
resowrces, in particular skilled-labour, in the Fort
MoMurray area where Syncrude and other oil sands
producers. operate. The demand for these resources
contributes to cost inflation for products and services
to operate and expand Syncrude’s facilities. In addition
to paying its employees and contract staff competitive
industry compensation, Syncrude Canada has a very
strong record for safety performance and is an
innovative - and socially responsible company
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committed to the environment and dedicated to its
employees, Aboriginal peoples, and the communities
of northern Alberta. We believe these qualities assist in
retaining skilled fabour. Additionally, Syncrude Canada
implemented an employee retention program.in 2006
that will result in cash payments in early 2008, which
may provide savings associated with an experienced
workforce. This program was renewed in 2009, To deal
with the increased demands on focal infrastructure,
such as housing, Syncrude cooperates, where they
are able to, with other industry participants to share
resources, such as camps. '

There may also be increased activity in global industries
such as the mining sector, which is competing for
constrained supplies and labour. While we do not
expect any specific shortage to impact our current
2009 production outlook, the ability o achieve higher
levels of production may be limited by unexpected
supply or iabour constraints.

Capital Expenditure Risk

Inherent in the mining of ol sands and production of
synthetic crude oil is-a need to make substantial
capital expenditures. As discussed above, inflationary
pressures.in-the mining industry in general and the
Fort McMurray area specifically, are resulting in higher
costs: This cost pressureimpacts capital expenditures
associated with expansion projects and sustaining
capital - expenditures. Further, there is a risk that
maintenance at Syncrude will be required more: often
than currently planned or that significant capital projects
could arise that were not previcusly anticipated.

In addition to potential capital cost increases; we are
exposad o financing risks associated with funding our
share. of Syncrude's capital program. We have
historically minimized this risk by accessing diverse
funding sources, including credit facilities and cash
from operating activities. In addition, we believe that
the Trust has the-ability to access public debt and
equity markets given our asset base and current credit
ratings. For further discussion, see the “Liquidity Risk”
disclosure within the “Financial Market Risk” section
of this MDZA.



There is also risk associated with estimating costs for
major projects. Canadian Oil Sands often discloses
estimates for Syncrude's major projects, which
encompass the conceptual stage through to final
scope design, including detailed engineering cost
estimates. These projects; however, typically evolve
over time and updates for timing and cost estimates
are often provided during project construction. At each
stage of these major projects, cost estimates-involve
uncertainties. Accordingly, actual costs can vary from
the estimates.

Financial Market Risk

Canadian Ol Sands is subject to financial market risk
as aresult of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates, liquidity and credit.

Foreign Currency Risk

Canadian Ol Sands’ results are affected by fluctuations
in the U.S./Cdn currency exchange rates as we
generate ravenue from oll sales based on a U.S. doliar
WT1 benichmark price, while cperating costs and capital
costs are denominated primarily in Canadian doliars.
Over the last two years, the U.8. to Canadian dollar
axchange rate has experienced significant volatility,
ranging from a low of $0.77 U.S./Cdn in December 2008
to & high of $1.08 U.8./Cdn in November 2007. Our
revenue exposure is partially offset by US. dollar
obligations, such as interest costs on U.S. dollar
denominated debt and our share of Syncrude’s .5,
dollar vendor payments. In addition, when our U.S.
senior notes mature, we have exposure to U.S. dollar
exchange rates on the principal repayment of the notes.
This repayment of U.5. dollar debt acts as a partial
economic hedge against the U.S. dollar denominated
revenue payments we recejve from our customers,

In the past, the Trust has hedged foreign currency
exchange rates by entering into fixed rate currency
contracts. The Trust did not have any foreign currency
hedges in place at December 31, 2008, and as at
February 26, 2009, we do not intend 1o enter into
any new currency hedge positions. The Trust may,

however, hedge foreign currency exchange rates in the
future, depending on the business environment and
growth opportunities.

As at December 31, 2008, portions of Canadian Oil
Sands’ cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and long-term debt were denominated
in U.S. dollars. Based on these U.S. dollar financial
instrument closing balances, 2008 net income and
other comprehensive income would have increased/
decreased by approximately $8 million for every $0.01
decrease/increase in the value of the U.S./Canadian
exchange rate.

interest Rate Risk

Canadian Oll Sands’ results, particularly our net interest
expense; are impacted by U.8. and Canadian interest
rate changes because our credit facilities and
investments are exposed to floating interest rates. As
at December 31, 2008, no amounts were drawn on the
credit facilities. The Trust did not have a significant
exposure o intersst rate risk in 2008 based on the
amournt of floating rate debt or investments outstanding
during the year.

Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that Canadian Oll Sands will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Canadian Oil Sands actively manages its liguidity
through daily and tonger term cash, debt and equity
management strategies. Such strategies encompass,
among other factors: having adequate sources of
financing availlable through its bank credit facilities,
estimating future cash generated from operations based
on reasonable production and pricing assumptions,
analysis of economic hedging opportunities, and
compliance with debt covenants:
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information regarding the amount of available credit
facilities and contractual maturities»of Canadian Oil
Sands’ long-term debt can be found in Notes 10 and
11, respectively, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Canadian Oil Sands was in compliance
with its debt covenants as at December 31, 2008.

I addition, we are exposed to liquidity risk to the
extent we have financing requirements related to
significant capital or operating commitments, Over the
long-term, Canadian Qil Sands manages these risks
by spreading out the maturities of its various debt
tranches and maintaining a prudent capital structure,

During the last half of 2008, global credit markets
tightened with a decling in liquidity and higher borrowing

costs. While Canadian Ol Sands continues to generate
cash from operating activities and has $840 million of
credit facilities to support liquidity, access o capital
markets has become constrained and more expensive.
During 2009, two tranches of Canadian Ol Sands’ debt
totalling approximately $500 million will mature. The
Trust is considering the risk that financial markets do
not improve during 2009 and has identified potential
mitigating strategies. These may include accessing the
capital markets prior to these maturities and/or further
distribution cuts, depending on the circumstances and
market conditions:

The: timing. of cash. cutflows relating to financial
liabilities are outlined below:

Cash outflow by period

After
(8 millions} Total < 1 ysar 1 -3 years 4 - & years & years
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $. 284 $ 284 $ - $ - $ -
Long-term debt! 1.861 575 165 447 674

1 Actual payments differ from the carrying value, which is stated at amortized cost. While there is approximately 8500 million of
debt maturing in 2009, Canadian Oil Sands’ intention /s to refinance such debt, Amount includes interest.

Credit Risk

Canadian Oil Sands is exposed to credit risk primarily
through its trade accounts receivable balances with
customers, with: financial counterparties with whom
the Trust has invested its cash and purchased term
deposits from and with its insurance providers in the
svent of an outstanding claim. The maximum exposure
to-any one customer or financial counterparty is
controiled through a eredit policy that limits exposure
based on credit ratings. The policy also specifically
limits the exposure to customers with a credit rating
below investment grade to a maximum of 25 percent of
Canadian Ol Sands’ conselidated accounts receivable.
This credit risk concentration is monitored on a regular
basis. Risk is further mitigated as accounts receivable
with customers typically are seftled in the month
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following the sale, and investments with. financial
counterparties are typically short-termin nature and are
placed with institutions that have a credit rating of “A”
or better. Despite these controls; risk of a credit related
loss has increased in the current economic environment.

The Trust’s maximum credit exposure related to
customer receivables was $167 million at December 31,
2008 (2007 — $377 million}. At December 31, 2008, over
a0 percent of our accounts recelvable balance was
due from investment grade energy producers and
refinery-based customers, and over 90 percent of our
cash and cash equivalenis, were invested in term
depasits from a range of high-quality senior Canadian
banks, totalled $260 million (2007 -~ $3071 million). The
Trust did not have any material derivative contracts in
place as at December 31, 2008. At present, there are
no financial assels that are past their maturity or
impaired due 1o credit risk-related defaults.



Syncrude Joint Venture Ownership

Syncrude is a joint venture that is currently owned by
seven participants with varying interests. Major capital
decisions for new projects require unanimous support
of the Syncrude owners, while other matters require
only the approval of a majority of the working interests
and three Syncrude owners. Historically, Canadian Oil
Sands and the Syncrude owners have sought
consensus on all significant matters. There can be no
assurance, however, that unanimous agreement will be
reached on major capital programs or that future
expansions will be executed as currently planned.
Additionally, while the obligations of the Syncrude joint
venture owners are stated to be joint and not several
under the terms of the joint venture agreement, a
number of the environmental regulatory requirements
impose joint and several liability on all land owners and,
as such; the Syncrude joint venture owners. Mitigating
this is the credit strength of the other joint venture
owners, as well as the ability of the joint venture cwners
to take the production of any defaulting joint venturs
owner to satisfy any such obligations.

Pipeline Transportation and Delivery Infrastructure

All of our Syncrude production is currently transported
through the Alberta Ol Sands Pipeline Limited
{“AOSPL™ system, which delivers crude oil to
Edmonton, Alberta. Disruptions in service on this
system could adversely affect our crude oil sales and
cash from operating activities. The ADSPL system
feeds into various other crude ol pipelines which deliver
our SCO to refinery customers throughout Canada and
the U.S. Interruptions in the availability of these pipsline
systems may limit the ability to deliver production
volumes and could adversely impact sales volumes or
the prices received for our product. These interruptions
may be caused by the inability of the pipeline to operate
or by capacity constraints if the supply of feedstock
into the system exceeds the infrastruciure capacity.
While we believe long-term take-away capacity will
exceed crude oil supply out of Alberta, there can beno
certainty that investments will be made to provide this

capacity. There is also no certainty that short-term
operational constraints on the pipéline system, arising
from pipeline interruptions and/or increased supply of
crude oil, will not occur as capacity is believed to be
tight. In addition, planned or unplanned shutdowns of
our refinery customers may limit our ability to deliver
our SCO with negative implications on revenues and
cash from operating activities.

We manage sxposure to these risks by allocating
deliveries to multiple customers via multiple pipelines,
however, pipeline choices are limited. We alse maintain
knowledge of the infrastructure operational issues and
expansion proposals through industry organizations in
order to assess and. respond. to delivery risks. In
addition, Canadian Oil Sands has obtained access to
crude oll storage as a means of dealing with short-term
restrictions on pipeling capacity.

Environmental Risk

We are exposed to the risk of a negative impact of
Synorude’s operations on the environment. Syncrude’s
commitment to operational, environmental and social
excellence targets global best practices and is aligned
with the mitigation of environmental impacts. The
Syncrude facility incorporates technologies to reduce
emissions, improve energy efficiency and upgrade the
entire production stream to help réfiners mest higher
specifications for environmental and product quality.

The Syncrude operations involve use of water and the
emission of greenhouse gases so0 legislation that
significantly restricts or penalizes current production
levels would have a material impact on our operations.
The costs of meeting such environmental thresholds
would increase operating costs and/or capital costs, and
as such, may impact the profitability of the operations.

Syncrude expects its efforts to reduce ils energy
consumption will contribute to lower CQ, emissions
per barrel of SCO production, Total CO, emissions
may, however, increase as production rises and the risk
exists that these mitigation efforts will not meet socistal
expectations or new environmental regulations.

(&3]
w



Syncrude expects to reduce total sulphur dioxide
(*80,") emissions by up to 60 percent from today’s
approved Alberta Environmental regulatory levels of
245 tonnes per day. Syncrude also expects to reduce
other emissions such as particulate matter and metals
through investments in: sulphur reduction technology.
As part of the Stage 3 expansion, Syncrude equipped
its third fluld coker with a flue gas desulphurizer that
captures SO,. Syncrude has an agreement in place to
provide the sulphur from the desulphurization unitto a
third party for use in the manufacture of ammonium
sulphate fertilizer.

Syncrude also has initiated the SER project, which is
expected to significantly reduce total 8O, and other
emissions, such as particulate matter and metals. It will
involve retrofitting sulphur reduction technology into
the operation of Syncrude’s original two Base Plant
cokers. Procurement and construction expenditures
are scheduled for the next three years. The resulting
805 emissions also are expected 16 -be below new
maximum emission levels that will take effectfollowing
the completion of the SER project.

Syncrude produces. and. stores significant amounts
of sulphur in inventory biocks at its plant site as there
has historically been a limited market for the sulphur.
There can be no assurancs that future environmental
regulations pertaining fo the use, storage, handling
and/or sale of sulphur will not adversely impact the unit
costs of preduction of our SCO. Syncrude is exploring
the ability to store sulphur blocks underground. Initial
information indicates that this may be a viable and
environmentally-friendly sclution for dealing with the
excess sulphur. Syncrude continues. {0 research
alternatives for addressing this issue, which also affects
other sulphur producers in the petroleum industry.

in 2005, the Trust entered an agreement with: a major
sulphur marketer to sell cur share of Syncrude’s
sulphur production. The agreement provided for the
sale of sulphur once certain port infrastructure 'was

o
o

constructed, if the price exceeded an established
minimum plant gate price. The construction of port
infrastructure has been delayed pending approvals and
project support. Sales under this contract may begin
in 2011 if the buyer proceeds with the construction of
the port infrastructure later this year. In the meantime,
interim sales of sulphur may occur from time to time
based on demand and pricing.

Synerude owners are liable for their share of ongoing
environmental obligations for the ultimate reclamation
of the Syncrude Project. We are currently funding our
share of Syncrude's ongoing environmental obligations
through cash from operating activities. Each of the
Syncrude owners has directly posted letters of credit
with the Province of Alberta to secure-the ultimate
mining reclamation obligations, of which Carnadian Oil
Sands’ share was approximately $67 million as at
December 31, 2008. in addition to the letters of cradit,
Canadian Ot Sands maintains a reclamation trust fund
to help meet this future reclamation liability.

I 2008, we contributed approximately $8. million,
including sarned interest, versus approximately $7 million
in 2007 to our reclamation trust account, resulting in g
December 31, 2008 ending balance of approximatsly
%43 million. The funding requirement of the reclamation
trust is more fully described in Note 12 to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Legal and regulatory regimes regarding emissions and
environmental protection in the U.8: may also impact
the Trust. Environmental legislation in importing
jurisdictions in the U.8. may directly affect costs
associated with sales of Syncrude production inthose
jurisdictions. For example, legisiation regulating carbon
fuel standards in California and cother states could
result in increased costs to the Trust if purchases of
emission permits or crediis are required in order to
conduct sales in those jurisdictions. The legal and
regulatory regimes applicable to American refineries
may also have significant, indirect consequences on
Canadian Qil Sands’ marketing of Syncrude products
o the extent that the capacity of refining companies to
handle Syncrude products is negatively impacted.



There are also various consultation processes underway
by the Province of Alberta with regard to water usage
in the oll and gas industry and the oil sands sector, in
particular. Again, as no conclusions or recommendations
have been issued by such regulatory review body,
we cannot assess the impact of any such proposals
on our operations.

Foreign Ownership
Under current legislation, mutual fund trusts must be
established “primarily for the benefit of Canadians”.
Historically, the federal government has taken this to
mean that not more than 50 percent of Unitholders can
be non-Canadian residents. While some royalty trusts
rely upon specific tax language which provides a
“technical exception” to this provision, the basis upon
which Canadian Oif Sands Trust was established in
1995 does not fit within such technical language. The
Trust Indenture, under which the Trust was created,
provides that no more than 49 percent of the Units of
the Trust can be held by non-Canadian residents.
- Depending upon the nature of the Trust’s operations at
the time, the potential impact of exceeding this
threshold may be the loss of mutual fund trust status to
the Trust, which may significantly adversely impact the
valuation of the Units. As such, the Trust continues to
monitor, to the exient possible given the practical
limitations regarding beneficial ownership information,
the level of non-Canadian resident Unitholders. To the
best of our knowledge, the Trust has always had less
than 50 percent non-Canadian resident Unitholders.

The Trust uses declarations from Unitholders and,
occasionally, geographical searches 1o estimate
the level of Canadian and non-Canadian resident
Unitholders of the Trust at certain periods throughout
the year. While the Trust believes that these results are
reasonable estimations at the time that they are
provided, the inability of all publicissuers to obtain the
residency information of its beneficial holders means
that issuers are reliant upon the information provided to
the transfer agent. As a result, the residency information
is subject to the accuracy provided by third-party data
and by information system limitations. Accordingly, the

reported level of Canadian ownership is subject to
these limitations and the level of Canadian ownership
may change at any time without notice and without
our knowledge.

Based on account data at February 9, 2008, Canadian
(il Sands estimates that approximately 30 percent of
our Units are held by non-Canadian residents with the
ramaining 70 percent being held by Canadian residents.

As part of Canadian Oil Sands’ assessment of the
proposed changes 1o the taxation of income trusis
announced by the federal government on Cctober 31,
20086, the Board of Directors may reconsider the foreign
ownership restrictions in light of the proposed taxation
changes. Accordingly, further clarity on this issue is
required from the federal government before Canadian
Ol Sands can determine the best course of action for
its Unitholders should this ownership limitation arise.

Changes to Tax Legislation

Tax changes enacted by the federal or provincial
government can have a material impact on Unitholder
distributions. Of specific note is the new federal tax on
certain distributions from existing income and royalty
trusts effective in 2011, This new tax will ultimately
have a material adverse impact on the cash from
operating activities and, accordingly, distributions to
Unitholders after the transition period in 2011, In
response 1o these changes, and based on current
expectations, Canadian Gil Sands will most likely
convert to a corporation. We will also consider other
options that may emerge.- Implications of pending
changes are difficult to evaluate in the absence of final
legislation and no assurance can be provided regarding
the outcome of the transition.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS COMPARED TO PRIOR
YEAR'S QUTLOOK

in its 2007 annual MDA&A, the Trust provided guidance
with regard io. its expected cash from operating
activities' and capital expenditures (the “original

gstimate” or “original Outlook™). During 2008 the Trust
revised  this. guidance in. guarterly reports and
information releases to reflect actual operating resulis
and new material information as it became available
{the “revised estimate” or “revised Cutlook™;

2008 Outlook
2008 Actual Original? Revised?2
Qutlook assumptions: '

Syncrude production (mmbbis) 106 115 106

Canadian Oil Sands’ sales immbbis) 39 42 39

West Texas Intermediate (average U.5.$ per barrel) $ 99.75 $ 80.00 $ 102.00

Premium (Discount) price differential (Cang/bol) $ 184 $ 250) $ 275

Average foreign exchange rates (1.5:3/Can$) $ . 0.94 $ 1.00 $ 094

Cash from operating activities imiions) & 2,241 $ 1,588 $ 2204
Revenues after crude ol purchases and

transportation expense $.4,169 $ 3,274 $ 4,336

1 As provided in the Trust’s 2007 annual report,
2 Finai cutlook providing during 2008.
3 Based on a volume weighted-average calcufation.

Syncrude production in 2008 of 106 million barrels
was lower than Canadian Oll Sands’ original estimate
of 115 million barrels. The Trust had revised its estimate
of annual Syncrude production to 108 million barrels
during 2008 to reflsct operational difficulties encountered
during the first quarter,

Actual cash from operating activities exceeded the
ariginal Cutlook by $653 million, primarily reflecting
higher realized selling prices net of higher operating
costs and Crown royalties than originally estimated.
The significant increase in our actual selling price
resulted in revenues that were $895 million higherthan
our original estimate. However, selling prices fell by the
end of December resuiting in a decrease in non-cash
working capital which increased cash from operating
activities by $202 miflion.
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We ravised our estimate of WTl prices in Qctober 2008
to $102 U.S. per barrel and the price differential to a
$2.75 per barrel premium to reflect the strength in prices
during the first nine months of the year, howsver, WT!
prices declined significantly in the last quarter of 2008.
Revenues after crude oif purchases and fransportation
expense were $4.2 billion, approximately $0.1 billion
less than our revised estimate. Forecasted cash from
operating activities was not significantly impactedas a
significant decrease in non-cash working capital, as well
as a reduction in Crown royalties in comparison with our
revised estimate, mors than offset the lower revenues.

Actual capital expenditures in 2008 were $281 million
compared to our original Outlook of $279 million.



2009 CUTLOOK

{(miflions of Canadian dollars, except volume and per barrel amounts}

Syncrude production immbbis) 115
Canadian Oil Sands sales (mmbbis) 42.3
Revenuss, net of crude oil purchases and transportation $ 2,392
Operating costs $ 1,300
Operating costs per barrel $ 3076
Crown royaities $ 85
Capital expenditures $ . 440
Cash from operating activities $ . 747
Business environment assumptions

West Texas Intermediate (U.S.8/bb) $ 50.00
Premium (Discount) to average C$-WTI prices (Cdn$/bb)) % (4.00)
Foreign exchange rate {.8.$/Cdn$) $ 083
AECO natural gas (Cdn$/GJ $ 6.00

Syncrude's 2009 annual production is estimated to total
115 million barrels with a range of 110 to 120 million
barrels (net to the Trust, equivalent to 42 million barrels
with a range of 40 to 44 million barrels). This estimate
includes a turnaround of Coker 8-3 in the second
quarter of 2008, a turnaround of the LC-Finer in the third
quarter of 2009, a turnaround of the vacuum distillation
unit with- the timing not yet determined, and an
allowance for some unplanned outages. The production
range reflects our current best estimate of the upside
and downside in volumes Syncrude could experience,
depending on operational refiability, in 2008.

The production estimate also incorporates reliabitity
issues in the mining and exiraction processes that

continue to limit progress towards design capacity.
Syncrude is focusing resources o address this
challenge, including the use of additional contractor
services 1o accslerate overburden removal and expose
mare oll sands ore to optimize blending and increase
feed volumes to our extraction plants.

Purchases of bitumen by Syncrude are not anticipated
to be reguired during 2009 to achieve the budgeted
production levels; however, Syncrude continues fo
maonitor bitumen prices and upgrading capacity and
purchases bitumen from time to time to optimize iis
operations. These purchases are not anticipated io
have a material impact on Syncrude’s production and
Canadian Oil Sands’ financial results in 2008,

(&3]
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2009 Cost Estimates

Cdn$ Per Bbl ~ U.8.$ Per Bbis

Syncrude Costs
Operating expenses § 3078 $ 2538
Non-production costs 3.37 2.78
34.13 28,16
Capital expenditures 10.41 8.59
Total Syncrude costs % 4454 $ 36.75

Canadian Oil Sands Costs
Interest

173 $ 143

Administration, Insurance, and Gther 0.78 0.64
Total Canadian Oil Sands costs 2.51 2.07
Total Syncrude and Canadian Oil Sands costs $ . 47.05 $ 38.82
Crown royalties $ 155 $ 1.28

1 Amounts have been converted to U.S.§ at the 2009 Outiook foreign exchange rate of $0.825 1.5./Carn for convenience of the

reader.

We expect the Trust’s revenues after crude oil purchases
and transportation expense in 2009 to total $2.4 billion.
Annual operating expenses in-2009 are estimated at
$31 per barrel, consisting of $25 per barrel of production
costs and $6 per barrel of purchased energy. Purchased
snergy costs assume a $6 per GJ natural gas price.
When combined with Syncrude non-production costs
and capital expenditures, total Syncrude costs per our
2008 Cutlook are sstimated at $44 per barrel. Canadian
Oil Sands expects to incur an additional $3 per barrel
of costs to cover inferest experise, administration,
and insurance, resulting in 2009 Cutlook total costs
of $47 per barrel for Syncrude and Canadian Olf Sands:
Crown royalties are estimated af an additional $1.55
per barrel.

We have assumed a $50 U.S. per barrel WTI crude oll
price, an $0.825 U.5./Cdn foreign exchange rate, and
a $4.00 per barrel SCO discount to C$-WTH, resulting in
revenues of $57 Gdn per barrel.

Based on the above assumptions, our estimate of 2009
cash from operating activities is $747 million, or $1.55
per Unit. After considering estimated 2009 capital
expenditures of $440 million, we are projecting
$307 million, or $0.64 per Unit, of remaining cash from
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operating activities that will be available 6 repay debt
or pay distributions.

While Syncrude’s operating costs and  capital
expenditures are relatively fixed in nature, Syncrude
will continue to pursue opportunities {0 reduce or
defer the fiming of costs. We believe we have
positioned the Trust prudently in light of the current
business environment to maintain the momentum of
ourfong-term growth strategy.

Distributions paid - in. 2009 are expecied: .to" be
100 percent taxable as other income. The actual
taxability of the distributions will be determined and
reported to Unitholders prior o the end of the first
quarter of 2010,

Changes in certain factors and market conditions could
potentially impact Canadian Oll Sands’ QOutlock. The
following table provides a sensitivity analysis of the key
factors affecting the Trust’s cash from operating
activities. In addition to the factors described in the
table, the supply/demand equation and pipeline access
for synthstic crude oil in the North American markets
could alsoimpact the price differential for SCO relative
to crude benchmarks, but these factors are difficult
o predict.



2009 Qutlook Sensitivity Analysis

Cash from QOperating Activities
Increase

Variable 1 Annual Sensitivity $ millions &/Trust Unit
Syncrude operating costs decrease Cdn$1.00/bbl 35 0.07
Syncrude operating costs decrease Cdn$50 million 15 0.03
WT crude oll price increase U.8.$1.00/bbl 41 0.08
Syncrude production increase 2 million bbls 33 0.07
Canadian dollar weakening U.8.$0.01/Cdns 24 0.05
AECQ natural gas price decrease Cadn$0.50/Gd 16 0.03

1 An opposite change in each of these variables will result in the opposite cash from operating activities impacts. Canadian Oif
Sanids may become subject to minimum Crown royalties at a rate of one percent of gross bitumen revenue.
The sensitivities presented herein assume rayafties are paid at 25 percent of net biturmen revenue:

CGONTROLS ENVIRONMENT

Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adeguate internal control over financial
reporting. We have established disclosure confrols and
procedures, internal control aver financial reporting,
and organization-wide policies to provide reasonable
assurance that Canadian Oil Sands’ consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows
are presented fairly. Our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed o provide reasonabile
assurance of the timely disclosure and communication
of all material information.

We periodically review and update our internal control
systems to reflect changes in our business environment.
We did not materially change any of our internal controls
during 2008.

All internal control systems, no matier how well
dasigned, have inhsrent limitations. These systems,
therefore, provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
that financial information is acourate and complets.

Canadian Oif Sands, under the supervision and
participation of Management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures and the design of our internal control
over financial reporting pursuant fo Multilateral
instrument 52-108 “Certification of Disclosure in
Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings™ as of December 31,
2008. In addition, Management has evaluated the
sffectivenass of internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31, 2008 using criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations . of the
Treadway Commission. Based on these evaluations,
Canadian Oil Sands’ Management concluded that:

« Qur disclosure conircls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2008 to provide
reasonable assurance that material information is
recorded, processed; summarized and reported
within the time periods specified by the applicable
Canadian securities regulators. Furthermore, our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed

. {0 provide reasonable assurance thal material
information  required. 1o Dbe disclosed under
applicable ‘Canadian securities regulation is

communicaied to our Management, including ocur

President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief

Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure; and

s Our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008 was designed and operated
effectively 1o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the Trust’s financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with GAAR

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. our auditors, have
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness
of Canadian Oil Sands’ internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2008, as stated in their
report which appears herein.



Management’s
Report

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the information contained in this annual report. The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and
include amounts based on Management's informed judgments and estimates. Where alternative accounting
methods axist, Management has chosen those that it deems o be the most apprepriate based on Canadian Gil
Sands’ operations. The financial and operating information included in this annual report is consistent with that
contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements in ali material respects.

To assist Management in fulfiling its responsibilities, systems of accounting, internal conirols and disclosure
controls are maintained 1o provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that financial information is reliable and
accurate and that assets are adequately safeguarded. In addition, Canadian Oil Sands has in place a Code of
Business Conduct that applies to all of its employees and directors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, appointed annually by the Unitholders to serve as Canadian
Oil Sands’ external auditors, were engaged to conduct an examination of the Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), and have expressed their opinion on these
statements. Canadian Qi Sands also engages independent reserve evaluators to conduct independent evaluations
of its crude oil reserves and resources. The external auditors and reserve evaluators have unrestricted access
to the Management of Canadian Oil Sands, the Audit Committee, the Reserves, Marketing Operations, and
Environmental, Health and Safety Committee and the Beard of Directors. '

The Board of Directors has appointed a five-person Audit Committee, consisting of directors who are neither
employees nor officers of Canadian Oil Sands and all of whom are independent. it meets regularly with Management
and external auditors to discuss controls over the financial reporting process, auditing and other financial reporting
matters. In addition, the Audit Committee recommends the appointment of Canadian Olf Sands’ external auditors.



The Audit Committee meets at least quarterly with Management and the external auditors to review and approve
interim financial statements prior to their release and recommends the audited annual financial statements to the
Board of Directors for their approval. Annually, the Board of Directors reviews and approves Canadian Oil Sands’
annual financial statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, AlF, Management Information Circular, and
annual reserves estimates. The Board of Directors has approved the annual audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of Canadian Oil Sands’ internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008 using criteria established in the Internal Control ~ Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, Management concluded that
Canadian Oil Sands’ internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our auditors, has audited the effectiveness of Canadian Oil Sands’ internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 as stated in their report which appears herein.

(signed) “Marcel R. Coutu” {signed} “Ryan M. Kubik”
President & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
February 26, 2009 February 26, 2009



Independent Audifors’
Report

To the Unitholders
of Canadian Qil Sands Trust

We have completed integrated audits of Canadian Oil Sands Trust's 2008 and 2007 consolidated financial statements
and of its internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 2008. Our opinions, based on our audits, are
presented below.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Canadian Oil Sands Trust (the “Trust”) as at
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated Statements of income and Comprehensive
income and Unitholders’ Equity and Cash Flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Trust’s management. Our responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits of the Trust’s financial statements as at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 and
for each of the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. A financial statement audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reascnable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Trust as at December 31, 2008 and Decemnber 31, 2007 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We have also audited the Trust’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (*COSO”). The Trust’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
inciuded in the accompanying Management’s Report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. An entity’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the entity; (i) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the entity; and (jii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Trust maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control - integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

(signed) *PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”
Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Alberta

February 26, 2009



Consolidated Statements
of Income and Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31
{$ millions, except per Trust Unit amounts)

Revenues

Expenses
Operating
Non-production
Crude oil purchases and transportation expense
Crown royalties (Note 20)
Administration
Insurance
Interest, net (Note 16)
Depreciation, depletion and accretion (Note 7)
Foreign exchange loss (gain)

Earnings before taxes from continuing operations
Future income tax expense {recovery) (Note 13)

Net income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Reclassification of derivative gains to net income

Comprehensive income

Weighted-~average Trust Units milions)
Trust Units, end of year (millions)

Net income per Trust Unit :
Basic Note 19)
Diluted Note 14)

See Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements.

1 Discontinued operations did not have a material impact on basic or diluted net income per Trust Unit,

$ 3,633

1,034
63
383
485

$ 155
$ 154




Consolidated Statements

of Unitholders’ Equity

For the years ended December 31
{$ mittions})

Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year, as previously reported
Net income
Unitholder distributions (Note 17)

Balance, end of year

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Balance, beginning of year
Other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes

Balance, end of year

Unitholders’ capital
Balance, beginning of year
issuance of Trust Units (Note 74)

Balance, end of year

2,500

Contributed surplus
Balance, beginning of year
Exercise of employee stock options
Stock-based compensation (Note 15)

Balance, end of year

Total Unitholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2007

$ 1,691
743
791)
1,643

30
®
24

2,260
240
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Consolidated
Balance Sheets

As at December 31

8 miltions) L2007
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 268
Accounts receivable 379
Inventories (Note 6) 102
Prepaid expenses 6
755
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 7) 6,427
Other assets
Goodwill 52
Reclamation trust (Note 12) 37
$ 7,271
Liabilities and Unitholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8) $ 289
Current portion of employee future benefits (vote 9 16
305
Employee future benefits and other liabilities (Note 9) 128
Long-term debt (Note 17) 1,218
Asset retirement obligation (Note 12) 226
Future income taxes (Note 13} 1,222
3,099
Unitholders’ equity (Note 14 4,172
$ 7,271

Commitments, Contingencies, and Guaraniees (Notes 21, 22 and 23, respectively}

See Notes to Consolfidated Financial Statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors

(signed) “Wesley R. Twiss” {signed) “C. E. {Chuck} Schultz”
Director Director
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Consolidated
Statements »of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31
{$ mitlions) :

Cash from (used in) operating activities

Net income

ltems not requiring an outlay of cash
Depreciation, depletion and accretion
Unrealized foreign exchange loss {gain) on long-term debt
Future income tax expense (recovery)
Other

Net change in deferred items

Funds from operations
Change in non-cash working capital (Note 24)

Cash from operating activities

Cash from {used in) financing activities
Repayment of medium term and Senior Notes (Note 11)
Net drawdown {repayment) of bank credit facilities (Note 10)
Unitholder distributions (Note 17)
Issuance of Trust Units (Note 714

Cash used in financing activities

Cash from {used in) investing activities
Capital expenditures
Acquisition of additional Syncrude working interest (Note 5)
Disposition of properties
Reclamation trust funding
Change in non-cash working capital (Vote 24)

Cash used in investing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash
Short-term investments

Supplementary Information (Note 24

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

351
{153}
578

@)
26

1,542
(165)
1,377




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

({Tabular amounts expressed in millions of Canadian dollars, except where otherwise noted.)

Note 1. STRUCTURE OF CANADIAN OIL SANDS TRUST

Canadian Oil Sands Trust {the “Trust”) is an open-ended investment trust formed under the laws of the Province of Alberta
in Octeber 1995 pursuant to a trust indenture (“Trust Indenture”) that has since been amended and restated. Computershare
Trust Company of Canada is appointed as Trustee under the Trust Indenture. The beneficiaries of the Trust are the holders
{“Unitholders”) of the Units (“Units”) in the Trust.

Through its subsidiary, Canadian Oil Sands Limited (“COSL), the Trust indirectly owns a 36.74 percent interest (*Working
Interest”) in the Syncrude Joint Venture {(“Syncrude”). Syncrude is involved in the mining and upgrading of bitumen from
oil sands in Northern Alberta and is operated by Syncrude Canada Lid. (“Syncrude Canada™).

Note 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Canada (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the Trust and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Canadian Qif Sands”). The
activities of Syncrude are conducted jointly with others and, accordingly, these financial statements reflect only Canadian
Oil Sands’ proportionate interest in such activities, which include the production, operating costs, non-production costs,
Crown royalty expenses, property, plant and equipment capital expenditures, inventories, employee future benefits and
other liabilities, asset retirement obligation, and associated amounts payable and receivable. Substantially all operations
of Canadian Qil Sands are carried out through the jcint venture.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments with maturities of less than 90 days at purchase are considered to be cash equivalents and are recorded at
cost, which approximates fair value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") includes oil sands assets and interests in natural gas licenses located in the Arctic

islands in Northern Canada (the “Arctic assets”). The oil sands assets are recorded at cost and include the costs of acquiring
~the Working Interest and costs that are directly related to the exploration, development and construction of oil sands

projects. Included in the ol sands assets are asset retirement costs associated with Canadian Oil Sands’ asset retirement

obligations. Cverburden removal, turnaround costs and repairs and maintenance are expensed in the period incurred.

Oil sands assets are depreciated and depleted using the unit-of-production method based on estimated proved plus
probable reserves. For purposes of the depreciation and depletion provision, capital costs include future capital costs
expected to be necessary in the mining, exiraction and upgrading process to recover the estimated proved plus
probable reserves.

An impairment test is applied to the oil sands assets to ensure that capitalized costs, less the cost of unproved properties,
do not exceed management’s estimate of future undiscounted revenues from proved and probable reserves, less
transportation and operating expenses, Crown royalties, future development capital costs and general and administrative
expenses. If it is determined that the net recoverable amount is less than the net carrying amount, a write-down to the
fair value is taken and charged to earnings in the period. The Trust performs this test at least annually or more frequently
if there is an indication that asset impairment has potentially occurred.

The Arctic assets are recorded at cost and include the costs of acquiring the varying interests in natural gas licenses
located in the Arctic Islands in Northern Canada. The Arctic assets are not amortized as they are not yet developed. A
test for impairment of the Arctic assets is performed at least annually or sooner if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If it is determined that the net recoverable amount is less than
the net carrying amount, a write-down to the fair value is taken and charged to earnings in the period.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded at cost and represents the excess of the purchase price over the accounting fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. if it is determined that the
net recoverable amount of the underlying assets that gave rise to the goodwill is less than the net carrying amount of such
assets, a write-down 1o the fair value of goodwill is taken and charged to earnings in the period.

|68



inventories
inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and their net realizable value.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The estimated fair value of the Trust’s share of Syncrude’s asset retirement obligations is recognized on the Trust's
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Syncrude’s reclamation obligations relate to the site restoration of each mine site. The
discounted full amount of the liability is recorded upon initial land disturbance or when a reasonable estimate of the fair
value of the reclamation expenditures can be determined. The fair value is determined by estimating the timing and
amounts of the future reclamation expenditures, and discounting the expenditures using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate
applicable to the Trust. The asset retirement cost is equal to the estimated fair value of the asset retirement obligation
and is capitalized as part of the Trust’s PP&E. The asset retirement obligation is accreted based on the Trust’s credit-
adjusted risk-free rate and the accretion expense is included in the Trust’s depreciation, depletion and accretion (“DDA”)
expense in the Consolidated Statements of iIncome and Comprehensive Income.

Actual reclamation payments are charged against the accumulated asset retirement obligation when incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from the sale of synthetic crude oil and other products are recorded when title passes from Canadian Oil Sands
to a third party. Revenues are recorded inclusive of hedging gains and losses, if any, from foreign currency exchange rate
and crude cil hedge contracts.

Employee Future Benefits

Canadian Oil Sands accrues its proportionate share of obligations as a joint venture owner in respect of Syncrude
Canada’s esmployee benefit plans and the related costs, net of plan assets. The cost of employee pension and other
retirement benefits is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method based on length of service and reflects
Syncrude’s best estimate of the expected performance of the plan investment, salary escalation factors, retirement ages
of employees and future health care costs. The expected return on plan assets is based on the fair value of those assets.
Past service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated average remaining
service fife of active employees (*EARSL”} at the date of amendment. The excess of any net actuarial gain or loss
exceeding 10 percent of the greater of the benefit obligation and fair value of the plan assets is amortized over the EARSL.

Future Income Taxes

Canadian Qil Sands follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income taxes
are calculated as the difference between the accounting and income tax basis of an asset or liability, referred to as
temporary differences, tax effected using substantively enacted or enacted income tax rates expected to be in effect when
such temporary differences reverse. Future income tax balances recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet are
adjusted to reflect changes in temporary differences and income tax rates, with the adjustments being recognized in net
income in the period that the changes occur.

Non-Monetary Transactions
Canadian Oil Sands exchanges crude oil batches with third parties in the normal course of operations. These transactions
lack commercial substance and are therefore recorded at carrying value without the recognition of a gain or loss.

Stock-Based Compensation

Canadian Qil Sands recognizes stock-based compensation expense in its Consolidated Statement of income and
Comprehensive Income for ail Unit options (“options”) granted with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus in
Unitholders’ Equity. Canadian Oil Sands determines compensation expense based on the estimated fair values of the
options at the time of grant, the cost of which is recognized in net income over the vesting periods of the options.

Canadian Qil Sands also recognizes stock-based compensation expense related to its performance units ("PUPs”), which
are awards granted to Canadian Oil Sands officers, other select employees and consuiltants and its affiliates under
Canadian Oil Sands’ performance Unit Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”). Canadian Oll Sands determines compensation
expense based on the estimated fair values of the PUPs, the cost of which is recognized in net income over the vesting
periods of the PUPs. At the current time, there is no issuance of Units from treasury under this Incentive Plan and instead
employees in such Incentive Plan receive cash, or cash to purchase Units in the secondary market.
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As an owner in Syncrude, Canadian Oil Sands also records its share of costs for Syncrude Canada’s stock-based
compensation programs. Syncrude Canada’s programs include Incentive Phantom Share Units Plan (“Phantom Units”)
and Incentive Restricted Share Units Plan (“Restricted Units”), both of which require settlement by cash payments.
Compensation expense for the Phantom Units and Restricted Units is recognized over the shorter of the normal vesting
period and the period to eligible retirement if vesting is accelerated on retirement. Canadian Oil Sands’ share of the
change in the fair values of the vested Phantom Units and Restricted Units, which are based on market-related values
of various Syncrude owners’ shares/units at period ends, is recognized in operating expense in the year the change occurs.

Foreign Currency Translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at exchange rates
in effect at the end of the period, with the resulting gain or loss recorded in the Consclidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income. Revenues and expenses are translated into Canadian dollars at average exchange rates.
Translation gains and losses on U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt are recorded as unrealized until repayment of
the debt obligations. All other translation gains and losses are classified as realized.

Net Income per Trust Unit

Canadian Oil Sands applies the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive impact, if any, of options assuming they
were exercised in a reporting period. The treasury stock method assumes that all proceeds received by the Trust when
options are exercised would be used to purchase Units at the average market price during the period.

Financial Instruments
All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the balance sheet. Subsequent measurement of financial
instruments is based on their classification as follows:

Ciassification Measurement

Held for trading Fair value with changes recognized in net income

Held to maturity Amortized cost using effective interest method

Loans and receivables Amortized cost using effective interest method

Available for sale Fair value with changes recognized in other comprehensive income
Other liabilities Amortized cost using effective interest method

Transaction costs are added to the amount of the associated financial instrument and amortized accordingly using the
effective interest rate method.

The fair values of the Trust’s financial instruments, other than long-term debt, approximate their carrying values due to the
short-term nature of those instruments. The fair value of long-term debt is determined based on market price indications.
In fair valuing its derivatives, the Trust utilizes a valuation technigue using available market prices.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements under GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions for many financial statement items based on its best estimates and judgments. Significant judgments and
estimates relate to depreciation, depletion, impairment tests and asset retirement obligation costs as they are based on
reserve engineering studies, environmental studies, new mine plans and price and cost estimates, which by their nature,
are subjective and contain measurement uncertainty. The values of pension and other benefit plan accrued obligations
and plan assets and the amount of pension cost charged 1o net income depend on certain actuarial and economic
assumptions, which by their nature are subject to measurement uncertainty. The caiculation of future income tax is based
on assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty as to the timing and at which tax rates temporary differences are
expected to reverse. Uncertainties related to various income tax positions exist because the timing of resolution and the
impact on tax pool balances are not currently determinable. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts
as future events occur.

Reclassification _
Certain information provided for prior years has been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in 2008.



Note 3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In June 2007, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) issued a new accounting standard - Section 3031
Inventtories, which replaces the existing standard for inventories, Section 3030. The main features of the new section are as follows:

» Measurement of inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value;

» Consistent use of either first-in, first-out or a weighted average cost formula to measure cost; and

» Reversal of previous write-downs to the lower of cost and the revised net realizable value when there is a subsequent
increase to the value of inventories.

The new inventory standard was effective for the Trust beginning January 1, 2008. Application of the new standard did
not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

Note 4, NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Goodwill

in February 2008, the CICA issued a new accounting standard — Section 3064 Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which
replaces Section 3062 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and Section 3450 Research and Development Costs. The
new Section establishes standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of goodwili and intangible assets.
The Section is effective for the Trust beginning January 1, 2009. Application of the new Section is not expected to have
a material impact on the Trust’s financial statements.

international Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the CICA Accounting Standards Board confirmed that the adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRS”} would be effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011 for
Canadian publicly accountable enterprises. IFRS will effectively replace Canadian GAAP for these enterprises. Comparative
IFRS information for the previous fiscal year will also be required.

Canadian Oil Sands has developed a plan to convert its consolidated financial statements to IFRS beginning January 1,
2011. To date, Management has identified potentiial differences between GAAP and IFRS related to the accounting for
portions of the Syncrude joint venture and effects of transitional provision of IFRS for first time adopters. Management
is reviewing the impact that these differences will have on accounting policies, information technology and data systems,
internal control over financial reporting, disclosure controls and procedures, financial reporting, and business activities.

Mote 5. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL BYNCRUDE WORKING INTEREST

On January 2, 2007, a subsidiary of the Trust closed an acquisttion with Talisman Energy inc. (*Talisman”} to purchase
an additional 1.25 percent indirect working interest in Syncrude for $476 million. The transaction price was comprised of
$238 million in cash and 8,189,655 Units issued from treasury with an approximate value at the time of entering the
acquisition agreement of $29 per Unit.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase of assets. The Trust has allocated the purchase price based on
fair values to the assets and liabilities as follows:

Net assets and liabilities assumed

Property, plant and equipment $ 668
Cash 8
Working capital 1
Employee future benefits and other liabilities (8)
Asset retirement obligation (6)
Future income taxes (187)
$ 476
Consideration
Cash $ 238
issuance of Trust Units 237
Acquisition costs 1
$ 476

The working interest was acquired through the acquisition of Talisman’s interest in a partnership between Talisman and
a subsidiary of the Trust. Immediately following the acquisition of Talisman's partnership interest, the partnership was
dissolved. The dissolution resuited in an adjustment that increased Canadian Oil Sands’ future income tax liability by
$140 million as well as increased its property, plant and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Note 8. INVENTORIES

As at December 31 2008 2007
Materials and supplies $ 72 $ 69
Product and linefill 21 33

$ 93 $ 102

Note 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Accumulated

Depreciation
As at December 31, 2008 Cost and Depletion Net Book Value
Oil sands assets $ 7,942 $ 1,830 $ 6,112
Arctic assets 165 - 165
$ 8,107 $ 1,830 $ 6,277
As at December 31, 2007
Oil sands assets $ 7,662 $ 1,400 $ 6,262
Arctic assets 165 - 165
$ 7827 $ 1,400 $ 5,427

The Arctic assets are not subject to amortization as they have not yet been developed.

DD&A expense is comprised of the following:

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
Depreciation and depletion expense $ 430 3 340
Accretion expense 14 11

$ 444 $ 351

Note &, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABHITIES

As at December 31 2008 2007
Due to Syncrude Joint Venture/Syncrude Canada Ltd. $ 250 3 225
Accrued liabilities 9 42
interest payable 25 22

$ 284 $ 289

Amounts due to the Syncrude Joint Venture/Syncrude Canada Lid. typically include commercial trade payables and
Crown royalties payable.

Note 8. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS AND OTHER LIABLITIES

As at December 31 2008 2067
Employee future benefits (a} $ 110 $ 113
Accrued variable compensation and other (b} 61 56
171 169
Less current portion comprised of:

Employee future benefits {17} (16}

Accrued variable compensation and other {included in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities) {55) {25}
) $ 99 $ 128
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a) Employee Future Benefits

Syncrude Canada has a defined benefit and two defined contribution plans providing pension benefits and other
retirement and post-employment benefit (‘“OPEB”) plans covering most of its employees. Other post-employment benefits
include certain health care and life insurance benefits for retirees, their beneficiaries and covered dependants. The OPEB
plan is not funded.

Defined Benefit Plan

Syncrude measures its accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for accounting purposes as at
December 31 of each year. The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension plans for funding purposes was completed
in 2007 and was as of December 31, 2006. The next required valuation will be as of December 31, 2009.

Canadian Oil Sands’ share of Syncrude Canada’'s defined benefit plan accrued fiability, based on its 36.74 percent
ownership at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, is comprised of its share of Syncrude Canada’s accrued
benefit obligation, partially offset by its share of Syncrude Canada's defined benefit plan assets as follows:

Other
Post-Employment
Pension Benefit Plan Benefits Total

As at December 31 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Accrued benefit obligation:

Balance, beginning of year $ 584 $ 533 $ 50 $ 39 $ 634 $ 572

Acquired (Note 5) - 18 - 1 - 19

Current service cost 23 24 1 1 24 25

Interest cost 31 28 3 2 34 30

Transferred in 3 5 - - 3 5

Benefits paid {24) @1 {2) M 26) (22)

Actuarial loss {gain) {114) 3 {11) 8 {125} 5

Balance, end of year $ 3503 $ 584 $ 41 $ 50 $ 544 $ 634
Fair value of plan assets:

Actuarial fair value,

beginning of year $ 374 $ 339 $ - 3 - $ 374 $ 339

Acquired (Note 5) - 12 - - - 12

Actual return on plan assets {99) 8 - - {99) 8

Employer contributions 33 30 - - 33 30

Contributions - transfers 3 5 - - 3 5

Benefits paid {23) (20) - - {23} {(20)

Actuarial fair value, end of year 288 374 - - 288 374
Funded status — Plan deficit {215) (210) {41) (50) {256) {(260)
Unamortized net actuarial loss? 145 134 3. 15 148 149
Unamortized past service costs 1 - - {2 {2) {2 2
Accrued benefit liability s {70 $ (79 $ ({40) $ @37 $ (110) $ (113

1 Amortized over the expected average remaining service lives of employees covered by the plan, which is generally 12 years.

The asset allocation for Syncrude Canada’s plan assets was as follows:

Percentage of plan assets

As at December 31 2008 2007
Equity securities 68 88
Debt securities ) 32 32

100 100
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Elements of defined benefit costs recognized in the year:

Other
Post-Employment
Pension Benefit Plan Benefits Total
For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current service cost $ 23 $ 24 $ 1 3 1 $ 24 $ 25
interest cost 31 28 3 2 34 30
Actual return on plan assets 59 8) - - 99 8)
Actuarial loss {gain) {114) 3) {11) 8 {125) 5

Elements of employee future benefits
costs before adjustments to
recognize the long-term nature
of employee future benefit costs $ 39 $ 41 $ M $ 11 $ 32 $ 52

Adjustments to recognize the
long-term nature of employee
future benefit costs:
Difference between expected return
and actual return on plan assets {132) {23) - - {132) 23)
Difference between actuarial loss
{gain) recognized for year and
actual actuarial loss {(gain) on
accrued benefit obligation for year 121 9 12 8 133
(11) (14 12 8) 1 (22)

Defined benefit costs recognized
in net income $ 28 $ 27 $ 5 $ 3 $ 33 $ 30

Significant Assumptions
The significant assumptions adopted in measuring Syncrude Canada’s accrued benefit obligations are as follows:

Other
Post-Employment
Pension Benefit Plan Benefits
2008 2007 2008 2007
Accrued benefit obligation as of December 31:
Discount rate 8.5% 5.3% 6.5% 5.3%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Benefit costs for years ended December 31:
Discount rate 5.3% 5.0% 5.3% 5.0%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.5% 8.5% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

For measurement purposes, a 10 percent annual rate of increass in the cost of supplemental health care benefits was
assumed for 2007 and 2008. The rate will remain at 10 percent for 2009 before decreasing by 0.5 percent each year
thereafter to an uitimate rate of five percent in 2018. In addition, an annual rate increase of four percent in dental rates

was used in 2008 and 2007.
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Sensitivity Analysis

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans under
other post-employment benefits. A one percent increase in assumed health care cost trend rates would have increased
the Trust's accrued benefit obligation by $5 million, and a similar decrease in rates would have decreased the Trust’s
obligation by $4 million. A one percent change in such rates would not have had a material impact on the Trust’s current
service and interest costs.

Defined Contribution Plans
Canadian Oil Sands’ share of Syncrude Canada’s defined contribution pension plans was approximately $2 million in each
of 2008 and 2007.

Total Cash Payments

Canadian Oil Sands’ share of Syncrude’s total cash payments for employee future benefits for 2008 was $38 million
{2007 - $34 million), consisting of cash contributed by Syncrude Canada to its funded pension plans, cash to fund pension
payments in excess of registered plan limits, cash payments directly to beneficiaries for its unfunded OPEB plans and
cash contributed to its defined contribution plans.

b} Accrued Variable Compensation and Other

Syncrude Canada has short-term and long-term incentive plans that are cash settled. These plans include Syncrude
Canada’s employee retention program (Note 21) and stock-based compensation plans (Note 15). Accrued variable
compensation and other consists primarily of the long-term portion of these plans. The accrued obligations for these pians
are measured at their estimated fair values.

Mote 10, BANK CREDIT FACHLITIES
As at December 31, 2008

Extendible revolving term facility {a) % 40
Line of credit (b} 67
Operating credit facility (¢) 800

$ 907

The credit faciliies of COSL, the operating subsidiary of the Trust, are unsecured. These credit agreements contain
covenanis relating to the restriction on Canadian Oil Sands’ ability to sell all or substantially all of its assets or to change
the nature of its business. in addition, Canadian Oif Sands has agreed to maintain its total debt-to-total book capitalization
at an amount less than 60 percent, or 85 percent in certain circumstances involving acquisitions.

a) Extendible Revolving Term Facility

The $40 million extendible revolving term facility is a 364-day facility expiring April 23, 2009. This facility may be extended
on an annual basis with the agreement of the bank. Amounts borrowed through this facility bear interest at a floating rate
based on bankers’ acceptances plus a credit spread, while any unused amounts are subject to standby fees. As at
December 31, 2008, no amounts were drawn on this facility.

b} Line of Credit

The $67 million line of credit is a one-year revolving letter of credit facility. Letters of credit drawn on the facility mature
April 30th each year and are automatically renewed, unless noftification to cancel is provided by Canadian Oil Sands or
the financial institution providing the facility at least 60 days prior to expiry. Letters of credit on this facility bear interest
at a credit spread.

Letters of credit of approximately $67 million have been written against the line of credit as at December 31, 2008.

¢} Operating Credit Facility

The $800 million operating facility is a multi-year facility, expiring April 27, 2012. Amounts borrowed through this facility
bear interest at a floating rate based on either prime interest rates or bankers’ acceptances plus a credit spread. Unused
amounts are subject to standby fees. As at December 31, 2008, no amounts were drawn on this facility.



Note 11, LONG-TERM DERY

As at December 31 2008 2007
5.75% Medium Term Notes due April 9, 2008 (a) $ - $ 149
5.55% Medium Term Notes due June 29, 2009 (b) 200 200
4.8% Senior Notes due August 10, 2009 (c) 304 246
5.8% Senior Notes due August 15, 2013 (d) 364 293
7.9% Senior Notes due September 1, 2021 () 301 243
8.2% Senior Notes due April 2, 2027 {f) 89 71
Credit facilities drawn, excluding letters of credit (Note 10) - 16

$ 1,258 $ 1,218

All of Canadian Qil Sands’ medium term notes and senior notes are unsecured, rank pari passu with other senior
unsecured debt of COSL, and contain certain covenants that place limitations on the sale of assets and the granting of
liens or other security interests. The medium term notes are guaranteed by the Trust.

a) 5.75% Medium Term Notes
The Trust repaid $150 million of 5.75% Medium Term Notes on April 9, 2008.

b} 5.55% Medium Term Notes
On June 29, 2004, COSL issued $200 million of 5.55% unsecured Medium Term Notes, maturing June 29, 2009. Interest
is payable on the notes semi-annually on June 29 and December 29.

¢} 4.8% Senior Notes
On August 8, 2004, COSL issued U.S.$250 million of 4.8% Senior Notes, maturing August 10, 2009. Interest is payable
on the notes semi-annually on February 10 and August 10,

d} 5.8% Senior Notes .
On August 6, 2003, COSL issued U.S8.$300 million of 5.8% Senior Notes, maturing August 15, 2013, Interest is payable
on the notes semi-annually on February 15 and August 15.

&) 7.8% Senior Notes

On August 24, 2001, COSL issued U.S.$250 miilion of 7.9% Senior Notes, maturing September 1, 2021. Interest is
payable on the notes semi-annually on March 1 and September 1. COSL has agreed to maintain its senior debt to book
capitalization at an amount less than 55 percent.

f} 8.2% Senior Notes
On April 4, 1997, COSL issued U.S.$75 million of 8.2% Senior Notes, maturing April 1, 2027, and retired U.S5.$1.05 million
during 2000. interest is payable on the notes semi-annually on April 1 and October 1.

h} Future Payments
Future payments payable under long-term debt, the total of which differs from the amortized cost balance recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet, are as follows:

2009 $ 506
2013 367
After five years 397

$ 1,270

Canadian Oil Sands intends to refinance on a long-term basis the notes that are maturing in 2009. Of the $840 million in
total credit facilities at December 31, 2008 the Trust had $800 million that do not expire until April 27, 2012 and may be
used to refinance these obligations. In accordance with EIC-122 Balance Sheet Classification of Cailable Debt Obligations
and Debt Obligations Expected to be Refinanced, debt maturing in 2009 has not been reclassified to current liabilities.
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Note 12, ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION AND RECLAMATION TRUSY

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
Asset retirement obligation, beginning of year $ 226 $ 173
Acquired (Note 5) - [
Liabilities settled {14) 4
Accretion expense 14 11
Change in estimate 9 37
Asset retirement obligation, end of year $ 235 $ 226

Canadian Oil Sands and each of the other Syncrude owners are liable for their share of ongoing environmental obligations
related to the ultimate reclamation of the Syncrude properties on abandonment. The Trust estimates reclamation
expenditures will be made over approximately the next 60 years and has applied an average credit-adjusted risk-free
discount rate of six percent {2007 — six percent) in deriving the asset retirement obligation.

Syncrude’s upgrader facilities have indeterminate useful lives and therefore the fair values of the related asset retirement
obligations cannot be reasonably determined. Also, the timing and amount of the reclamation expenditures, if any, related
to Syncrude’s sulphur blocks are not determinable at the present time. The asset retirement obligations pertaining to the
upgrader facilities and the sulphur blocks will be recognized in the year in which the settlement amounts and dates can
be reasonably estimated.

The total undiscounted estimated cash flows required to settle the Trust’s share of Syncrude’s obligation was $774 million
at December 31, 2008 (2007 - $743 million) as a result of revised cost estimates.

The reclamation expenditures will be funded from Canadian Oil Sands’ cash from operating activities and reclamation
trust. In addition to this regular funding for reclamation expenditures, Canadian Oil Sands deposits $0.1322 per barrel of
production attributable to its Working Interest to a reclamation trust established for the purpose of funding the operating
subsidiary’s share of environmental and reclamation obligations. As at December 31, 2008, including interest earned on
investments, the balance of the reclamation trust was $43 million (2007 - $37 million).

The Trust has posted letters of credit with the Province of Alberta in the amount of $67 million (2007 - $61 million) to secure
its pro rata share of the reclamation obligations of the Syncrude participants.

Note 13. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The tax provision recorded on the consolidated financial statements differs from the amount computed by applying the
combined Canadian federal and provincial income tax statutory rate to earnings before taxes as follows:

For the years ended Decamber 31 2008 2007
Earnings before taxes $ 1,430 $ 1,322
Statutory rates
Federal 29.50% 31.00%
Federal abatement -10.00% -10.00%
Federal surtax 0.00% 1.12%
Alberta provincial rate 10.00% 10.00%
25.50% 32.12%
Expected taxes at statutory rate $ 422 $ 425
Add (Deduct) the tax effect of:
Net income attributable to the Trust - tax sheitered {532) (254)
Substantive enactment of trust taxation - 701
Statutory rate adjustment for future rate reductions - {283)
Non-taxable portion of capital losses {gains) 21 (17
Other 4) 7
Provision for taxes $ {93) 3 579
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In 2007, Bill C-52 Budget Implementation Act, 2007, containing legislation to apply a new tax to publicly traded trusts in
Canada, was substantively enacted by the Canadian federal government. Upon enactment of the legislation the Trust
recorded an additional $701 million future income tax expense and future income tax liability on temporary differences.

During 2007, the federal government substantively enacted tax rate reductions, which lowered tax rates expected fo
apply in the future o corporations and trusts.

The amount shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as future income taxes represents the temporary difference of
the Trust and its subsidiaries at substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply when the differences reverse.

Future income taxes are comprised of the foliowing:

As at December 31 2008 2007
Capital and other assets in excess of tax value $ (1,654) S (1,809
Net liabilities in excess of tax value 524 587
Balance at December 31 $  (1,1380) $  (1,222)

As at December 31, 2008, the following are the estimated balances available for deduction against future taxable income:

As at December 31 2008
Canadian Qil Sands Trust:
Canadian Development Expense $ 89

Canadian Oil Sands Limited:
Undepreciated Capital Costs ("UCC"}1

Federal UCC $ 1,709
Provincial UCC $ 1,568
Scientific Research and Exploration Development $ 14

1 Approximately 58 percent are deductible at an accelerated rate up to income from a mine, and the remaining balance is deduciible at the declining
balance rate of 25 percent annually.

Mote 14, UNITHOLDERS EQUITY

aj} Unitholders’ Capital

The Trust is authorized to issue an unlimited number of ordinary Units pursuant to the Trust indenture. The Units represent
a beneficial interest in the Trust, share equally in all distributions from the Trust and carry equal voting rights. No conversion
or pre-emptive rights, and limited retraction rights are attached to the Units. Units are redeemable at the option of the
Unitholder at a price that is the lesser of 80 percent of the average closing price of the Units on the principal frading market
for the 10 trading days after the date of tender for redemption and the closing market price on the date of tender for
redemption, subject to restrictions on the amount to be redeemed each quarter.

in 2008, a total of 2.2 million Units were issued (2007 - 8.5 million} for proceeds of $24 million (2007 — $240 million).

The following table summarizes the Units that have been issued:
Number of Units

Date {Millions} Proceeds
Balance, January 1, 2007 470.9 $ 2,260
Issued for acquisition of additional Syncrude working interest {non-cash) 8.2 237
Issued on exercise of employee options 0.3 3
Balance, December 31, 2007 479.4 2,500
issued on exercise of employee options 2.2 24
Balance, December 31, 2008 481.6 $ 2,524




The Trust has a Unitholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan”) designed to provide the Trust and its Unitholders with sufficient
time to explore and develop alternatives for maximizing Unitholder value if a takeover bid is made for the Trust. One right
has been issued and attached to each issued and outstanding Unit. Rights issued under the Rights Plan become
exercisable when a person, and any related parties, has acquired or begins a takeover bid to acquire 20 percent or more
of the Units without complying with certain provisions in the Rights Plan. Should such an acquisition or announcement
occur, each right entitles the holder, other than the acquiring person, to purchase Units at a 50 percent discount to the
market price.

b) Net Income per Unit
The foliowing table summarizes the Units used in calculating net income per Unit:

As at December 31 {milflions) 2008 2007
Weighted-average Trust Units outstanding, Basic 481 479
Effect of options 1 2
Weighted-average Trust Units outstanding, Diluted 482 481

HNote 15, STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Canadian Oil Sands’ stock-based compensation includes stock option and performance unit plan grants for COSL
employees pursuant to a long-term incentive program. In addition, Syncrude Canada has stock-based compensation
plans for which Canadian Cil Sands records its Working Interest.

a) Canadian Oil Sands’ Stock-based Compensation Plans
Canadian Oil Sands maintains two stock-based compensation plans as described below.

Option Plan

As of December 31, 2008 all remaining outstanding options under the Unit Option and Distribution Equivalent Plan had
been exercised. As at December 31, 2008 Canadian Oil Sands had 828,261 options issued under its Unit incentive Option
Pian. The initial exercise price is based on the price of the Units on the preceding day prior to the issuance of the options.
Other than exceptions relating to retirement, death or termination, each option has a term of seven years and vests in
equal amounts over a three-year period. For options outstanding, the exercise price is reduced in future periods by the
amount of distributions in excess of a threshold set by the Board of Directors at the time of the grant.

The following options were issued and outstanding:
Number of Options Weighted-Average

Date {Mitlions} Exercise Price
Qutstanding at January 1, 2007 2.7 $  11.01
Granted in 2007 0.2 $ 2993
Exercised in 2007 0.3) $ (8.24)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2007 28 $ 1285
Granted in 2008 0.4 $ 38.97
Exercised in 2008 {2.2) $ 9.73
QOutstanding at December 31, 2008 0.8 $ 3283
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 2.1 $ 9.93
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 0.2 $ 26.80
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Number of Weighted-

QOptions Average Weighted-

Qutstanding Remaining Life Average

Exercise Price ~ As at December 31, 2008 {Millions) {Years) Exercise Price
$19.89 - $29.03 0.4 4.6 $ 26.08
$31.62 - $43.41 0.4 6.2 $ 39.51
0.8 54 b 32.83

The fair value of each option is estimated on the grant date using an option-pricing model. The weighted-average fair
values of the options granted and the weighted-average assumptions used in their determination are as noted below:

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.95 3.75
Expected life (vears) 4.5 4.5
Expected volatility (%) 28 29
Expected distribution per Unit ) 3.00 1.20
Fair value per stock option §) 4.15 6.00

Performance Unit Incentive Plan

Canadian Oil Sands has granted Performance Unit Rights (“PUPs”) pursuant fo its incentive Plan during 2007 and 2008.
The PUPs are earned on the third anniversary of the date of grant, at which time the holder is entitled 1o receive an amount
either in the form of Units purchased in the secondary market or in cash, equal to the aggregate current market value of
the number of Units subject to the PUPs. No Units are to be issued from treasury. The number of Units granted under
the PUPs is dependent on the total unitholder return generated by the Trust at the end of the three years compared to a
peer group, with the actual Unit equivalents earned ranging from zero to double the target award. At December 31, 2008
atotal of 117,728 PUPs were outstanding (2007 ~ 69,298) however no PUPs were vested at December 31, 2008 or 2007.

Canadian Qil Sands recorded approximately $2 million of Administration expense in 2008 (2007 - $3 million) related to
its stock-based compensation plans.

b) Syncrude Canada’s Stock-based Compensation Plans
Syncrude Canada maintains two stock-based compensation plans as described below.

Incentive Restricted Share Units Plan

Syncrude Canada implemented its Restricted Units program in 2006 which awards Restricted Units to certain employees.
The Restricted Units vest three years after the date of issuance and require settlement by cash payments. Employees
who retire prior to the vesting period may be eligible to receive pro-rated Restricted Units based upon the ratio of service
provided during the vesting period relative to the full vesting period. At the end of the vesting period, the cash settlement
is based on the weighted-average price of the shares or Units of the Syncrude owners at that time and the total
shareholder return of the owners’ shares or Units as compared to a relative peer group. At December 31, 2008 a total of
424,499 Restricted Units were outstanding {2007 - 179,303}, however no Restricted Units were vested at December 31,
2008 or 2007.

Incentive Phantom Share Units Plan

Syncrude Canada implemented a stock-based compensation plan during 2002 which awarded Phantom Units to certain
employees. The Phantom Units have value if the composite value of the weighted-average stock price of 70 percent of
the Trust’s Units and 30 percent of various cther joint venture owners’ public shares at the time of exercise by Syncrude
Canada employees exceeds the issue price of the awards. The Phantom Units issued up to 2005 had a term of seven
vears and vest based on a graded vesting schedule: after the first year of issuance, 50 percent of the Phantom Units are
exercisable, 25 percent the following year and the last 25 percent after year three. Subject to exceptions relating to early
retirement, death or termination, each Phantom Unit issued under this plan after 2005 has a term of seven years and vests
in equal amounts over a three-year period. When the awards are exercised they are settled in cash. At December 31, 2008
a total of 1.3 million Phantom Units were outstanding {2007 - 1.0 million) and a total of 0.3 million Phantom Units were
exercisable (2007 ~ 0.3 million).

In 2008, Canadian Oil Sands recorded a $9 million recovery in operating expenses related to its share of Syncrude
Canada’s stock-based compensation expense as a resuit of declines in the plan value (2007 ~ $14 million expense).
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Note 16. INTEREST, NET

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
interest expense on long-term debt $ 76 $ 91

interest income and other {8) {6)
interest expense, net $ 68 $ 85

Note 17, UNITHOLDER DISTRIBUTIONS

The Consolidated Statements of Unitholder Distributions are provided to assist Unitholders in reconciling cash from
operating activities to Unitholder distributions.

Pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Trust Indenture, the Trust distributes all the income received or receivable by the Trust in
a quarter less expenses and any other amounts required by law or under the terms of the Trust Indenture to be withheld.
The Trust primarily receives income by way of a royalty and interest on intercompany loans from its operating subsidiary,
COSL. The royaity is designed to capture the cash generated by COSL, after the deduction of all costs and expenses
including operating and administrative costs, income taxes, capital expenditures, debt interest and principal repayments,
working capital and reserves for future obligations deemed appropriate. The amount of royalty income that the Trust
receives in any period has a considerable amount of flexibility through the use of discretionary reserves and debt
borrowings or repayments (either intercompany or third party). Quarterly distributions are determined by the Board of
Directors after considering the current and expected economic and operating conditions, ensuring financing capacity for
Syncrude’s expansion projects and/or Canadian Oil Sands’ acquisitions, and with the objective of maintaining an
investment grade credit rating.

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
Cash from operating activities $ 2,241 $ 1,377
Add (Deduct):
Capital expenditures {281) {183)
Acqguisition of additional Syncrude working interest - (231}
Disposition of properties - 4
Change in non-cash working capital ! 6 {1}
Reclamation trust funding : {6} 7
Change in cash and cash equivalents and financing, net2 {156) {168)
Unitholder distributions $ 1,804 $ 791
Unitholder distributions per Trust Unit $ 3.75 $ 1.65

1 From investing activities.
z Primarily represents the change in cash and cash equivalents and net financing to fund the Trust's share of investing activities.

Mote 18, CAPITAL MANAGEMENTY
The Trust's capital consists of cash and cash equivalents, debt and Unitholders’ equity. The balance of each of these items
at December 31 was as follows:

As at December 31 2008 2007
Long-term debt $ 1,258 $ 1,218
Cash and cash equivalents {279) (268)
Net debt $ 979 $ 950
Unitholders’ equity $ 3910 $ 4172
Total capitatization ! $ 4,889 $ 5,122
Net debt to total capitalization (%) ' 20 19

t MNet debt plus Unitholders’ equity.



Net debt to total capitalization increased in 2008 to 20 percent from 19 percent. This was primarily a result of cash from
operating activities, distributions, debt repayments during the year and unrealized foreign exchange losses from the
revaluations of the U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt and changes in Unitholders’ equity.

The Trust’s objective for managing capital is to maximize long-term Unitholder value by:

» Ensuring financing capacity for Syncrude’s expansion projects and/or acquisitions of oll sands-related assets that
are expected to add value to our Unitholders;

« Maintaining an investment grade credit rating to support financing of future expansions and acquisition opportunities,
and 1o allow the Trust to remain un-hedged on its crude oil price exposure; and

+ Distributing to Unitholders any cash that is not required for financing Syncrude’s operations or capital investment
growth opportunities that may offer Unitholders better value.

As disclosed in Notes 10 and 11, the Trust is bound by certain debt covenants; however, these covenants do not
specifically limit the Trust’s ability to pay distributions. The Trust monitors its total debt-to-total book capitalization as it
must be less than 55 percent according to certain financial covenants. With a net debt-to-total capitalization of 20 percent
at December 31, 2008, the Trust is well within its limits and a significant increase in debt or decrease in equity would be
required to negatively impact the Trust’s financial flexibility.

As a result of the Canadian trust taxation legislation passed in June 2007 and effective January 1, 2011, the Trust is
subject to certain capital growth restrictions referred to as “normal growth” equity rules. These rules limit the amount of
Unitholders’ capital that can be issued by the Trust in each of the next two years, based on the Trust's market capitalization
on October 31, 2008, as foliows:

{$ bitlions)
Opening Cumuiative Normal Growth Capital January 1, 2007 $ 57
Issued on Talisman acquisition 0.2)
Annual normal growth capital for 2007 2.9
Annual normal growth capital for 2008 29
Ending Cumulative Normal Growth Capital at December 31, 2008 $ 1.3
Normal growth capital allowed in:
20098 $ 29
2010 3 29

If the maximum equity growth allowed is exceeded, the Trust may be subject to trust taxation prior to 2011. However, in
2008 the Department of Finance released draft legislation that would accelerate the safe haven guidelines to immediately
allow cumnulative new equity issues of up to 100 percent of an entity’s October 31, 2006 market capitalization. As of
December 31, 2008, this legisiation was not enacted.

In addition to growth capital restrictions, the Trust also monitors its foreign ownership levels to the extent possible given
the practical limitations regarding beneficial ownership information. The Trust Iindenture, under which the Trust was
created, provides that no more than 49 percent of the Units of the Trust can be held by non-Canadian residents. The
potential impact of breaching this threshold may be the loss of mutual fund trust status, which may significantly adversely
impact the valuation of the Units. At December 31, 2008, the Trust’s best estimate of the foreign ownership level was
32 percent, based on account data at November 14, 2008,



Note 19, FINANGIAL INBTRUMENTS

Fair Values

The Trust’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, reclamation trust short-term
investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and debt. The fair values of the Trust’s financial instruments that
are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, with the exception of the Senior Notes and medium term notes,
approximate their recorded amount due to the short-term nature of those instruments. The carrying values of the Trust's

financial instruments at December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Total

Held for L.oans and Available Cther Carrying

Trading Receivables for Sale Liabilities Value

Cash and cash equivalents $ 279 $ - $ - $ - $ 279
Accounts receivable - 184 - - 184
Reclamation trust - - 43 - 43
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - - - 284 284
Long-term debt - - - 1,258 1,258
$ 279 $ 184 $ 43 $ 1,542 $ 2,048

The fair values of the Senior Notes and medium term notes based on third-party market indications are as follows:

As at December 31 2008 2007
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

5.75% medium term notes due April 9, 2008 $ - $ - $ 149 $ 150
5.55% medium term notes due June 29, 2009 200 202 200 201
4.8% Senior Notes due August 10, 2009 (U.S.$250 million) 304 302 246 248
5.8% Senior Notes due August 15, 2013 (UJ.$.$300 miltion) 364 330 293 302
7.9% Senior Notes due September 1, 2021 (U.5.$250 million) 301 279 243 269
8.2% Senior Notes due April 1, 2027 (U.S.$73.95 million) 89 77 71 81
$ 1,258 $ 1,190 $ 1,202 $ 1,249

Financial Instrument Risk Management

Canadian Qil Sands provides a detailed risk management discussion, including its exposure and management of crude
oil price risk, natural gas price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk {being foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk) in its 2008 annual Management's Discussion and Analysis under the headings “Financial Market Risk” and “Credit

Risk” included in the “Risk Management” section.
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Note 20, CROWN ROYALTIES

In 2008, Canadian Qil Sands and the other Syncrude joint venture owners exercised their pre-existing option to convert
to a bitumen-based Crown royalty. Effective January 1, 2009, Syncrude will calculate Crown royalties based on deemed
bitumen revenues less allowed bitumen operating, non-production and capital costs, rather than paying Crown royalties
based on the production of synthetic crude oil (*SCO”). As part of the conversion to a bitumen-based royalty, only costs
related to producing bitumen rather than the fully upgraded SCQO can be deducted. In addition, deductible costs in
calculating Crown royalties will be reduced in future years by approximately $5 billion ($1.8 billion net to the Trust) resulting
in future Crown royalties of approximately $1.25 billion plus interest ($459 million pius interest net to the Trust) over a
25 year period. The cost reductions relate to capital expenditures that were deducted in computing Crown royalties on
SCO in prior years and that are no longer associated with the royalty base.

Also in 2008, Canadian Oil Sands and the other Syncrude owners reached an agreement with the Alberta government
on terms to transition the Syncrude Project to Alberta’s New Royalty Framework. Under the agreement, the Syncrude
owners will pay the greater of 25 percent of net deemed bitumen revenues, or one percent of gross deemed bitumen-
based revenues, plus an additional royalty of up to $975 miltion ($358 million net to the Trust) for the period January 1,
2010 to December 31, 2015. The additional royalty of $975 million is reduced proportionally on bitumen production of less
than 345,000 barrels per day over the period and is payable in six annual instaliments in respect of the following periods:

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
Syncrude $ 75 $ 75 $ 100 $ 150 $ 225 $ 350 $ 975
Canadian Oil Sands Share $ 27 $ 27 $ 37 $ 55 $ 83 $ 1209 $ 358

Note 21, COMMITMENTS

Canadian Oil Sands is obligated to make future cash payments under existing contractual agreements that it has entered
into either directly or as an owner in Syncrude. The following commitments that relate to Syncrude reflect Canadian Oil
Sands’ Working Interest in the joint venture.

a} Management Services Agreement

Effective November 1, 2006, Syncrude Canada entered into a comprehensive Management Services Agreement with
imperial Oil Resources Lid. (*Imperial Oil") to provide operational, technical and business management services to
Syncrude Canada. The agreement has an initial term of 10 years, with five-year renewal provisions. Either Syncrude
Canada or Imperial Qil has the option to cancel the agreement on 24 months notice for any reason. Canadian Oil Sands’
36.74 percent share of the annual fixed fee payable to imperial Oil for the first 10 years under the agresment is $17 million
per year. After the first three years through to year 10, variable performance fees will also apply based on the achievement
of certain performance targets. Such variable fees may be comparable to the fixed fee component if Syncrude Canada
realizes a corresponding benefit through higher production and/or lower per barrel operating costs.

b} Natural Gas Purchase Commitments

Syncrude has entered into purchase commitments for natural gas deliveries at floating market-related prices. There is
one long-term natural gas supply contract that expires on October 31, 2010. Canadian Cil Sands’ 36.74 percent share
of this commitment is for 18 million gigajoules.

¢} Pension Plan Solvency Deficiency Paymentis

The latest actuarial valuation completed in 2007 for Syncrude Canada’s defined benefit pension plan requires payments
to fund the pension plan solvency deficiency. Canadian Oif Sands’ share of these funding requirements is $107 million
over the next 14 vears.

N
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d) Expenditure Commitments
Canadian Oil Sands is committed to remaining costs of approximately $404 million related to its share of Syncrude’s
Emissions Reduction project, the majority of which are expected fo be incurred over the next three years.

Syncrude introduced an employee retention incentive program for permanent Fort McMurray-based employees which
began on April 1, 2006 and ends on March 31, 2009. Syncrude’s estimated commitment related to the program is
$128 million, or $47 million net to Canadian Oil Sands. A similar plan has also been put in place for the three-year period
starting April 1, 2009 and ending March 31, 2012.

Syncrude has various vendor commitments owing in 2009 and 2010 for non-capital items of which the more significant
purchases total $43 million, or $16 million net to Canadian Oil Sands.

e} Pipeline Commitments

Canadian Qil Sands has a long-term agreement with Alberta Oil Sands Pipeline Limited (“AOSPL”) to transport production
from the Syncrude plant gate to Edmonton, Alberta. The agreement provides for reimbursement on a cost of service
basis, including operating expenses, cash taxes paid, and a return on the depreciated rate base. The agreement commits
Canadian Oil Sands to pay its proportionate share of the cost of service whether or not it ships any volumes on the
pipeline. The projected cost of service for 2009 is $21 million and it is expected to average $22 million through to 2035.

MNote 22, CONTINGENCIES

a) Tax Disputes

For the period prior to 2000, the tax filings for COSL’s predecessors, Canadian Oil Sands [nvestments inc. (*COSI”) and
Athabasca Oil Sands Investments inc. (“AQSIP), have been reassessed and closed. AOSH’s and COSiI's 2000, 2001, and
2002 tax returns have been reassessed by the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) and Notices of Objection have been fited
pertaining to the Syncrude Remission Order and other items. A similar action had been previously instituted by Imperial
Ol (*iIMO”) and accordingly, Canadian Oil Sands’ action is being held in abeyance until the IMO action is determined.
During 2008 IMO received a favourable ruling in respect of this dispute; however, CRA has appealed the decision. The
resolution of this dispute regarding the Syncrude Remission Order is not expected to result in significant additional cash
taxes being paid, but an unfavorable resolution would reduce the amount of tax pools available for carry forward. Timing
of the resolution of this issue and the impact on tax pool balances could not be determined at December 31, 2008.

b) General

Various suits and claims arising in the ordinary course of business are pending against Syncrude Canada, the operator
of the Syncrude Project for the Syncrude joint venture owners. While the uitimate effect of such actions cannot be
ascertained at this time, in the opinion of the Trust’s management and in consultation with its legal counsel, the liabilities
that could reasonably be expected to arise from such actions would not be significant in relation to the operations of
Syncrude. Syncrude Canada, as well as Canadian Oil Sands and the other Syncrude owners, also have claims pending
against various parties, the outcomes of which are not yet determinable.

Note 28, GUARANTEES

Canadian Oil Sands has posted performance standby letters of credit with the Province of Alberta which are renewed
annually. The letters of credit guarantee to the Province of Alberta the reclamation obligations of Canadian Oil Sands’
interest in future reclamation of the Syncrude mine sites. The Province of Alberta can draw on the letters of credit if
Syncrude fails to perform its reclamation duties on its mine sites. The maximum potential amount of payments Canadian
Oil Sands may be liable for pursuant to these letters of credit is $67 million.



Note 24, ZUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
a) Change in Non-cash Working Capital

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
Operating activities
Accounts receivable $ 195 $ (135)
Inventories 9 (18)
Prepaid expenses 1 1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {5) (15)
Less: A/P change reclassed to investing and other 2 2
$ 202 $ {165)

investing activities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 6 $ m

b} interest and taxes paid

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007
income tax paid $ = $ 1
Interest charges paid $ 74 $ 94

¢} Major Customers

In connection with the marketing and sale of Canadian Oil Sands’ own synthetic crude oil for the year ended December 31,
2008, the Trust had one customer {2007 - three) which individually accounted for more than 10 percent of consolidated
revenues. This customer is a major international integrated energy company with a high quality investment grade credit
rating. Sales to this customer were approximately $837 million (2007 — $647 rnillion).

Note 25, SUBSEGUENT EVENT

Premium Distribution, Distribution Reinvestment and Optional Unit Purchase Plan

The Trust reinstated its Premium Distribution, Distribution Re-Investment and Optional Unit Purchase Plan (*"DRIP”} in
January 2009. The DRIP allows eligible Unitholders to direct their distributions to the purchase of additional Units at
95 percent of the weighted average market price, as defined in the DRIP. Alternatively, eligible Unitholders may elect
under the premium distribution component to have their distributions invested in new Units and exchanged through the
DRIP broker for a premium distribution equal to 102 percent of the amount that the Unitholder would otherwise have
received on the distribution date (subject to proration and withholding tax reductions in certain circumstances). Finally,
the DRIP allows those Unitholders who participate in either the regular distribution re-investment or premium distribution
component of the DRIP to purchase additional Units from treasury at the average market price in minimum amounts of
$1,000 per remittance and maximum amounts of $100,000, in a given quarter, all subject to an overall annual limit of
two percent of the issued and outstanding Units being offered for purchase in this manner.
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Glossary

Alberta oil sand{s} deposits The four deposits, Athabasca, Peace
River, Cold Lake and Wabasca, have total resources in place
estimated at 1.7 trillion to 2.5 trillion barrels. The Athabasca Clf Sands
deposit, Alberta’s largest and most accessible source of bitumen,
contains more than one trillion barrels of bitumen over an area
encompassing more than 30,000 square kilometers.

Bitumen The molasses-like substance that comprises up to 18% of
oil sands. Bitumen, in its raw state, is black, asphait-like oil. it requires
upgrading or blending to make it transportable by pipeline and usable
by conventional refineries.

Carbon dioxide (CO2) A non-toxic gas produced from decaying
materials, respiration of plant and animat life, and combustion of
organic matter, including fossil fuels; carbon dioxide is the most
common greenhouse gas produced by human activities.

Cokers Vessels in which bitumen is cracked into its fractions and
from which coke is withdrawn in the process of converting bitumen to
upgraded crude oil.

Conventional oil Petroleum found in fiquid form, flowing naturally, or
capable of being pumped without further processing or ditution.

Debottieneck An undertaking to systematically remove plant
capacity fimitations through modifications of existing facifities and/or
addition of capital facilities; commonly provides a 10 to 20% capacity
improvement versus a major capitai intensive expansion.

Feedstock(s}) Raw material supplied to refinery, oil sands upgrader,
or petrochemical plant.

Flue gas scrubber/desulphurizer Equipment that removes suiphur
dioxide and other emissions.

Fluid coking A major part of the upgrading process whereby high
temperatures in a coker break down the complex bitumen molecules,
rejects carbon and causes bitumen molecules to reformulate into lighter
fractions that become the main ingredients in upgraded crude oil.

Greenhouse gases Any of the various gases that contribute to the
greenhouse effect.

Cil sandis) A compaosition of sand, bitumen, mineral rich clays and
water.

Oif sand(s} lease Along-term agreement with the provincial government
which permits the leaseholder to extract bitumen, other metals and
minerals contained in the cil sands in the specified lease area.

Ore grade The percentage of bitumen by weight in the oil sands.

Overburden Layer of rocky, clay-like material that liss under muskeg
and above ol sands deposits.

Sulphur dioxide (502} A compound of suiphur and oxygen produced
by burning sulphur.

Synthetic crude off A high-guality product resulting from the mining,
extraction and upgrading of bitumen.

Tallings A combination of water, sand, silt and fine clay particles that
is & by-product of removing bitumen from oil sand.

Tailings Systems  Separation of water from sand and clay to enable
incorporation of solids into reclamation landscapes and recycling of
water back into the operations.

Total volume to bitumen in place {TV/BIP) The ratio of total ore plus
overburden volume to total bitumen in place.

Turnaround A unit shutdown essential for good maintenance of the
mining, producing and upgrading facilities. A turnaround reduces
production but does not usually halt it entirely as the various operating
units are often duplicated.

Upgrading The conversion of heavy bitumen into a lighter crude oil
by increasing the ratio of hydrogen to carbon, either by removing
carbon {coking) or adding hydrogen {hydroprocessing).

RESERVES AND RESOURCES DEFINITIONS

Proved Reserves Reserves that can be estimated with a high degree
of certainty to be recoverable. Ni 51-101 further identifies the certainty
levet for proved reserves as “at least a 90% probability that the quantities
actuaily recovered will equal or exceed the estimated proved reserves”.

Proved plus Probable Reserves Additional reserves that ars fess
certain to be recovered than proved reserves. NI 51-101 defines the
certainty level as “at least a 50% probability that the quantities actually
recovered will equal or exceed the sum of the estimated proved plus
probabie reserves.” Therefore, under NI §1-101, the proved pius
probable reserves represent a “best estimate” or “expected reserves”.

Contingent Resources Quantities of petroleum estimated, as of a
given date, to be potentially recaverable from known accurmulations
using established technology or technology under development, but
which are not currently considered to be commercially recoverable due
to one or more contingencies.

Prospective Resources Quantities of petroleum estimated, as of
a given date, to be potentially recoverable from undiscovered
accumulations by application of futwre development projects.
Prospective resources have both an associated chance of discovery
and a chance of development.

Best Estimate Term used to describe an uncertainty category for
resources estimates referring to the best estimate of the quantity that
will actually be recovered. it is equally likely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will be greater or less than the “best estimate”.
The best estimate of Contingent and Prospective Resources is
prepared independent of the risks associated with achieving
commercial production.

FINANCIAL METRICS

Netback Net realized selling price, after hedging, less operating costs
and Crown royalties.

Net debt to cash from operating activities Net debt divided by cash
from operating activities.

Net debt to total capitalization Net debt divided by net debt plus
Unitholders’ equity.

Return on average Unitholders’ equity Net income divided by
average Unitholders’ equity.

Return on average productive capital employed Net income before
net interest expense, future income taxes and unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses, divided by average net debt plus
Unitholders’ equity. excluding major expansion projects not vet in use.

ABBREVIATIONS
American Petroleum Institute specific gravity: APl
barrel(s): bbl, bbis

barrel{sj/day: bbl/d, bbis/d, bpd
carbon dioxide: CO2

gigajoule: GJ

greenhouse gases: GHGIs)
millions of barrels: mmbbis
sulphur dioxide: SOz

Syncrude crude oil: 8CO
thousands of barrels: mbbls
West Texas Intermediate: WTI



Stafistical Summary

{$ millions, except as indicated) 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
FINANCIAL
Revenues, after crude oil purchases

and transportation expense 4,169 3,250 2,432 1,967 1,352
Operating costs 1,368 1,034 807 731 601
Non-production costs 78 63 70 85 48
Crown royalties 599 485 232 18 18
Administration 17 20 17 12 9
insurance 6 8 6 8 9
interest, net 68 85 98 104 95
Depreciation, depletion and accretion 444 351 255 198 172
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 159 117 {5) {29) {80)
Future income tax expense (recovery) and other (93) - 579 8 {29)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations -1 - -
Net income S 1,523 743 834 831 509
" Per Trust Unit1 () o 317 155 179 1.81 114
Cash from operating activities 2,241 1,377 1,142 949 594

Per Trust Unit 1 ($) 4.66 2.87 2.45 2.07 1.33
Unitholder distributions 1,804 791 512 184 180

Per Trust Unit ' 9 3.75 1.65 1.10 0.40 0.40
Capital expenditures 281 183 300 800 842
RESERVES (billions of SCO bbis, net to Canadian Qil Sands)
Proved reserves 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Proved plus probable reserves 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8
Contingent resources 2.0 2.1 1.4 1.4 1.4
Prospective resources 0.8 0.8 N/A N/A N/A
AVERAGE DAILY SALES (bbis) 2 105,986 112,298 91,844 75,994 84,575
OPERATING NETBACK $/bb)
Revenues, after crude oil purchases

and transportation expense 107.473 79.29 72.56 70.91 43.68
Operating costs 3526 2523  27.07  26.34 19.40
Crown royalties - 15.44  11.83 6.93 0.71 0.58
Netback 56.77 4223 3856  43.86  23.70
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Net debt to cash from operating activities @times) 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.7 2.8
Net debt to total capitalization (%) 20.0 18.8 24.6 32.8 39.0
Return on average productive capital employed (%) 339 247 24.4 37.1 215
Return on average Unitholders’ equity (%) 37.7 18.3 227 27.6 214
$/TRUST UNIT PRICES 1
High 55.25 38.88 38.75 28.60 13.64
Low 18.15 25.09 24.32 12.42 8.05
Close 21.10 38.71 32.61 25.20 13.52
Trading volume (miffions of Trust Units) 463.6 373.8 406.8 356.9 389.2
Number of Trust Units outstan‘(_jingn{mi{iiops‘) - 481.6 479.4 470.9 462.6 457.2

1 Trust Unit information has been adjusted to reflect the 5:1 Unit split that occurred on May 3, 2006.

2 The Trust's sales volumes differ from its production volumes due to changes in inventory, which are primarily in-transit pipeline
vofumes, and are net of purchased crude oil volumes.

2 Revenue includes sulphur sales. Average net realized SCQ selling price after transportation and hedging was $106.91 per barrel.
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